RPN AP X BIF, BPRIERX, BRI .

The English translation is for reference purposes only.

In the event of any discrepancy between the Chinese original and the English translation,
the Chinese original shall prevail.
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Message from CEO

With the blade of innovation, we carve out the path to progress

Dear investors and friends:

In the first half of 2024, with the issuance of the "Key Tasks for Deepening
the Reform of the Healthcare System in 2024", the reform of the healthcare
system has further deepened. The top-level design for the development
of the national pharmaceutical sector has been essentially completed,
creating a favorable external environment and conditions for a new
wave of rapid development in the pharmaceutical industry. At the same
time, the continued positive momentum in global trade has strongly
driven the stable growth of China's foreign trade. Given the changes
in the industry and internationally, the key issue facing pharmaceutical
companies is how to seize development opportunities and enhance
R&D and commercialization capacities at home and abroad to promote
high-quality growth.

As the saying goes, "A journey of a thousand miles begins with a single
step, and a towering mountain starts from a tiny speck of dust". Gan &
Lee Pharmaceuticals has always closely followed the national policies,
actively exploring paths for development. In the first half of this year,
through the relentless efforts and innovative spirit of all employees,
the Company achieved significant progress across various business
areas. During the reporting period, the Company achieved operating
revenue of RMB 1,314.89 million, an increase of 6.92% year-on-year,
and a net profit attributable to shareholders of RMB 298.90 million, a
remarkable year-on-year increase of 122.80%, successfully doubling
its performance. Leveraging the price advantage after the first round
of insulin volume-based procurement (VBP) and the opportunities
from new hospital access across the country, the Company saw a
substantial increase in sales. In the highly anticipated insulin-specific
successive VBP in the first half of this year, our commitment remained
steadfast, aligning with national policies to continue providing high-
quality and affordable products to patients. The Company maintained
its selection categories, with mainstream products in demand all
classified as Category A. The Company secured a total of 46.86 million
units in the procurement agreement an increase of 11.52 million
units or 32.6% compared to the previous agreement. Specifically,
the Company's third-generation insulin analogs accounted for 43.55
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million units, representing 30% of the overall centralized procurement
agreement for third-generation insulins. Considering the new changes
in the insulin-specific successive VBP policy and with a focus on long-
term high-quality development, the Company carefully considered
pricing to better provide high-quality drugs and excellent supporting
services to patients, while continuously increasing investment in R&D
to enhance diabetes treatment standards in China. With the three-
and-a-half-year procurement cycle, we believe that building on its
stable growth fundamentals, the Company will see even broader
market opportunities and further solidify its leadership position in the
industry.

In the first half of this year, the Company's R&D investment reached
RMB 276.76 million, accounting for 21.05% of its revenue. Upholding
"Science and Excellence", the core of the corporate culture, we hope
to make breakthroughs in our field of specialization and seek better
solutions for diabetes treatment. Currently, the Company's self-
developed bi-weekly GLP-1RA preparation, GZR18 Injection, a Class
1 new drug, has achieved positive clinical progress, demonstrating
significant efficacy and good safety in obese adults. In its Phase Ilb
clinical trial, a bi-weekly dose resulted in a 17.29% weight reduction
over 30 weeks. Compared to similar drugs in Phase Il trials with
similar dosing schedules, GZR18's weight loss effect surpassed that
of Semaglutide and Tirzepatide, positioning it as a potential best-
in-class drug. Additionally, in preclinical studies, GZR4 Injection
demonstrated superior glucose-lowering effects compared to Awigli®,
the similar drug at the same dosage, with the potential to become a
superior fourth-generation weekly insulin preparation. The Company's
independently developed new fourth-generation pre-mixed dual insulin
analog, GZR101 Injection, showed better glucose-lowering effects and
safety in diabetic animal models compared to insulin degludec/insulin
aspart. Both GZR4 and GZR101 are currently in Phase Il clinical trials.
Leveraging the latest clinical results, the Company will further advance
the development of innovative diabetes treatments.

Currently, as the global pharmaceutical market gradually recovers,
China's pharmaceutical industry is embracing new opportunities for
high-level international openness. With keen market insight and rapid
response, the Company has actively expanded into international
markets. In the first half of the year, we successfully completed high-
quality insulin product supplies to countries with strong demand,
driving continuous growth in international revenue. Additionally,
we supported our partner in becoming Brazil's first domestic
company with insulin production capabilities. We were privileged to
commemorate the inauguration of our partner's insulin plant with the
President of Brazil, which will further enhance the positive social and
economic impact on local patients and the healthcare payment system.
This is indicative of the success of Gan & Lee's internationalization
strategy and demonstrates our commitment and responsibility to
contribute to global health.

In addition, Gan & Lee received the official notification from the EMA,
that our production facilities are in compliance with the requirements
of the EU GMP regulations, and that we have the conditions for the
commercial production of Insulin glargine, lispro, and Aspart Pre-filled
Injection Pen. This is also the first time for domestic manufacturer
of Insulin analog injection passed the GMP inspection by EMA, which
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marks a solid step on the road of internationalization.

In terms of academic exchange and collaboration, we invited over
200 international experts to visit Gan & Lee for in-depth academic
discussions. Additionally, we organized expert teams to travel abroad,
participating in academic conferences in countries like Kazakhstan, etc.
with the aim of contributing Chinese wisdom and strength to global
diabetes R&D and treatment.

In the face of the rising global diabetes incidence and the urgent need
for insulin, Gan & Lee feels a deep sense of responsibility. Through
active communication with embassies and ministries of health in
various countries, we have been understanding and responding to
local needs, continuously optimizing our international cooperation
strategies to ensure that our products and services better meet the
demands of the global market. We believe that every effort by Gan &
Lee is a step towards building a healthier and more harmonious world.

The achievements we have made would not have been possible
without the hard work and dedication of every Gan & Lee employee.
We understand that success is built on effort, and we understand the
importance of talent to our Company. Therefore, we are continuously
increasing our investment in and motivation for our talent. To support
the long-term strategic development of the Company, we have once
again launched a restricted stock incentive plan for key employees. This
plan targets a total of 87 core technical talents, granting them a total of
7.04 million restricted shares, accounting for 1.1849% of the Company's
total shares before the grant. We believe that talent is the driving force
behind the Company's development, and that those who create wealth
should also share in it. Moving forward, the Company will further
inspire the creativity of our core talent, fostering deep integration and
win-win growth between the Company and employees.

Over the years, the Company's development has been supported by
the trust and backing of our shareholders, for which we are deeply
grateful. We have always prioritized the interests of our shareholders.
In the first half of the year, the Company implemented the 2023
annual equity distribution, distributing a total cash dividend of RMB
120 million, which accounted for 35.36% of the net profit attributable
to the Company's ordinary shareholders in 2023. In the future, we
will strive to improve our performance and create more value for our
shareholders.

Persevere breeds long-term success. Driven by R&D and innovation,
we will further deepen the comprehensive implementation of our
Company strategy, providing higher quality products to more patients
worldwide and contributing to the improvement of global health. We
firmly believe that through the joint efforts of all colleagues at Gan &
Lee Pharmaceuticals., we will achieve higher quality growth.

CEO of Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.
Kai Du
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IMPORTANT NOTES

\

Vil

VIl

The Board of Directors, the Supervisory Committee and
the directors, supervisors and senior management of
the Company guarantee the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of the contents of the annual report, and that
there are no false records, misleading statements or material
omissions, for which they shall be individually and jointly
liable.

All Directors of the Company have attended the board
meetings.

The semi-annual report is unaudited.

Zhongru Gan (Legal Representative), Cheng Sun (Chief
Accountant) and Li Zhou (Head of Accounting Department)
hereby certify that the financial report set out in the annual
report is true, accurate and complete.

Proposal of profit distribution or proposal of converting
capital reserves into share capital examined and reviewed by
the Board in the reporting period

None

Disclaimer in respect of forward-looking statements

The forward-looking descriptions of plans and development
strategies contained in the report do not constitute substantial
commitments by the Company to investors. Investors and
related parties should be aware of the risks involved and should
understand the differences between plans, forecasts and
commitments. Please pay attention to inventment risks.

Whether there is any fund occupation by controlling
shareholders and their related parties for non-operational
purposes

No

Whether external guarantees have been provided in violation
of the prescribed decision-making procedures

No
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Whether more than half of the directors are unable to
guarantee the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of
the annual report disclosed by the Company

No

Major risk warnings

During the reporting period, there were no particularly
significant risks that had material effect on the production and
operation of the Company. The Company has detailed the various
risks it may face in the course of production and operation in this
report, as described in “Section IV Management Discussion And
Analysis / IV Risks the Company may face”.
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F—T BX
SECTION | DEFINITIONS

EARRESHD, BIEXNESHERE, %) In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following

FEBEEBM TSN terms have the following meanings:
BRIEIERX
Definition of frequently used terms
RE . ARE . HEHEHW £ HEHUEHBERLQSE
Gan & Lee, the Company Indicates Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.
Ha2s % 45 HEHWWLWARBRRAE, RBL2EFLE
Gan & Lee Sh/a\ndong Indicaates A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Gan & Lee

Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.

o 4 0 " BEHBARA (BB ERAT, ATRE
MING HUA TECHNOLOGY Indicates Ming Hua TECHNOLOGY INVESTMENT (HK) LIMITED, Company

Shareholder

RSN 5 ERBHREEAMEERAE, RERA
Xute Hongda Indicates Beijing Xute Hongda Technology Co.,Ltd, Company Shareholder

ARERIMENLEESUC L EREMN), A2 NDELE

§ C MEELVERBZHEGURELERENK), RAKRRK
% AL I R }a Nanjing Zhucheng Shunkang Venture Capital Partnership
Zhucheng Shunkang Indicates (L.P), formerly known as Maanshan Casting Growth Enterprise

Management Consulting Partnership (L .P.), Company
Shareholder

e HillHouse G&L Holdings(HK) Limited , ‘A& B& &
Hillhouse Indicaates HillHouse Gan & Lee Holdings(HK) Limited, Company
Shareholder
STRONG LINK | STRONG LINK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED , ‘AF & 7R
Indicates STRONG LINK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, Company Shareholder

- & Vast Wintersweet Limited , A8 & &
Wintersweet Indicates Vast Wintersweet Limited, Company Shareholder

WwEL £ LiEERE

Sandoz Indicates Sandoz AG
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EREIERX

Definition of frequently used terms

[

EA) N5
NMPA

ERERBE
NHSA

PEIE SR
CSRC

wEXRY. BEREXR. LAEX
Volume-based procurement,
first round of insulin volume-
based procurement, previous
centralized procurement

BRBRETNES . BREEEX
M. A RER

Insulin-specific succession,
insulin succession centralized
procurement, this round of
centralized procurement

B (KR BERE~R. B8
(R MR R R E~ @
Basal insulin products (long-
acting), Mealtime (fast-acting)
and pre-mixed insulin products

ADA

ANVISA

EMA

FDA

GMP

MAH

5
Indicates
i
Indicates

5

Indicates

i
Indicates

i
Indicates

B

Indicates

?b

=]

Indicates
i

Indicates
5

Indicates

B

Indicates

B

Indicates

B

Indicates

ERARLEBEERS
National Medical Products Administration

XETRER
National Healthcare Security Administration

FEESHEEEZRS

China Securities Regulatory Commission

2021118, BERELHRKERBWORERB(2EARER
RS (R B = T I)(GY-YD2021-3)), FREE /\ittl%fﬂ,,\?juu
EPHERW(ESHZTI) IF. ERARAGHKERBHLE
022F 1B BHIER “FARBEIRETMEXRPEL R FT2022F58
FiasErE, BEHRITHBPUSMABBM NE .. X REXEH
R2E, BEEMARERLGHITHETE

In November 2021, the Office of Centralized Drug Procurement
Organized by the State issued "National Centralized Drug
Procurement Document (Insulin Specific) (GY-YD2027-3)" to carry
out the sixth round of national centralized drug procurement
(insulin specific). The notice of the Office of Centralized
Drug Procurement Organized by the State in January 2022
requires that "the results of the insulin specific volume-based
procurement will be implemented in May 2022, and the specific
implementation date shall be subject to the notice issued by
various localities". The centralized procurement period is 2
years, calculated from the actual implementation date of the
selection results in various localities.

202438, EREALARKERBVHLRELR(2EXNRERX
J”’]S‘CT¢(GYYD20241)>>, ERARBRSRTIEXRELXY, It
%7&5’]71@”’]53}3@2027&125315 XUEERBAERARY

o RWDANEBohELENER

In I\/Iarch 2024, the National Joint Drug Procurement Office
released the "National Drug Centralized Procurement Announcement
(GY-YD2024-1)", initiating the succession centralized procurement
for insulin under the national centralized procurement. The
procurement period for this round will last until December 31,
2027. This is also the first time that the National Joint Drug
Procurement Office has launched a succession procurement.

ERABEMKYBESETREBERKFRAKFROHER, &
ABEN (B MABERSR-RBERFRO. RFHFO25 . &
TROTIEFE . PFHHRO . PR30 EF F K30

The Company's basal (long-acting) insulin products include
Basalin® and Basalin®ElasPen. The Company's mealtime
(fastacting) and pre-mixed insulin products include Prandilin®,
Prandilin®25, Prandilin®ElasPen, Rapilin® Rapilin®30 and
Similin®30

ZEBERRBED=
American Diabetes Association

BEIEEENN
Agéncia Nacional de Vigilancia Sanitaria

MUNH mEED
The European Medicines Agency

sEEmanLEEER
Food and Drug Administration

HAREFREEENT

Good Manufacturing Practice of drugs

H@mEHHAIFAEA
Marketing Authorization Holder

HFEHIRGERAE
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EREIERX
Definition of frequently used terms

NMPA

DPP-4i

SGLT-2i

GZR1017* &1 &
GZR101 Injection

GZR337E 51 &
GZR33 Injection

GZR187 51 &
GZR18 Injection

GZR4E 5% &
GZR4 Injection

GLR1023F 59 &
GLR1023 Injection

GZR18K
GZR18 Tablet

5

Indicates

i
Indicates

5

Indicates

5
Indicates

5
Indicates

5
Indicates

5
Indicates

5

Indicates

5

Indicates

FEERARKEEEERR
National Medical Products Administration

T RRE BRBE -4 ) 7
Dipeptidyl peptidase-4 inhibitor

W-AEREDRKIZED 2057

Sodium-glucose cotransporter 2 inhibitor

NEEHWNILFE ATRENT R, B—MAEIURNRES
REAHF, ARTEMNKBEMBEDRGCIRIBERMITL R
BREGHIK, MBFATERRK

The class | innovative therapeutic biological product under
research by the Company, is a new type of premixed dual
insulin analogue. It is made by mixing the long-acting basal
insulin GZR33 under development by the Company and fast-
acting insulin aspart, which is intended to be used to treat
diabetes.

NEEMRBIKMER RS R LMY
The Company's long-acting basal insulin analogue under
development.

NEEMRNILG TR BTREYF R, E—MABAEEIH—
REIKGLP-1IRA (R EEF K- 1R B HDF) Y, ER#MIE
PREYIE M RE 2 BUNE PR AN LB /B &

The class | innovative therapeutic biological product under
research by the Company is a long-acting glucagon-like
peptide-1 (GLP-1) receptor agonist which is expected to be
injected once a week. The approved clinical indications are type
2 diabetes mellitus and obesity/overweight.

SREEMMILEFEBTHREYS &, MASAR T EINS

H-—RNBRKMEBRAGT, MBAFATERR

The class | innovative therapeutic biological product
under research by the Company is expected to be injected
subcutaneously into the human body once a week to be used to
treat diabetes.

NEEHBNEMEMNES, B—F2 NREALAPLTIZIgCIHE,
HFabBMMRESU RIS ABABRN RILITARRME S, 10
FESILIARGIEEFR, AT AT HaRF AT WATEILE
HRFEFFEESEERRREBR

The Company's biosimilar under research is a fully
human recombinant monoclonal IgG1k antibody, with an
antigenbinding site in the Fab segment that binds specifically to
human interleukin IL-17A, and inhibits it from interacting with
the IL-17A receptor. It is used for the treatment of adults with

moderateto-severe plague psoriasis that meets the indications
for systemic therapy or phototherapy.

NEEMOILSFEATHENT G, B —MHXAFEORRE
MU EABNOREZKAF, T2EERDNGCIRIS, PE T BT

28U FR R

The Company's innovative Class 1 therapeutic biologic product
under development is an oral peptide tablet with a novel oral
absorption technology. The main active ingredient of this
product is GZR18, and it is intended for the treatment of type 2
diabetes mellitus.
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EREIERX
Definition of frequently used terms

Icodec

Me Better # 2
Me Better new drug

Me Too ¥ 25
Me Too new drug

wREH. &8
Reporting period, current
period

]
Indicates

5
Indicates

]
Indicates

=]
Indicates

BEMESRBF N EMES R EMEB®, Awigli®) . 2 — A
NEEATHN—RNEMBESREMY, BT A—BA—RETE
NAAHE—EENEMBRSERTR, HHLERTHRARERR
BE

Basal insulin weekly formulation, Awigli®, is a new type of long-
acting insulin analog designed to be injected subcutaneously

once a week to meet the basal insulin needs for the entire
week. It has been approved for use in adult diabetes patients.

SRMAGELEAYIERANIE. BRE. ReMFHFEEENS
BY Bl #7245

Compared with the original drug, it is an innovative drug with
more advantages in drug acting mechanism, efficacy, and
safety.

SRMAELEAMERNE. AL, Z2USFHFESE LM
BY Bl #7 25

Compared with the original drug, it is a highly similar innovative
drug in terms of drug acting mechanism, effectiveness and
safety.

2024F1B1HE2024%6830H
From January 1,2024 to June 30,2024
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BT
SECTION II

ARBN

. REER

CORPORATE INFORMATION

I Information of the Company

Name in Chinese
Name abbreviation in Chinese
Name in English
Name Abbreviation in English

Legal representative

HEHURHBBERLQSE
HZEH
Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.
Gan & Lee
H 820 Zhongru Gan

I Contact person and contact Information

NE W XX B R
A B X E R
NE I E TR
NEMIXEREE
AEHEELRA
—. HBRANMBZEAR
e Name
BX A 3 aik Address
B iE Tel
(= Fax
BFEHE Email

BEENP
ElE
ERTEMNXBEEBRA—KIS
010-80593699

010-80593678

IR@ganlee.com

Secretary to the Board

Rong Zou

No. 8, Nanfeng West 1st Street, Huoxian,
Tongzhou District, Beijing

010-80593699
010-80593678

IR@ganlee.com

. BEEAZEENT

i Summary of the changes in general information

NCIDES gz b

NEEMMANHLEEBR

NGV Bl

YNCIDWAS B =L Rt
IR

BFiEM

Registered address

The historical change of the Company's
registered address

Business address

Postal code of the business address
Website

Email

ERBEMXFEEBRAE—EKS
No. 8, Nanfeng West 1st Street, Huoxian,
Tongzhou District, Beijing

e R N K A B 5 BOE N E = AR

Bl AR EIlL =H85
No. 8, Jingsheng North Third Street,

Jingiao Science and Technology Industrial

Base, Tongzhou Park, Zhongguancun
Science Park, Tongzhou District, Beijing

ERHmEMNKHEERRE KT
No. 8, Nanfeng West 1st Street, Huoxian,
Tongzhou District, Beijing
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M., EEREAZTEMSTEHEEF IV Summary of the change in information disclosure
SiETY and storage location

Name of the newspaper selected (_F &35 1R ) (4 [F IE 35 1R )
by the Company for information "Shanghai Securities News", "China
disclosure Securities Journal"

NEIEENESRERRZ N

The Website address of semi-annual
report

EHFFEIRSHIM LGt

http://www.sse.com.cn

HEHIIEFKREE . LBIEFKFHR
Department of Securities of Gan & Lee,
Shanghai Stock Exchange

Storage location of the Company's
semi-annual report

REFEERSEEMR

1. g = V  Profile of company share
VAN =5 A Ay

BG ZE fh 2 Type of Shares Asl'?zre

= - RIS G
BRELHXZAH Stock exchange Shanghai Stock Exchange

= - HE=H

R& 2= & #R Stock abbreviation Can & Lee

B E AL Stock code 603087
TERIRZE Stock abbreviation before variation Ngrfwe

7 EESE.ME.SREEA VI Changes in directors, supervisors, and senior

04 2B 100 BHAENBREESSE
+TARAREW, BENBEBI(XRTFES
ﬁﬁmJ/_\éZEEEﬁ1Mﬂ<>> B REETK
F.EZBRNRERESEE, £88
EFEx J&l)(L_LZEIiE'*@E%
EAHBEFHHLE, FULRAE L
BIUEFRZARBEN(XTETS R
BEARHNAE)REHS: 2024-
008),

RTEER management of the Company
e BEMRS TEiER
Name Position Scenario of change
ﬁ/i,F\ {% __| EEIJ \_,\— E H% EE
Wei Chen Vice President Appointment
$§ _JEEIJ \_,\— E H%/EE
Zhi Li Vice President Appointment
FHZ 5= BT
Lei Yin Board Departed
NEIEH. BE. EEAGRT Explanation of changes in directors, supervisors and senior
=i B9 1% 58 35t BA management of the Company

On February 19, 2024, the 16th meeting of the fourth Board of
Directors was held, during which the "Proposal on the Appointment
of the Company's Vice President” was reviewed and approved. The
board agreed to appoint Wei Chen and Zhi Li as Vice President of
the Company. Their terms of office will commence from the date
of the board's resolution and will last until the end of the fourth
Board of Directors' term. For more details, please refer to the
"Announcement on the Appointment of Senior Management Personnel”
(Announcement No.: 2024-008) disclosed by the Company on
SSE.
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2024F5817TH, HFEAHULESFEW
NEFFABAEBTH(FHRIRS),
AEEERIPIARERBEHFELQHT
EERS, RRENRBEERRDEME
HMERS . FUARELBIESRS
FARBEI(KTESTHROQAENR
HYRS: 2024-050) o

QNERNABITY . BT
5 B i X 3¢ H it 53 T3
R B R R E R

BXBENAMETEE IR QSH
BEERALEEHERATHN

On May 17, 2024, the Board of Directors of Gan & Lee
Pharmaceuticals. received a "Resignation Report"from Director Mr.
Yin Lei, who has applied to resign from his position as Director
of the Company due to personal reasons. After his resignation,
he will continue to hold other positions within the Company. For
more details, please refer to the Company's announcement on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, "Announcement on the Resignation of
a Director” (Announcement No.: 2024-050).

VIl The Company's equity incentive plan, employee
stock ownership plan, or other employee incentive
measures and their impact

(1) The relevant share incentives have been disclosed in the

interim announcement and there is no progress or change in
their subsequent implementation

= I A8E A
Overview of the matter

QOAFERFIMERZHM It (ER)BELS)
"Summary Announcement of the 2024 Restricted
Stock Incentive Plan (Draft)"

(BEFE =X T RE2024F R HI M & R 3t 2
M REERAREINZEER)

"Supervisory Board’s Verification Opinions on the
List of Incentive Recipients and Public Disclosure of
the Company's 2024 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan"

(XTF2024FRFIERZHBITVABEEABE
ARBHNREEZRATDREBANEEIRS)

"Self-Examination Report on Insider Information and
Stock Trading Activities of Incentive Recipients for the
2024 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan"

(R F RE20225 IR & 14 B it %I 8 — 1
AR ERBREEZ RN ASE)
"Announcement on the Achievement of the First
Lifting Conditions for the 2022 Restricted Stock
Incentive Plan"

(X F O 0F 520224 PR Bl M B 22 80Rh i1 X &8
DIRFIERENAE)
"Announcement Regarding Repurchased for
Cancellation of Certain Restricted Shares under the
2022 Restricted Share Incentive Plan"

RG]

Search Index

2024 F 28208 2B L @IS RN EIES R & £ PTG (http://www.

sse.com.cn) WX A E . (R&EHS: 2024-007)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
February 20, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News', "China Securities Journal” and the
website of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-007)

¥ W2024F 3868 R B FE( LBIEF IR EIEFHIR) K £ 32 W3k (http://www.

sse.com.cn) WX A E . (A EHS: 2024-018)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
March 6, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News" "China Securities Journal” and the
website of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-018)

F2024F 38128 REIEC EBIEFIRNF EIEF R K EZFAM 38 (http://www.

sse.ccom.cn) X RS, (REHRS: 2024-021)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
March 12, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News", "China Securities Journal" and the
website of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-021)

FEN2024F 48258 2B E( EBIESRNAENESFIR) & £ R FAM G (http:/www.

sse.com.cn) X ARG, (R EHRS: 2024-032)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
April 25, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News", "China Securities Journal” and the
website of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-032)

WI2024F 48258 AR E( LEIESFRNPEES R & £ PR s (http://www.

sse.com.cn) I X A& . (R EHRS: 2024-033)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
April 25, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News", "China Securities Journal” and the
website of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-033)
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= I ARE A
Overview of the matter

(5% F20224 R i M AR 32 380 Bh it % 88 — 1 AR BR
REMMBRREE LT RBNRETIEAS)

"Reminder Announcement on the Lifting of
Restrictions and Listing of Restricted Stock for the
First Lifting Period of the 2022 Restricted Stock
Incentive Plan"

(X T8 8B R 52024 4F (R Hll 14 B 32 8U5H 11 XA
M REEHNETFTHRENAE)

"Announcement Regarding Adjustment to the List of
Incentive Recipients and Number of Grants under the
Company's 2024 Restricted Share Incentive Plan"

(X F 20245 REI MR Z 8B XN R
BYREAMERREOQE)

"Announcement Regarding Grant of Restricted
Shares to Incentive Recipients under the 2024
Restricted Share Incentive Plan"

(1 F = K T [0] 22 B]20244F [R 51 1 18 22 8¢ foy 1 %)
M RE TR R FEHXFTIZEE L)

"Supervisory Board's Verification Opinions on
Matters Related to the Grant of Restricted Stock to
Incentive Recipients under the 2024 Restricted Stock
Incentive Plan"

(X F B £ 5580 0 PR &I AR Rad A G AL A Y

N
"Announcement on Notification to Creditors of
Repurchase for Cancellation of Certain Restricted
Shares”

(% F2024 4 [R %) 14 iR 2 30 oy 1f %)/ 8 7 &30 5T
B 2 )

"Announcement on the Completion of Grant
Registration for the 2024 Restricted Stock Incentive
Plan”

TR
Search Index

#2024 F58TH AR E( L BIEFRICPEIESF R K& £ 3R Wk (http:/www.

sse.com.cn) XA S, (REHS: 2024-039)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
May 7, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News', "China Securities Journal" and the website
of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-039)

FM2024F 58168 AR E( EBIEFIRNFEIEFR) K ERZFAM G (http:/www.

sse.com.cn) XA S, (REHS: 2024-044)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
May 16, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News', "China Securities journal” and the
website of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-044)

FH2024F 5816 AR E( EBIEFIRNFEIESIR) R ERFAM L (http://www.

sse.com.cn) WX NS, (REHS: 2024-045)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
May 16, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News", "China Securities Journal” and the
website of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-045)

W I2024F 5816 B AT E (BB FIRNT EIE 53R K& £ PR 34 (http://www.

sse.com.cn) WX AN E ., (REHS: 2024-046)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
May 16, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News", "China Securities Journal” and the
website of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-046)

FW2024F581TBABE(LBIESHRFEIEFIR) K EZFAM s (http:/www.

sse.com.cn) WX AN E . (RERS: 2024-049)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
May 17, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News", "China Securities Journal" and the
website of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-049)

2024 F 5828 AR ATE( LBIESFIRIREIES R K £ P s (http://www.

sse.com.cn) WX NS, (REHS: 2024-052)

For details, please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated
May 28, 2024 in "Shanghai Securities News", "China Securities journal” and the
website of SSE (http://www.sse.com.cn). (Announcement No. 2024-052)

EHAERREXEELERNH
mh1& R

(=)

NETF2024FT7THE25H B 152022 F R
1 M B 2238 Bh 1t X AP 134 B D X R
B 3k % B 14 K #R bR PR & 1Y 28 2 BR &1
MRS 2 4£91+136,46088 , H 1R EIE
EBILEEERTTLRTLES D
Bl I, BIWEHETERE, &
SR/ BB AR136,4608 , RRATE
79601,065,2908% - #1518 & i A 5
F2024F7TE23HF B LBIUESFR
S ML (www.sse.com.cn) BY (X F
20222 BRI 1% B 22 38 b it % 2B 4 BR
BIMERERMBEFELELAE) (DS
455 2024-060) o

(1)

Incentive situations that have not been disclosed in the
temporary announcement or have subsequent developments

On July 25, 2024, the Company repurchased a total of 136,460
restricted shares from the 2022 restricted stock incentive plan
that had been granted to 13 incentive recipients but had not yet
been released from restrictions, and completed the cancellation
at the Shanghai branch of China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited. After the repurchase and
cancellation, the Company reduced its share capital by 136,460
shares and changed its total share capital to 601,065,290
shares. For details, please refer to the "Announcement on the
Implementation of Partial Restricted Stock Repurchase and Cancellation
under the 2022 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan” (Announcement No.
2024-060) published by the Company on the SSE website (www.
sse.com.cn) on July 23, 2024.
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F=ZT ETEVUSEGRNEERMR
SECTION 11l KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS AND STATE OF OPERATION

—. NEIFESIHIENISEiENR | Key accounting data and financial indicators of the
Company
(—) EFERHHIE (1) Key accounting data

BT MM ARM
Unit: RMB

ERI25@N Operating revenue 1,314,892,845.25 1,229,765,113.65 6.92

A= na 7 3 Net profits attributable to
JHEFLETRABRARNEF T shareholders of the listed company 298,904,095.07 134,155,242.69 122.80

. Net profits attributable to
AR T ERRBKRABMERIE shareholders of the listed company

42 M 48 35 F E after deduction of non-recurring 126,906,774.24 102,221,137.11 2415
profits or losses
! -
BEEHEENN SRR H o (s flowfrom operating 66,235,60455  -58165,72117 e

= n a2 = NEt assets attributable to
FAEFLEFTRABRAN SR shareholders of the listed company 10,977,088,892.82 10,742,506,022.92 218
BEF Total assets 11,952,557,407.70  11,715,023,471.80 2.03
(Z) EEMSEIER (I Key financial indicators

BT MM AR™
Unit: RMB

BRERKE (T B) S parnings per share (RME per 0.51 0.24 112.50

wR SR (T B) b o earmings per share (RMB 0.51 0.24 112.50
~dE 2B MRS B 45 Basic earnings per share after

?I]B?ilj _'% EREEHEES deducting nonrecurring profits or 0.21 0.18 16.67

B w (o /) losses (RMB per share)

BINL3SPED R

AT 8 S WG E () o8I0 AVerage retumn on net 274 1.39 Increased by

1.35%

MR IE 2% MR 25 5y inae e Weighted average return on EHN0.10 N E D A
o - 0 net assets after deducting non- 1.16 1.06 Increased by
17 B W = (%) recurring profits or losses (%) 0.10%
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AR EER BBV SE1REY
¥t A

EVWANERERA:

KIREHE W WA NI315Z27T, B
+FFE R N692%, BEEEERTM
Iy

EWWANLLEZTT, B EFRH
BK1151Z7T . Hf, ERHFEE
WANRN1LATIZT, REFFHEK
10.36% o« IREHA, ATVEMT E
RALN2ENRETRE (RE R
TS NRIFIF. ZREXA
BFmPENKEERLRR. RN
TEREHARBEZRTNES T
B, IRFERMEXRTRBONIE, &£
S5FURBDVRENE, BULREAEE
KABNBHNENTX DB AT T
AREXNEFTRNBREZ,
REMA, RRERMELINE
WNEE4,393.138 7. AT &2
BMARERITXITH B TTA
1B, BXxEXNESTEFERRE
THEFEHITHIA

PPARTFTLEHRABRFANSFE .
PPRFLHABRRFRMNRIES
EERENAFEENREA:

AR EMEABRF LT RTAREBEF
. BETETRABRANNRIFS
F R mAYREFE DB 92.99127T
12128 R EEREREEM, £
EARSHARZUEERMETLR
NMEZHRGE, UNLEXRZES
MAFRENRAR TR EFRH
RIBE KA, 2024F E¥F, 1
B EHRAPMIFINIESF KR E6.44127T
(RRARE), BXRAANER
R ENREERNBHRRREE M
Bt NLAZTT, TERRERIEE
REAEH BRI HTRAEMHESE

Description of the Company's key accounting data and

financial indicators

Reasons for changes in operating income:

The operating income for the reporting period was RMB 1.32
billion, an increase of 6.92% over the same period of last year.
The specific reasons are as follows:

Domestic revenue was RMB 1.19 billion, increased by RMB 115
million from the same period of the previous year. Among this,
domestic revenue from sales of preparation was RMB 1.15 billion,
representing an a year-on-year increase of 10.36%. During the
reporting period, the Company participated in the the national drug
centralized procurement (insulin-specific succession). In this round
of centralized procurement, the Company's product prices were
reasonably adjusted. In order to smoothly promote the insulin-
specific succession work and successfully convert the price of the
centralized procurement products, the Company, after friendly
negotiations with commercial companies, agreed to assist with price
adjustments for pre-centralized procurement inventory products
through price compensation. During the reporting period, the
increase in operating income from this centralized procurement
compensation was RMB 43.93 million. As the execution of this
round of centralized procurement in some provinces and cities
was later than July 1, the relevant centralized procurement price
compensation amount is yet to be determined and will be confirmed
in the second half of the year.

Reasons for changes in net profit attributable to shareholders of
listed companies and net profit attributable to shareholders of
listed companies after deducting non-recurring profits and losses:

During the reporting period, the net profit attributable to
shareholders of the listed company, and net profit attributable
to the shareholders of the listed company net of non-recurring
gains and losses during the reporting period were RMB 299
million and RMB 127 million, respectively, representing a
substantial increase compared with the same period of the
previous year. This was primarily due to substantial growth in
gains from changes in the fair value of trading financial assets
and investment income from the disposal of trading financial
assets during the reporting period. In the first half of 2024, the
Company sold securities investments held at the beginning of
the period amounting to RMB 644 million (initial investment
cost), resulting in a total of RMB 141 million in fair value changes
and investment income from the disposal, which was mainly
attributable to the Company's advance capital reserve based
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Bo. BERSHAR, 28 NHEFIL
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on the progress of key R&D projects in order to ensure that the
subsequent Phase Il clinical trials would have sufficient funds
required. The book value of the Company's securities investment
still held at the end of the reporting period was RMB 261 million.

Reasons for changes in net cash flows from operating
activities:

Net cash flows from operating activities in the current reporting
period increased by RMB 124 million as compared with the
previous year, primarily due to the rise in cash receipts from
the sale of goods and provision of labor services in the current
reporting period.

Reasons for changes in basic earnings per share and diluted
earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share were
RMB 0.51 per share and RMB 0.51 per share, respectively.
representing a doubling of the figures for the same period in the
previous year. This growth was driven primarily by an increase in
net profit attributable to shareholders of the listed company in
the current reporting period.

Reasons for changes in basic earnings per share after
deducting non-recurring profit or loss:

Basic earnings per share after deducting non-recurring profits
and losses for the reporting period were RMB 0.21 per share,
representing an 16.67% increase compared with the same
period of the previous year. This was mainly due to an increase
in net profit after non-recurring profit or loss attributable to
shareholders of the listed company for the reporting period.
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—. IREHREFEZER Il Major operation status during the reporting
period

(—) ETEUSHR (1) Main business analysis

1. MSHERAXBEEDIRER 1.

Analysis of changes related items in financial statements and

Bt MM ARM
Unit: RMB

ERNALON Operating income 1,314,892,845.25 1,229,765,113.65 6.92
B A Operating cost 349,098,771.00 322,655,986.20 8.20
HE A Selling expenses 490,979,157.99 465,243,177.81 5.53
& 1 % F General and administrative 102,698,124.09 100,695,377.33 1.99
expenses
W <5 2% B Financial expenses -41,637,912.64 -54,143,382.04 K%fﬂ
s m R&D expenses 266,476,949.60 261,962,985.39 172
gi;ﬂ#iﬂ@ﬂﬁiﬁ (,)\‘;ér;atfnhgﬂa%\g\;rt?g 66,235,604.55 -58,165,721.17 A
gigﬁ\ﬁﬂ#ﬁg R ?‘nevteéifnhgfgivtvij{t?e”; 1198,228,661.48 11,097,472.18 -1,752.25
zigﬁﬁbﬁimmﬁﬁ ?‘Iﬁtagifnhgﬂaocvtvljlrtﬁ’e@ 36,560,745.24 -2,202,856.29 ”_M%ﬁ\

BV WANEHRRERA: ZFE W
WNER EF 18 I00.85127T , BELIE N
6.92% , TEIRAFLE=T =
MBSEFMEERR/— REAEE
R HREMM SER/ ADEERIT
BRI SEARRER";

24 \ HEHURHBERQE

Reasons for changes in operating income: Operating income
for the year increased by RMB 85 million as compared with that
of the previous year, representing a year-on-year increase of
6.92%. For the detailed change reasons, please refer to "SECTION
. KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS AND STATE OF OPERATION / I.
Key accounting data and financial indicators of the Company/
Description of key accounting data and financial indicators of the

Company".
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Reasons for changes in operating cost: Operating costs for the
year increased by RMB 26 million as compared with the previous
year, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.20%, mainly due
to the growth in sales of domestic insulin preparation products,
and consequently operating costs increased in the period.

Reasons for changes in selling expenses: Selling expenses
for the year increased by RMB 26 million compared with the
previous year, a year-on-year increase of 5.53%, mainly due to
the expansion of sales staff during the period as a result of the

increased breadth and depth of publicity.

Reasons for changes in general and administrative expenses:
General and administrative expenses for the year increased by
RMB 2 million compared with the previous year, a year-on-year
increase of 1.99%, basically unchanged from the same period of
the previous year.

Reasons for changes in financial expenses: Financial expenses for
the current year increased by RMB 13 million compared with the
previous year, mainly due to a decrease in foreign exchange gains
resulting from changes in exchange rates

Reasons for changes in R&D expenses: R&D expenses for the
year increased by RMB 5 million compared with the previous
year, a year-on-year increase of 1.72%, basically unchanged from
the same period of the previous year.

Reasons for the change in net cash flows from operating
activities: Net cash flows from operating activities for the
reporting period increased by RMB 124 million compared with
the previous year, mainly due to the increase in cash received
from the sale of goods and provision of labor services during the
reporting period.

Reasons for the change in net cash flows from investing
activities: Net cash flows from investing activities decreased by
RMB 210 million in the current year compared with that of the
previous year, which was mainly attributable to the increase in
cash paid for the purchase of wealth management products
during the reporting period.

Reasons for the change in net cash flows from financing
activities: Net cash flows from financing activities increased
by RMB 39 million in the current year compared with that of
the previous year, mainly due to the increase in the net inflow
of funds received by the Company from the subscription of
restricted share incentive recipients as well as the distribution of
cash dividends during the reporting period.
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Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

Status of overseas assets

2. BHFEFEBESR 2.
(DA ME

(1) Asset size
H 1 15 4 7| 7106,666,511.67 (8
fii: ¢ ™M AR™M), A8Z~HW
b 5190.89% o

Of which: RMB 106.67 million of overseas assets, accounting for
0.89% of total assets.

3. BERGHAREIEBASRREBER 3.

Restrictions on major assets as at the end of the reporting
period

WIUE/I\T MSRE/7;N. GHMS
WRETMEBER/18. FRENTEANE

For details, please refer to "SECTION VIII FINANCIAL REPORTS/
VI. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements/ 18. Assets

R&E with restrictions on ownership or use".
=. EREHRZMENEEI IIl.  Non-recurring profit and loss items and amount

B mH: AKRT
Unit:RMB

FRMERET-LERTE, QFEEIHRE
BEREEENHESD

AR ENRFHE, BE5 Q8
ERZEUWSEIEX. FEEKK
BHE. RRBENITEZTE. WA
B4 7 7= A 15 4R %2 U9 B9 BUAT A B B Sb

BRAASEREELSHEXNERE
HERELSS, FEREUVEESH
BRFENERAGTENAIARANELDD
REURLESRHAESMER AR
EHR @

bR B R BT 2 bR EME W SR N
S H

HMWFEFELEERm E X R m N
=]

Ry R AR

ait

Profit or loss from disposal of non-
current assets, includes elimination of
provision for impairment of assets

Government grants recognized in
profit or loss other than grants which
are closely related to the Company's
business, in line with national policies,
in accordance with defined criteria,
and that have a sustained impact on
the Company's profit or loss

Gains and losses from changes in fair
value of financial assets and liabilities
held by non-financial corporations and
gains and losses from the disposal of
financial assets and liabilities, other
than those used in the effective
hedging activities relating to normal
operating business

Other non-operating revenue or
expenses than the above items

Other profit and loss items that meet
the definition of non-recurring profit
and loss

Less: Income tax effects

Total

563,341.74

4,043,103.84

195,530,338.83

1,503,512.35

793,206.26

30,436,182.19

171,997,320.83
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NABRCRAARITIEFHRTER Explanations shall be made for the non-recurring items identified
HEBEBMEASEIS—IFLE UM by the Company according the "Explanatory Announcement No. 1
mYRFIENTMBEINEANIEZEEMN on Information Disclosure by Companies Publicly Offering Securities -
MAMBEBEEME AN, UL Non-recurring Items", and for the Company identifying the non-
FETIESNABEEREBREE recurring items enumerated in the "Explanatory Announcement No.
NEEIS—FFEUERT)PHIZ 1 0n Information Disclosure by Companies Publicly Offering Securities -
NEEEMMTMERENELEE N Non-recurring ltems" as recurring items.

R E, MiRBERE .

BI:w mM: ARM

Unit: RMB

= Item R E FRE
Amount Reason

BIEWREAIBEE  Amortization of 4,601,817.44 KABRAEFEXNB BN RE RN REINERNEE SR
deferred income The Company recognizes the amortization of deferred income from

asset-related government grants as recurring gains and losses

2024 HEERE
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SECTION IV MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
—. REHBARBMRBITLRE

(=)

(2)

1.

B 5 15 R 5B
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(1

Explanation of the industry and main business
operations of the company during the reporting

period
Company's main business

The Company is primarily dedicated to the high-tech research,
development, production, and sales of insulin analog active
pharmaceutical ingredients (APIs) and injectable, possessing
a comprehensive insulin R&D pipeline. As a pioneering
biopharmaceutical enterprise in China, the Company has
achieved mastery over the technology of industrialized
production of insulin analogs. The Company has successfully
and independently developed several of China's inaugural
thirdgeneration insulin analogs, positioning China among the
select few nations capable of industrial-scale production of these
analogs. The Company's main product portfolio encompasses
a wide range of insulin analogs, including Recombinant Insulin
Glargine Injection (Basalin®), Recombinant Lispro Insulin Injection
(Prandilin®), Mixed Protamine Zinc Recombinant Human Insulin
Lispro (25R) (Prandilin®25), Insulin Aspart Injection (Raplin®),
Insulin Aspart 30 Injection (Raplin®30), and Mixed Protamine
Human Insulin Injection (30R) (Similin®30). These products
cater to the three primary insulin functional segments: long-
acting, fast-acting, and pre-mixed. Furthermore, the Company's
offerings extend into the realm of related medical devices,
featuring the reusable insul in injection pen (GanleePen®) and
the disposable injection pen needle (GanleeFine®), etc., which are
convenient for patients to use in conjunction with each other.

In the future, the Company aims to achieve comprehensive
coverage of its product line for diabetes diagnosis and treatment.
Additionally, the Company is committed to actively investing
in research areas such as chemical drugs, eukaryotic and
prokaryotic protein engineering, oncology, cardiovascular, and
metabolic diseases. The Company's goal is to provide patients
with enhanced and high-quality drug treatment solutions in
those domains.

Company business model

Procurement model

2024FFFERS
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In accordance with the Company's procurement policies,
the procurement department centrally oversees all external
purchasing activities. They are tasked with formulating the
Company's annual procurement strategy and, based on monthly
requirements, guiding the completion of procurement objectives.
The department also handles the onboarding, assessment,
and ongoing management of suppliers, continually seeking
out top-tier suppliers and refining the supplier framework. To
guarantee the safety of production and the steady provision of
raw and auxiliary materials, the quality management department
conducts audits and manages the qualification of these materials
suppliers. When these materials are received into inventory,
the quality management department performs rigorous quality
checks. For items related to engineering and equipment, the
Company either negotiates or tenders, in line with both the
Company's procurement guidelines and national standards, to
finalize the choice of supplier.

Production model

The Production Management Department is responsible for
overseeing the Company's commercial production planning,
process management, production scheduling, and organization.
The department formulates a rolling production plan for the
workshop taking into account the production and sales plans
set out by the Supply Chain Management Department. This
is done in conjunction with the procurement of raw materials
and the current status of product inventory. To cater to the
diverse needs of multiple customers, the department employs
a hybrid production model that integrates both Make-to-Order
and Make-to-Stock strategies. Throughout the entire product
production process, rigorous management is enforced to ensure
quality and efficiency. Furthermore, the Quality Management
Department plays a pivotal role in the production process.
They are tasked with providing continuous quality supervision,
conducting comprehensive testing, and monitoring of every stage
of production. This includes the scrutiny of raw and auxiliary
materials, intermediate products, products awaiting packaging,
and the finished products.

Sales model
(1) Domestic sales model

The Company predominantly adopts a sales approach that
integrates both commercial entities and specialized academic
marketing. For domestic product sales, the Company primarily
utilizes a distributor-based model. This entails selling and
delivering medications to hospitals via pharmaceutical
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distribution firms. These distributors are not responsible for
market expansion or promotional activities. Instead, they submit
orders to the Company in line with the medication needs of
hospitals or pharmacies in their designated distribution zones.
In accordance with the annual "Distribution Agreement" and
specific order details, the Company supplies medications
to its partnering pharmaceutical distributors. It is then the
responsibility of these regional distributors to manage the sales
and logistical delivery of these medications to both hospitals and
retail outlets.

Considering the intricate characteristics of insulin analogs, their
marketing in the local market heavily depends on specialized
academic promotion within the marketing system. This method
of promotion encompasses various aspects, including detailed
information about the product such as indications, methods
of usage, and safety, as well as the latest academic theories
and clinical research findings. Furthermore, it also includes
information about the Company's brand.

(2) Overseas sales model

In alignment with overseas policies and market nuances, the
Company offers a range of international sales products. This
includes insulin Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs), insulin
preparations, pen components, and other medical devices. Our
sales approach is bifurcated into two distinct models: Authorized
distribution model, under which, the Company entrusts its
pharmaceutical products to authorized international distributors,
who then market and sell these products in foreign territories.
Collaborative APl preparation filling with local enterprises
in importing nations, in which, the Company predominantly
collaborates with local entities in the importing nations. These
entities are recognized for their robust drug-filling capabilities,
comprehensive assembly infrastructure, and credentials in
biopharmaceutical manufacturing. Here, the Company is
responsible for exporting the essential raw materials and pen
components. Concurrently, our local partners undertake the
tasks of drug preparation filling, assembling pre-filled injection
pens, and the subsequent sales in their respective regions.

Industry conditions during the reporting period

Industry policy changes

2024FFFEHRS [/ 33
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(1) National centralized volume-based procurement

In February 2024, the National Joint Drug Procurement Office
issued the "Notice on Submitting Procurement Data Related to the
Insulin-specific Centralized Volume-Based Procurement Renewal
Agreement”. The scope of products for data submission in this
renewal VBP remains the same as the six procurement groups
from the first round VBP (the sixth batch of national drug
centralized procurement). The data submission is done online,
with medical institutions at all levels required to compare
their reported quantities with the 2023 historical procurement
volume. In principle, each medical institution's reported quantity
should not be less than 80% of the previous year's procurement
volume. For A-class human insulin products selected in the first
round, the reported quantity should not be less than 40% of the
previous year's procurement volume. For A-class insulin analog
products selected in the first round, the reported quantity
should not be less than 60% of the previous year's procurement
volume. If the reported quantity is less than 80% of the historical
procurement volume, the medical institution must provide an
explanation. Institutions with historical procurement volume
that do not participate in reporting will receive special attention,.
In the successive VBP policy, the state has given a preferential
tilt to the first-round selected Category-A products in terms of
reporting demand volume and has proposed in the draft of the
successive VBP guidelines to allow additional price increases for
pre-filled products with low selection prices, on top of the price
increases from the first round VBP, thus benefiting low-priced
selected enterprises in the procurement process.

In the first-year centralized procurement demand in this round,
the demand for third-generation insulin is 168 million units,
accounting for 70% of the total demand, which represents a 36%
increase compared to first-year centralized procurement demand
in the last round. The demand for second-generation insulin
accounts for 30% this time, a decrease of 12% compared to the
previous share. It is evident that after the implementation of the
initial insulin-specific centralized VBP policy, the market share for
third-generation insulin has rapidly increased, accelerating the
transition to newer insulin generations, with domestic companies
seizing the opportunity to capture more market share.

As a leading domestic insulin company and a frontrunner in
third-generation insulin, the Company actively responds to
national policies. On April 28, 2024, the National Joint Drug
Procurement Office announced the results of the nationwide
VBP (insulin-specific succession). In this round of insulin-specific
successive VBP, the Company retained the previous selection
categories, with mainstream products in high demand being
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classified as Category A. The selected categories for each
product align with national policy directions and the medication
needs of a broad range of diabetes patients. The results of
this round of insulin-specific successive VBP will be gradually
implemented across provinces starting from May 2024. (See the
table below for selected results)

KL HEDUIBRIELMEEXBRELSRK
Table 1: Gan & Lee's selected results in insulin-specific successive VBP

BB

Name
HRERDRIHNR
Long-acting Glargine Injection
NERBFRIFR
Fast-acting Aspart Injection
%8RB ZR30F 5K
Aspart 30 injection
BEBRARBRES EHIKEBOR)
Mixed Protamine Human Insulin InjecWtion (30R)
MEBERSREIHR
Fast-acting Lispro Injection

BERTEAMMREDRRBES E5IR25R)
Mixed Protamine Zinc Lispro Injection (25R)

FRIE N A% (5T) X
Selected price (RMB) Category

65.30 A

25.90 A

25.90 A

25.90 A

35.55 B

35.55 B

BE2024F68, EXEFEEL4AR
ThA#tam. MtSEEMTEE
XKW, BRAREMEREEEHN
HANESK, T BRE—. ENE
BHAHT, EXANZFTTE,
LTEHERAENTERARRKRRER. RIE
M. RUEBRRXEBIENNGFS
H, BMBM™EAMVIR. o
AIRARBERBRNS X, LK
WHEIMIE, RERIRESX
WARELE RS BEMBPIGT, IE
ZRERMEMN2AE .. Tl . A
RS, THIEAZRELEERE. [
B, REMKHASRE R ER MK
ER, BERBMERRNNE, T
RATEERKBIZT KT, REE
REEZMR . SRHAMER

As of June 2024, nine batches of drugs and four batches of
high-value consumables have been organized for VBP at
the national level. The national drug and consumables VBP
has gradually entered a normalized phase. Under the policy
of "synchronization of bidding and procurement, link price
to volume", the VBP rules have been progressively refined,
especially with stricter regulations on meeting clinical needs,
ensuring supply, and deepening the procurement credit
evaluation mechanism. The Company consistently follows
national policies, diligently advancing all tasks, ensuring the
efficient implementation of insulin VBP results, and providing
more comprehensive, professional, and detailed services to
enhance patient quality of life. Additionally, from the perspective
of long-term high-quality development, the Company will
maintain the investment in R&D, continuously improving the level
of diabetes treatment in China, and offering more high-quality
and effective drug options to patients.

2024 HEERE
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(2) Four-equivalent drugs price regulation

In January 2024, the National Healthcare Security Administration
issued the "Notice on Promoting Fair, Honest, Transparent, and
Balanced Pricing of Drugs with the Same Generic Name and Label
Across Provinces”. The notice guides pharmaceutical procurement
agencies to focus on "four-equivalent drugs" and conduct a
comprehensive review and inspection against the existing
national online monitoring prices. By the end of March 2024, the
goal is to eliminate unfair high prices and discriminatory high
prices of " four-equivalent drugs" across provinces, encouraging
more fair and honest pricing behavior from pharmaceutical
companies, promoting greater transparency and balance in
prices across provinces, and safeguarding the legitimate rights
and interests of patients.

The National Healthcare Security Administration requires that
the prices of regularly listed drugs revert to or below the listed
monitoring price. Pharmaceutical procurement agencies are
instructed to urge pharmaceutical companies to treat patients
in all regions fairly. In principle, companies should use the listed
monitoring price as a reference and proactively adjust the
relatively high prices in specific regions, bringing them back to or
below the listed monitoring price.

(3) Healthcare anti-corruption and corporate compliance

In the first half of 2024, a series of policies were released and
implemented in the healthcare sector to promote the reform
of the medical and healthcare system, improve the quality of
public health services and safeguard people's health rights. Anti-
corruption and compliance in the healthcare sector was also one
of the key priorities.

In May 2024, fourteen ministries and commissions, including
the National Health Commission, the National Healthcare
Security Administration, the State Taxation Administration, the
National Audit Office of the People's Republic of China, etc,
jointly formulated and issued the "Notice on Issuing the 2024
Key Work Points for Rectifying Misconduct in the Procurement and
Sale of Pharmaceuticals and Medical Services” The notice covers 5
sections and 15 key points, focusing on continuously regulating
the order of pharmaceutical production and distribution,
intensively addressing misconduct and corruption affecting the
public, resolutely correcting industry irregularities, effectively
safeguarding the safety of medical insurance funds, and
deepening and consolidating the results of the concentrated
rectification efforts.




ITHFERPR: BExERXLETZO
fE, REREMZIEFHNSE
wmE. fEAD . AT AEl
T, ERXERMEFARYIRIEN
ShEI . SRS W EFHE
BAWZEARA, FBIRSZ
BRE. FZUIVHHIBER. ™
FHEIFERK AR "B SkR
FEEEEMITN . ERXTHHE
£E. EFRE. BERAKR. BT
X7 BERMET FANENEEE
MEE, MEEESEL. DA
STEMZERTRE. GRERAE. &
BRREFSHNRENE. ERTAE
MEELRBET. 5. EfF &M
F A, URBBSIERSSEZE
EMITH

GHETRERS

20246838, ESREDRITXT
N CRIWEZ B LK N E2024F
BERIFESIHNEN . BANEXRE
WUFEHR—PREETILERS
TR, BREREeRAHIERSES.
MREERET RDERSEIER.
EF#EHEREFHL. BRXE
ErfoRERRUNAEERE
ETFRaREzERNE,

Hei, #EKRAREIEZF, 2024
FNERIFESEEUEMNE
leEEFREREFELAERG
MEBERERENER. RMEFR
THELEATEERFELAHARRZR
BEEHK, AREERERBET
ESHSGNERMNEBRE B EHEK
g AR TR

BEEBUERNEEBZH T AIER
ETE, REBRYXEEETD
BXBRBOZRM, FRMNEX
Tz BEREETNH. 26
RHESHHHERE KRN, B
RAFAE TN THH
BALEERD, THRENEE

Semi-Annual Report 2024

The key work points clearly state the need to improve and
implement core medical systems to ensure reasonable
examinations, medication, treatment, and standardized charges
during patient visits. There will be a focus on issues such as
taking commissions under the guise of academic lectures,
external testing, external prescriptions, and online medication
sales, as well as problems related to soliciting or illegally receiving
valuables by abusing one's position. Strict action will be taken
against the illegal recycling of medicines, "medical brokers",
"scalpers", and other illegal activities. Special attention will be
given to illegal practices in fields like assisted reproduction,
medical testing, health check-ups, medical aesthetics,
and internet-based healthcare, with a strong emphasis on
punishment. There will be increased regulation of online medical-
related live sales, content, and dissemination order. The focus
will be on cracking down on the disguised and illegal advertising
of medical services, drugs, and medical devices, as well as on
spreading medical-related rumors.

(4) Medical and health services

On June 3, 2024, the General Office of the State Council issued
a notice on the "Key Tasks for Deepening the Reform of the Medical
and Healthcare System in 2024". The notice calls for further
improvement of the healthcare service system in 2024, including
enhancing public health service capabilities, strengthening
primary healthcare services, orderly advancing the establishment
of national medical centers and regional medical centers, and
deepening the reform of closely-knit medical consortiums,
among other initiatives.

In the reform of medical consortiums, the key tasks for 2024
include comprehensively advancing the construction of closely-
knit county-level medical communities by province. This involves
strengthening the capacity of county-level hospitals and
encouraging qualified county-level traditional Chinese medicine
hospitals to take the lead in forming closely-knit county medical
communities. Additionally, performance evaluations for closely-
knit urban medical groups and monitoring the effectiveness
of closely-knit county medical community construction will be
carried out.

As chronic disease management increasingly shifts to primary
healthcare institutions, the Company closely monitors the
development trends of relevant policies for grassroots markets. It
continues to strengthen its academic promotion efforts in rural
areas, primary healthcare institutions, and retail pharmacies.
By enhancing the professionalism of academic promotion
and the precision management capabilities of the market, the
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Company aims to continuously improve the quality of services for
grassroots diabetes patients and increase market recognition of
its products.

In July 2024, the Third Plenary Session of the 20th Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China reviewed and
approved the "Decision of the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China on Further Deepening Reform and Promoting Chinese-
style Modernization” (hereinafter referred to as the "Decision").
This "Decision" consists of 15 sections and 60 articles, proposing
over 300 significant reform measures covering areas such
as the economy, people's livelihood, education, science and
technology, democracy, the rule of law, and party building.
Among these, it emphasizes the deepening of healthcare system
reform, the implementation of a health-prioritized development
strategy, the improvement of the public health system, and
the promotion of social co-governance, medical-prevention
collaboration, and integration. It also calls for strengthening
capabilities in monitoring and early warning, risk assessment,
epidemiological investigation, testing, emergency response, and
medical treatment. Additionally, the "Decision" aims to promote
the coordinated development and governance of healthcare,
medical insurance, and the pharmaceutical industry, expand
access to high-quality healthcare resources, achieve balanced
regional distribution, accelerate the construction of a tiered
medical system, and advance the development of closely-knit
healthcare alliances. It also advocates for the reinforcement of
primary healthcare services, deepening public hospital reform
with a focus on public welfare, establishing a fee mechanism led
by medical services, improving the salary system, and creating
a dynamic adjustment mechanism for staffing. The "Decision"
further aims to guide and regulate the development of private
hospitals, innovate healthcare regulatory measures, and improve
mechanisms supporting the development of innovative drugs
and medical devices, while enhancing the inheritance and
innovation of traditional Chinese medicine.

The Company's position in the industry

With the implementation of China's insulin-specific centralized
procurement in 2022, the Company actively responded to
national policies by securing high-ranking bids across its entire
product line at affordable prices, resulting in access to nearly
10,000 newly admitted medical institutions. Additionally, the
Company gained a significant portion of the market previously
held by foreign enterprises with higher market shares,
ultimately securing a contracted volume of 35.34 million units.
To proactively address the VBP, the Company accelerated the
development of the grassroots market team, expanding the
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academic representative workforce by nearly 1,000, thereby
increasing terminal market coverage. This enabled the Company
to provide more comprehensive academic services to a greater
number of medical institutions and patients, raising awareness
of third-generation insulin analog products among grassroots
patients. Over the past two years of centralized procurement
execution, the Company's product sales have continued to grow,
market coverage has expanded, and market share has further
increased, successfully achieving the strategic objectives of the
first round of insulin-specific VBP.

The insulin successive procurement documents have clarified the
price thresholds for selected categories within each procurement
group, significantly increasing the predictability of the selection
rules. This helps companies develop pricing strategies that
align with market dynamics based on their strategic planning.
The price differences among various selected products have
narrowed compared to the previous procurement, promoting
orderly market competition. The results of this round of VBP
will further guide the market toward choosing third-generation
products with better efficacy and safety, accelerating the
replacement of second-generation insulin products, enhancing
the health management of diabetic patients, and continuously
improving the sense of fulfillment and well-being among diabetic
patients in China.

In the first-year centralized procurement demand of the insulin
successive round, the demand for third-generation insulin
reached 168 million units, accounting for 70% of the total
demand, which is a 36% increase compared to the first year of
the initial VBP demand. Conversely, the demand for second-
generation insulin decreased by 18% compared to the previous
round. This shift demonstrates that the implementation of
the previous procurement policy significantly improved the
accessibility of insulin products, promoted an upgrade in the
medication structure for diabetic patients, and rapidly increased
the market share of third-generation insulin, accelerating the
generational upgrade of insulin. More patients are now willing to
use third-generation insulin products, which offer better efficacy
and higher safety. The process of third-generation insulin analogs
replacing second-generation insulin in the Chinese market has
accelerated. As a company primarily focused on third-generation
insulin products, we are aligning with market demand post-
VBP, not only creating favorable conditions for the transition
from second to third-generation insulin in terms of pricing but
also intensifying product promotion and services in grassroots
markets where third-generation insulin analogs' coverage is
relatively weak. This effort contributes to the transition from
second to third-generation insulin in China.
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In this insulin successive centralized procurement, the Company
still maintains the original mission unchanged, actively
participating in the centralized procurement process. Under
the support of the policy, the prices of the Company's products
were reasonably adjusted, yet multiple products still secured
positions as Category A. Additionally, the Company gained nearly
2,000 new medical institutions (counting different products
covering the same hospital as one) and achieved a first-year
agreement volume of 46.86 million units, representing a 32.6%
increase compared to the previous round VBP. Among these, the
Company's third-generation insulin analog products accounted
for 37% of the total volume of third-generation insulin analog
products in this round of VBP, highlighting the Company's leading
position in the domestic market for third-generation insulin
analog products. The Company plans to leverage its professional
academic promotion team, which possesses leading and
extensive commercialization experience, to continue penetrating
the market. By consistently providing patients with high-quality
medications and excellent supporting services, the Company
aims to increase patient loyalty, support continuous sales
growth, and further expand its market share.

Furthermore, during the reporting period, the Company received
numerous prestigious certifications and honors. In February
2024, the Company was awarded the "CLS 2023 Most Investable
Overseas Enterprise" for its steadfast commitment to expanding
into international markets. In March 2024, the Company was
recognized as one of the top ten industrial enterprises with the
"Gold Award" in the pharmaceutical supply chain for the 2022-
2023 period, highlighting its outstanding corporate strength
and industry influence. In May 2024, the Company received the
"On Health 2023 Star List-Brand Communication Star of the
Year", acknowledging its efforts to promote national brands
on the global stage through its international development
strategy. Also in May 2024, the Company was listed among
the "Top 100 Happiest Companies in China for 2023-2024" by
FESCO, and received the "Common Development Award" for
its diverse health benefits, harmonious cultural atmosphere,
and forward-looking employee development strategy. In June
2024, the Company was recognized as a "B-Level Green Credit
Enterprise in Beijing's Sub-Center" for its continued adherence
to an environmentally prioritized green development philosophy
and practices. In July 2024, the Company ranked among the "Top
20 Chinese Biopharmaceutical Companies for 2023 (including
blood products, vaccines, insulin, etc.)" due to its strong research
capabilities and excellent product quality. These honors not only
reflect Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals' outstanding performance
in brand building, humanistic care, and social responsibility,
but also underscore the Company's leading position in the
pharmaceutical industry.
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In the future, the Company will continue to focus on the
diabetes market, deepening its efforts in the field of blood
glucose reduction. The Company's pipeline includes GZR18
Injection, GZR4 Injection, and GZR101 Injection, which, upon
market release, will provide more treatment options for diabetes
patients and enhance the Company's brand influence and market
share. Additionally, the Company's weekly GLP-TRA injection
product, being developed for the overweight/obesity market,
has the potential to be administered twice a month, which
may open up new market opportunities and create new profit
growth points for the Company. Beyond the diabetes field, the
Company is also expanding R&D into areas such as eukaryotic
and prokaryotic protein engineering, oncology, cardiovascular
diseases, metabolic disorders, etc.

Main performance drivers

In the domestic market, with the in-depth implementation of
the insulin VBP policy, the transition from second-generation
to third-generation insulin and the replacement of imported
products with domestic ones are accelerating in China. The
Company will continue to focus on the grassroots market,
increasing coverage and promoting the upgrade of insulin at
the grassroots level. The Company's professional academic
promotion team will maximize its capabilities, leading to steady
growth in product sales. In the international market, customers
are currently placing greater emphasis on the continuous
stability of product supply and the safety and reliability of
product quality. The Company, with its strong and reliable supply
chain system, ensures the continuity and timeliness of product
supply. At the same time, the Company has gained widespread
market recognition due to its excellent product quality control
processes.

In the future, the Company will continue to implement its
development strategy by actively participating in national
centralized procurement initiatives to better and more
comprehensively serve domestic diabetes patients. The
Company remains committed to its internationalization strategy,
continuously expanding into overseas markets and closely
following the country's "Belt and Road" policy to bring Gan
& Lee's high-quality and stable products to more countries,
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Internally, the Company will persist in cost reduction and
efficiency improvement management, deeply practicing a cost
leadership strategy. The Company will also continue to adhere to
its R&D and innovation strategy by accelerating the progress of
R&D projects, enriching its research pipeline, optimizing product
structures, expanding cooperation models, and engaging in
investment and business development activities to drive the
Company's sustainable high-quality growth.

Analysis of core competitiveness during the

reporting period

Technological Innovation and R&D Advantages

As the first company in China to master the technology
of industrialized production of insulin analogs, Gan & Lee
Pharmaceuticals has been adhering to the corporate motto
of "quality first, innovation forever" since its establishment,
and has successfully researched and developed a number of
third-generation insulin analogs covering the three functional
segments of insulin: long-acting, rapid-acting and premixed
products. While continuously pushing the boundaries of diabetes
treatment, the Company carries the mission of “providing higher
quality medicines and services for humanity” and forges ahead,
actively enaging in R&D of drugs for diabetes-related endocrine
and metabolic diseases, such as obesity/overweight and lipid-
lowering, with the aim of providing patients with more effective
and higher-quality treatment options. The Company adheres to
the principle of combining innovation with generic development,
not only continuously cultivating the new drugs R&D field
for diabetes and related indications but also simultaneously
conducting R&D for other indications. At the same time, it
rapidly advances the development process of both innovative
and generic drugs, continuously expanding its R&D pipeline in
chemical drugs, eukaryotic and prokaryotic protein engineering,
oncology, cardiovascular, and metabolic diseases, and so on,
injecting new vitality into the Company’s sustainable long-
term development. Moreover, by integrating diverse resources
and actively engaging in domestic and international exchanges
and cooperation, the Company further enhances its R&D
capabilities, injecting more vitality into its long-term sustainable
development.

The Company regards R&D as the "lifeline of sustainable
development" and continuously strengthens the R&D investment
and capacity building of its drug R&D team. By establishing
postdoctoral research stations and the collaborating with
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postdoctoral stations with Peking University, Tsinghua University,
and other key national universities to jointly train postdoctoral
researchers, the Company has improved its academic level in
drug research. In addition, the Company has established highly
innovative R&D incubation platforms, including insulin, antibody,
pharmacology-toxicology, and analysis platforms. After years of
development, the Company has established a comprehensive
R&D management system that covers the entire drug
development process from target research, preclinical research,
translational medicine research, clinical trials, to beyond. This
ensures that projects can achieve their intended outcomes.

The Company's clinical team has led and supported numerous
R&D projects across various disciplines, including clinical trial
design, operation, registration, pharmacovigilance, and more,
They have successfully advanced numerous projects to the
clinical stage, both domestically and internationally. Take GZR18
Injection, an investigational drug with indications of type 2
diabetes mellitus and obesity/overweight, as an example. The
project successfully entered the Phase Ib/lla clinical trial stage
and Phase Il clinical trial stage in only eight months and twelve
months, respectively. The Company has driven significant
progress in the project with high efficiency. As of the report
disclosure date, GZR101, GZR4, GZR18 Injections, and GZR18
Tablet are in the clinical trial stage and proceeding in an orderly
manner. The GLR1023 Injection project has received the "Notice of
Approval for Drug Clinical Trial" from the National Medical Products
Administration (NMPA). It is being accelerated in the Phase |
clinical trial.

In 2023, Gan & Lee's Insulin Glargine Injection, Insulin Lispro
Injection, and Insulin Aspart Injection have received file
acceptance from the EMA for their marketing authorization
applications. In May 2024, the Company passed the pre-
approval GMP inspection by the EMA, marking the first time
that a Chinese-manufactured insulin analogue injections had
passed such an inspection, and indicating that the Company's
production facilities comply with EU GMP regulations and are
ready for the commercial production of Insulin Glargine Injection,
Insulin Lispro Injection, Insulin Aspart Injection, and pre-filled
injection pens in the EU. This successful inspection is a crucial
validation of the Company's compliance with world-leading GMP
quality standards, as well as a professional recognition by the
EMA for implementing standardized, procedural, and regulated
management in accordance with EU GMP regulations. In 2023,
Gan & Lee's Insulin Glargine Injection, Insulin Lispro Injection,
and Insulin Aspart Injection have received file acceptance from
the US FDA for their marketing authorization applications.
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Furthermore, the Company welcomed a pre-license inspection
by the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) for the
three biosimilars, namely Insulin Glargine, Lispro, and Aspart
Injection. As of the end of the reporting period, the Company
has received preliminary feedback from the FDA and is currently
working on improvements based on the comments. Necessary
rectifications will be completed as soon as possible. Gan &
Lee's previous clinical comparison trials conducted in the US
and the EU demonstrated that the three biosimilars displayed
comparable PK/PD (pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynamics) to
their respective original reference drugs, and all three biosimilars
were well-tolerated in study participants with good safety
profiles. Through this submission for approval in the US, Gan &
Lee will further bring benefits to more diabetes patients around
the world with increased drug accessibility.

With a professional R&D team and strong independent
innovation R&D capability, the Company has continuously
received the "Certificate of High-tech Enterprise” since 2011. In
March 2024, the Company continued its sustained and focused
efforts in the field of pharmaceutical R&D, receiving the "High-
Tech Enterprise Innovation Capability Evaluation Report" and being
awarded a "AAAAA" rating in the "High-Tech Enterprise Innovation
Capability Evaluation.” Moving forward, the Company will continue
to uphold the spirit of innovation, deepen technological
research and development, and drive ongoing progress in
the pharmaceutical industry, contributing further to the
advancement of human health.

Advantages of the layout of the whole product line

As a leading Chinese company in recombinant insulin technology,
the Company has a complete insulin R&D pipeline with five
insulin analog products and one human insulin product. These
products cover the three functional segments of insulin: long-
acting, fast-acting, and pre-mixed. In addition to the already
marketed and mature second-generation and third-generation
insulins, the Company is actively developing and advancing
fourth-generation insulins and other cutting-edge drugs and
therapies related to diabetes treatment. The Company is also
expanding into oral antidiabetic drugs, targeting areas such
as oral GLP-1RA, DPP-4i, SGLT-2i, and others. As of the report
disclosure date, Gantangwei® (Sitagliptin Tablet), the Company's
first oral antidiabetic drug, has officially been shipped and
entered the market sales phase.
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trials in its global development.
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Table 2: Layout of the Company's major hypoglycemic and weight-loss drugs and device products

While continually breaking through the treatment barriers
in diabetes, the Company is also actively expanding its drug
development efforts in related fields. Currently, the Company's
self-developed innovative biological product GLP-1RA (GZR18),
indicated for obesity/overweight, has entered Phase Il clinical

The Company's insulin delivery device product pipeline
is comprehensive, including reusable insulin pen devices,
disposable insulin pen devices and needles, and so on, which
not only effectively ensures the Company's supply of insulin
preparation products and services, but also provides the
Company with new avenues for profit growth.

oK1 53362 23
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Fourth-generation basal (long-acting)

AL HUR (W AR B R & 75 67
Fourth-generation pre-mixed (dual
insulin analog)
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Third-generation basal (long-acting)
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Third-generation rapid-acting (Aspart)

= R R (¥ )

Third-generation rapid-acting

B& RS (Lispro)

Drugs Injection

© : =R R (%30

Third-generation pre-mixed (Aspart
30)

=R (W fH25)

Third-generation pre-mixed (Lispro

25)

ZRIUR
Second-generation pre-mixed

GLP-1RA

@
Products

GZR4 7T 5 &
GZR04 Injection

GZR1017* 59 &
GZR101 Injection
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Basalin®

e
Raplin®

b

Prandilin®
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Raplin®30
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Prandilin®25

EE

Similin®30

GZR187E §1 &
GZR18 Injection
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Progress in domestic

R&D

000000

000000

000000

& [ fiE
Indications

8 R 9%
Diabetes

18 PR %
Diabetes

1 PR 9%
Diabetes

V& PR 5
Diabetes

V& FR 5
Diabetes

¥E BR 5
Diabetes

18 R %
Diabetes

18 R %
Diabetes

2BUKEIRE « BB R/

BE
Type 2 diabetes
mellitus and
obesity/
overweight
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Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Products Progress in domestic Indications
R&D

GLP-1RA GZR18 K 2 EU ¥E PR R

GZR18 Tablet ‘.OOOO Type 2

diabetes
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Sitagliptin dTyEetZ

iabetes

mellitus

% & 1 AR %1 7 . ) ,

Drugs Oral DPP-4i FIHE 55T 000000 2BUNE R R

Linagliptin dTyEetZ

iabetes

mellitus
SGLT-2i B 55 2B ¥E PR R

Empagliflozin ....'O Type 2

diabetes

mellitus
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GanleePen .‘.“‘

Insulin Pen (reusable)
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Insulin Pen (disposable) Pen components ...“‘
2 1l — R 1B P T 59 2 B 3k EHE /
Medical Device Disposable pen needles for Reusable  Injection needle 000000
insulin pens
—RMBRERERERX FREe 000000 /
Disposable pen needles for GanleeFine®

disposable insulin pens

32 I PR ER I /3R —HA I PR “HR R =8 lm R LR i
Submission of clinical Phase I clinical Phase Il clinical Phase Ill clinical Application for Listing  Listing

application/approval

[ JeleJolele; ( 1 JoJeolele; 000000 000000 000000 000000
ATENB@BKNTZFR, /F To meet the increasing market demand, the Company is actively
WERREHFERER. BAl, 2 advancing its production capacity expansion. The expansion
BIFET BB ETRTSE R EH project is progressing in a structured and orderly manner, and
R, Mt eRREERARE ™SR once fully operational, it will provide robust support for the
FlE R HERSIERE, BOA commercial production of the Company's products, reinforcing
SEERFATMEMNETRESR our product portfolio in diabetes treatment. Concurrently,
Bo. BINXNEIEMTBREHIEXIG the Company is also actively pursuing relevant clinical trials
PRI ES , LUHA SR SR T2 48 R 9% K BB B to establish a strong presence in the diabetes and obesity
BT MRSEE—R2H, treatment market in the future.
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Cost Leadership Advantage

The Company has a highly experienced R&D and industrialization
team, well-equipped to the rapid translate laboratory results into
industrialization. Drawing on years of R&D and manufacturing
experience, the Company has established a technologically
advanced and scientifically driven production facility. Continuous
process optimization ensures the highest standards of product
quality and cost control, in line with our ongoing commitment to
a cost-leading strategy. The Company is dedicated to providing
more accessible and affordable medicines for diabetic patients
worldwide. Additionally, we are driving the substitution of
domestic industries and technologies, enhancing the quality
and competitiveness of domestic products, replacing imported
products, and achieving localization and development goals. This
approach ensures that domestic diabetic patients have access
to necessary medicines at a reasonable price, reducing their
financial burden.

The Company employs a comprehensive strategy of integrating
cost control throughout all operational activities. We have
implemented an effective cost control system across the entire
value chain - from product R&D, material procurement, and
manufacturing to sales and after-sale services. Simultaneously,
we continuously refine our lean management system, which
strengthen the integration across the value chains, contributing
to our goals of cost reduction and efficiency goals.

Following the implementation of volume-based procurement,
the Company has leveraged this advantage to consistently
increase product sales volume, thereby improving production
capacity utilization, realizing economies of sales, and further
reducing production costs to maintain and strengthen our cost
advantage. Moreover, through measures such as expanding
production scale, enhancing production management, and
optimizing resource allocation, the Company ensures quality of
its drugs and improve production efficiency, securing sufficient
supply for volume-based procurement. As production volume
grow, the fixed cost per unit will decrease, further accentuating
the benefits of economies of scale. The Company will continue
to leverage its cost and scale advantages to support ongoing
investments in marketing and R&D, ensuring sustainable growth.
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Internationalization strategy advantage

During the reporting period, the Company not only maintained
stable business relationships with numerous international
pharmaceutical companies but also actively expanded its global
team, investing in market and local distribution on a regional and
national basis, and exploring diversified international markets to
promote localization efforts. Currently, the Company's approved
product categories for international markets include various insulin
APls, cartridge injections, pre-filled injections, reusable insulin
injection pens, disposable injection pen needles, and other related
products. Going forward, the Company will continue to expand its
comprehensive product portfolio in diabetes treatment on a global
scale, aiming to provide high-quality products and services through
multifaceted collaborations.

The internationalization strategy is a crucial component of
the Company's vision to "establish a global market presence."
Since initiating this internationalization strategy in 2005, the
Company's current focus has been:

Occupy the high ground of registration standards

Building on its strengths in the R&D of biologics, the Company
has accelerated the progress of its research projects. The
Company is dedicated to introducing high-quality domestically
produced medicines to the global market, with the aim of
enhancing the accessibility and affordability of insulin products
worldwide. This strategy positions the Company to stand out in
international competition, further solidifying and elevating its
market position.

In December 2021, the Company's received clearance to initiate
the Phase 1 clinical trial in the United States for its proposed
investigational once-weekly long-acting (GLP-1TRA) GZR18
Injection, targeting type 2 diabetes mellitus. The first subject's
dosing was successfully completed in March 2022.

As of the end of the reporting period, there are only two biosimilar
insulin glargine products that have been approved by the US FDA
to be interchangeable with their reference products. Currently,
no biosimilar insulins for either insulin lispro or insulin aspart
are interchangeable with their reference products in the US. Our
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company, as a leading Chinese biopharmaceutical enterprise that
was among the first domestically to submit applications for the
marketing of biosimilar insulin products in Europe and the United
States, has successfully passed the Pre-approval (GMP) Inspection
by the EMA in May 2024. This demonstrates the company’s potential
and strength as an industry leader. The company is committed
to promoting domestically produced high-quality medicines to
the global market, aiming to enhance the global accessibility and
affordability of insulin products. This endeavor is intended to secure
a position in the international competition, further consolidating and
enhancing the company's market position..

The Company also leverages the advantageous resources of local
enterprises in emerging markets to advance the registration of
drugs and medical devices. Emerging markets are increasingly
becoming a key stage for the Company's global expansion.
Furthermore, the Company has accelerated the registration
process for medical devices, with the disposable insulin pen
needle (GanleeFine®) is the first product of the Company to be
registered and approved by the US FDA.

Synchronized global market development

(1) Developed Markets countries such as Europe and the United
States of America: In 2018, Gan & Lee signed a DEVELOPMENT,
COMMERCIALIZATION, AND LICENSE AGREEMENT with Sandoz
AG. Under the terms of the agreement, Sandoz has the right
to commercialize the three biosimilar medicines upon approval
in specific regions including the United States, Europe, and
other key territories. Gan & Lee is responsible for drug
development (including clinical research) and supply. With its
extensive experience in R&D, production, and sales of diabetes
drugs in China, coupled with superior product quality and
cost advantages, the Company is well-positioned to capture
significant market share in the European and the US.

(2) Emerging Markets: The Company has successfully introduced
its advantageous resources into emerging countries markets
through two significant strategies: localized production and
operation. This has enabled the rapid international business
development and expanded the Company’s global footprint. In
the current global market environment, the Company's stable
production capacity is highly favored by the market, earning
strong recognition from customers. As a result, more customers
are actively seeking partnership with the Company, leading to
an increased international sales orders and accelerated revenue
growth.
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Discussion and analysis of business conditions
Business Overview

The year 2024 marks a pivotal year in the national insulin
centralized procurement process, bridging the initial and
subsequent phases of procurement. Not only did the Company
successfully complete the first round of centralized procurement,
but it also smoothly transitioned into the successive insulin
round. This year is equally crucial for the Company as it seizes
new opportunities and embarks on new ventures. Responding
actively to the call of the state, the Company capitalized on
the advantages gained from the first round of centralized
procurement and effectively leveraged them in this round. All six
insulin products submitted by the Company were successfully
selected, with all participating categories featuring Category A
products. Additionally, the Company secured a higher agreement
volume and gained access to nearly 2,000 new medical
institutions. These achievements underscore the Company's
strength and competitiveness in the diabetes treatment field. In
the first half of 2024, the Company achieved operating revenue
of RMB 1,314.89 million, representing a 6.92% increase year-
on-year. Domestic sales revenue reached RMB 1,188.33 million,
up to 10.70% compared to the same period of the last year.
The Company's net profit attributable to shareholders of listed
companies amounted to RMB 298.90 million, an impressive
increase of 122.80% year-on-year.

In the international market, while maintaining stable business
relationships with numerous global pharmaceutical companies,
the Company actively expanded its international team, invested
in regional and national markets, localized distribution channels,
and explored diversified international markets. International
sales revenue amounted to RMB 125.17 million, representing an
increase of 15.90% over the same period last year.

Looking forward, the Company will continue to adhere to its
corporate mission of "quality first, innovation forever", striving
to enhance product quality and service standards. We remain
committed to providing patients with safer and more effective
treatment options and contributing to the development of a
Healthy China.

During the reporting period, the Company primarily
focused on and completed the following tasks:

Focus on innovation and strengthening research and
development capabilities

Science and technology are the first productive forces, and
innovation is the first driving force behind developemnt. The
Third Plenary Session of the 20th Central Committee of the
Party emphasized the importance of establishing an institutional
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mechanism that fully supports innovation. This strategic initiative
highlights the core role of innovation in national development
and provides clear direction for enterprise growth. In this
context, enterprises, as the main drivers of technological
innovation, bear significant responsibility. They must adhere
to the innovation leadership, accelerate the development of
new quality productive forces, and thereby enhance their
sustainable profitability. This is not only a necessity for the
enterprises themselves but also a critical for social progress.
Gan & Lee is a steadfast practitioner of this philosophy. The
Company consistently prioritized R&D and innovation as its
core principles, continuously exploring the path of product
development and technological advancement. The Company
remains committed to independent innovation and R&D, with
endogenous growth as the primary driving force. While making
breakthroughs in diabetes treatment, the Company has actively
invested in drug R&D in other fields and has also established a
robust R&D pipeline in the autoimmune sector. As of the report
disclosure date, the biologics in clinical development include
GZR18 Injection, GZR18 Tablet, GZR4 Injection, and GZR101
Injection. Additionally, GLR1023 Injection has received "Notice of
Approval for Drug Clinical Trial" from the NMPA and is currently
accelerating the Phase 1 clinical trial. Moreover, the marketing
application of Empagliflozin Tablet and Linagliptin Tablet have
been accepted by NMPA and are expected to be approved in
2025.

(1) Long-acting GLP-1RA (glucagon-like peptide-1 receptor
agonist): GZR18 Injection

The Company's investigational new Class 1 drug, GZR18
Injection, is a long-acting GLP-1RA (glucagon-like peptide-1
receptor agonist) with 94% homology to endogenous GLP-
1 (glucagonlike peptide-1) in the human body. The proposed
indications for GZR18 Injection are type 2 diabetes mellitus and
obesity/ overweight. The results of the Phase Ib/lla clinical trial
for obesity/overweight were presented in June 2024 at the 84th
ADA Scientific Sessions. This clinical trial was a randomized,
double-blind, placebo-controlled, multiple dose-escalation study
of GZR18 Injection in Chinese obese/overweight patients. The
results demonstrated that once-weekly (QW) and bi-weekly
(Q2W) dosing of GZR18 Injection for 35 weeks resulted in an
average weight loss of 17.8% (QW) and 12.8% (Q2W), respectively,
in Chinese obese subjects, and a 18.6% versus 13.5% weigh loss
compared to the placebo group (a weight gain of 0.7%).
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Figure 1: GZR18 weight changes (35 weeks)
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GZR18 demonstrated superior weight loss efficacy compared
to single-target Semaglutide and dual-target Tirzepatide in
the similar study duration. The feasibility of biweekly dosing
of GZR18 was explored, with this regimen showing excellent
weight loss and a favorable safety profile. In July, following the
ADA conference, the Company announced top-line data from a
multicenter, randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled Phase
llb clinical trial designed to evaluate the weight loss efficacy of
GZR18 in the overweight/obese population. The results indicated
that subjects in the GZR18 Injection group continued to lose
weight at 30 weeks. Currently, there is no biweekly GLP-1RA
formulation available worldwide. Therefore, GZR18 Injection is
expected to become the world's first biweekly formulation of
GLP-1RA.

Globally, the GLP-TRA market size is growing rapidly and is
expected to reach USD 155.6 billion by 2030 (Source: IQVIA). In
China, the market share of GLP-1RA in the domestic diabetes
drug market is still relatively low compared to the global market,
indicating significant growth potential. The Company's R&D
strategy, which includes advancing clinical trials in both China
and the US, is expected to enhance the Company's market
presence domestically and internationally.

Currently, many pharmaceutical companies in China are
entering the GLP-1RA market, but securing a significant future
market share will depend not just on the speed of current
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R&D but more critically on commercialization capabilities. The
commercialization of a product is influenced by its efficacy,
production capacity, and the strength of its commercialization
sales team. Our company has distinct advantages in these
areas: First, while ensuring the safety and efficacy of the drug,
the Company actively seeks to differentiate its products and
enhance efficacy to remain competitive in the market. Our
Company is the first enterprise to conduct a head-to-head
evaluation of drug efficacy against Semaglutide injection with
a domestic single-target GLP-TRA. Additionally, our GZR18
Injection, a potential twice-a-month regimen, is indicate
for diabetes as well as obesity/overweight. Currently, global
research on GLP-1RA for obesity/overweight indications is still
in the early market stages, with only two related weekly regimen
product approved in China. The Company's early positioning
provides a significant product differentiation advantage. Second,
the Company has ample production capacity and strong product
supply assurance capabilities. We possess sufficient land and
factory reserves, leading large-scale production capabilities, and
continuously increasing capacity to meet the rapidly growing
demands in China and globally. Third, with deep expertise in
diabetes treatment, extensive commercialization experience,
and a professional academic promotion team of over 2,000
members, our mature sales channels and a strong brand
advantage position the Company for the rapid commercialization
of its products after launch.

(2) Innovative oral GLP-1RA: GZR18 Tablet

The Company's investigational oral GLP-1RA preparation
(GZR18 Tablet) utilizes advanced oral drug delivery technology,
combining the drug molecule with an absorption enhancer to
improve the bioavailability, thus enabling the oral delivery of the
GZR18 molecule. GZR18 Tablet is a new Class 1 hypoglycemic
drug for the treatment of type 2 diabetes mellitus, which can
significantly improve the key pathological and physiological
deficiencies in type 2 diabetes patients. The drugs also enriches
the Company's pipeline of novel oral hypoglycemic drug, offering
additional treatment options for diabetes patients.

In April 2024, GZR18 Tablet completed the first administration
to subject in a Chinese Phase 1 clinical trial for type 2 diabetes
mellitus. GZR18 Tablet is expected to effectively address the
challenges of low bioavailability and poor efficacy associated
with oral polypeptide GLP-1RAs, thereby improving patient
compliance and providing patients a richer range of therapeutic
options.

Currently, only one oral GLP-1RA is available on the global

market. The approval of GZR18 Tablet's clinical trial in China
underscore the Company's ongoing innovation in drug discovery
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and development and marks a significant step forward in the
pursuit of new oral antidiabetic drugs.

(3) Fourth-generation insulin analog: GZR4 Injection

GZR4 Injection is the Company's innovative Class 1 therapeutic
biologic under development, belonging to the fourth-generation
insulin analog. It is expected to be administered by subcutaneous
injection once a week in humans to achieve smooth basal blood
glucose control. GZR4 Injection is anticipated to significantly
reduce the frequency of insulin injections for patients. Compared
to daily preparation, insulin weekly preparations could reduce
the number of insulin injections by more than 300 times per year,
significantly lowering the frequency of injections, overcoming
patients' barriers to injections, and reducing the treatment
burden, thereby improving the overall patient adherence and
quality of life. Currently, only one insulin weekly preparation
product is approved worldwide, and GZR4 Injection is expected
to provide a new treatment option for patients.

In June 2024, the Company presented the results of a preclinical
study of GZR4 at the 84th ADA Scientific Sessions. The results
of the study showed that GZR4 significantly increased affinity
for human serum albumin (HSA) and significantly decreased
insulin receptor affinity compared to another weekly insulin
preparation, Icodec; and that GZR4 has 2-3 times the glucose-
lowering efficacy of Icodec in studies of diabetic animal models;
therefore, GZR4 is expected to help diabetic patients overcome
the barriers of injections, initiate insulin therapy earlier, optimize
long-term diabetes management, and improve patient quality of
life. Currently, GZR4 has completed two phase | clinical trials and
global development is in phase Il clinical trial.

Diabetes is a chronic disease that requires long-term medication.
Insulin is an essential treatment option and the ultimate
medication for diabetes, with basal insulin serving as the
cornerstone of insulin therapy. Currently, basal insulin products
are primarily daily formulations, accounting for a significant share
of the insulin market. However, with the iterative upgrading of
products and the increasing demand from patients for better
insulin options, weekly insulin formulations are poised to become
a blockbuster product that could reshape the current insulin
market landscape. Our company has consistently been a leading
domestic enterprise in the third-generation basal insulin market.
Developing weekly insulin formulations is not only a strategic
choice but also a reflection of our commitment to providing
better treatment options for diabetes patients.
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(4) Fourth-generation novel pre-mixed dual insulin
compound formulation: GZR101 Injection

GZR101 Injection is the Company's self-developed fourth-
generation novel pre-mixed dual insulin compound formulation.
It is made by mixing the investigational long-acting basal insulin
GZR33 and rapid-acting insulin aspart, with the indications
of diabetes. GZR101 Injection could mimic the biphasic
physiological insulin secretion pattern under once-daily
administration, thereby covering both fasting plasma glucose
control and post-prandial glucose control. It could also lower
glucose level smoothly and improve the rate of glucose control,
Moreover, GZR101 Injection may simplify treatment to improve
patient compliance and reduce treatment burden, thereby
optimizing long-term management of diabetes and reducing or
delaying the occurrence of complications.

In December 2023, GZR101 Injection completed the first dosing
to subject in a head-to-head phase Il clinical trial with insulin
degludec/insulin aspart injection. In June 2024, the Company
presented the results of a preclinical study of GZR101 at the
84th ADA Scientific Sessions. Results show that the duration of
glucose-lowering effect of basal insulin component (GZR33) in
GZR101 could last up to 72 hours, and no significant peak was
observed at 24 hours at steady state after multiple injections.
When combing GZR33 with insulin aspart (Raplin® as a dual-
insulin formulation, they can achieve the smooth fasting and
post-prandial glucose control throughout the day. GZR101 is
expected to make an important contribution to the glycemic
standardization and reduction of the risk of hypoglycemia for the
diabetic patients worldwide. Currently, GZR101 has completed
two Phase 1 clinical trials and global development is in phase I
clinical trial.

China's insulin market is primarily dominated by pre-mixed
insulin, with second-generation insulin accounting for a larger
share than in developed countries such as the EU and the
US. With the continuously implementation of the centralized
procurement policy, the decreased prices of third-generation
pre-mixed insulin products has been increasing patient
accessibility and accelerating the replacement of second-
generation insulin with third-generation insulin analog.
Leveraging the advantages of national procurement, our
company has achieved rapid market entry and expanded
grassroots coverage, leading to the swift growth of premixed
insulin products, Prandilin®25 and Raplin®30. Building on this
success, the Company is now developing the fourth-generation
novel pre-mixed dual insulin compound formulation, GZR101
Injection, which will further enhance patient compliance and
expand patients' medication options.
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(5) Biosimilar monoclonal antibody : GLR1023 Injection

In line with the Company's long-term strategic development, it
has amassed extensive experience in R&D and GMP production,
particularly in the upscaling of large-scale fermentation process
for insulin, chromatography purification of recombinant
proteins, and formulation process development. The Company
has strategically expanded into the monoclonal antibody
sector, focusing on developing large-scale animal cell culture
technology. The production process for antibody drugs mirrors
that of insulin, involving stages like cell expansion, fermentation
cultivation, multi-step purification, and formulation filling.
Initiating monoclonal antibody drug production will enhance the
utilization efficiency of the Company's future production lines.

The GLR1023 Injection, a fully human recombinant monoclonal
lgG1 k antibody independently developed by the Company and
classified as a proposed biosimilar to Secukinumab, specifically
binds to human interleukin-17A via its Fab segment, inhibiting its
interaction with IL-17A receptors. It is indicated for the treatment
of moderate to severe plaque psoriasis in adults who qualify for
systemic therapy or phototherapy.

In July 2023, the Company was granted the "Notice of Approval
for Drug Clinical Trial" from the National Food and Drug
Administration for GLR1023 Injection. The approved indication is
the treatment of moderate to severe plaque psoriasis in adults
who qualify for systemic therapy or phototherapy. This approval
marks the Company's first biosimilar monoclonal antibody
to receive clinical trial authorization. Currently, the Company
is expediting the Phase 1 clinical trials of GLR1023 Injection
with the aim of quickly delivering affordable, accessible, safe,
and effective treatment option for psoriasis patients, thereby
benefiting a broader patient population.

As the end of the reporting period, the Secukinumab Injection
produced exclusively by Novartis remains the only approved
product of its kind available in China. According to data
from the National Psoriasis Foundation in the United States,
approximately 125 million people worldwide suffer from
psoriasis, with a global prevalence of 2% to 3%, affecting
individuals across all genders and age groups. The 2023 global
sales of Secukinumab Injection reached USD 4.98 billion
(source: Novartis 2023 Annual Report). Based on the data
from Pharnexcloud, domestic hospitals sales of Secukinumab
injection in 2023 reached RMB 2.037 billion, reflecting a 45%
year-on-year increase, indicating rapid market growth. Currently,
no generic version of Secukinumab injection has been approved
for marketing in the domestic market. GLR1023 Injection holds
promising market potential, and if approved and marketed, it
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will expand the Company's product pipeline and is expected to
enhance the Company's core competitiveness.

(6) Oral hypoglycemic drug SGLT-2 (sodium-glucose co-
transporter-2) inhibitor: Empagliflozin Tablet

Empagliflozin Tablet, developed by the Company, is an oral
small-molecule hypoglycemic drug that acts as an SGLT-2
(sodium-glucose co-transporter-2) inhibitor. By inhibiting SGLT-2,
it reduces the reabsorption of glucose by the kidneys, lowers the
renal glucose threshold, and increases glucose excretion in the
urine, thereby lowering blood sugar levels.

In July 2023, the Company's application for the marketing
authorization of Empagliflozin Tablet was accepted by NMPA,
This is the Company's first SGLT-2 inhibitor to apply for
marketing approval. Once marketed, this new hypoglycemic
product will open a new door for numerous diabetes patients by
providing a new, safe, and effective option, ensuring that more
patients can benefit from technological advancements, achieving
better disease management and improved quality of life.

Currently, the original product by Boehringer Ingelheim and
15 generic versions have been approved for marketing in the
domestic market. According to the IQVIA database, global
sales of Empagliflozin in 2023 amounted to USD 18.9 billion,
with projections reaching USD 20.5 billion by 2030. Data from
Pharnexcloud shows that the sales of Empagliflozin Tablet
in domestic hospitals in 2023 reached RMB 454 million, a
30% year-on-year increase, indicating rapid market growth,
Empagliflozin Tablet has promising market prospects and
significant potential. If approved and marketed, it will expand
the Company's hypoglycemic product line, enhance the overall
market competitiveness in the diabetes medication field, and
solidify the Company's leading position in the domestic diabetes
treatment market.

(7) Oral hypoglycemic drug DPP-4 (dipeptidyl peptidase-4)
inhibitor: Linagliptin Tablet

Linagliptin Tablet, developed by the Company, is an oral small-
molecule hypoglycemic drug that acts as a DPP-4 (dipeptidyl
peptidase-4) inhibitor. By inhibiting DPP-4 activity, it reduces
the inactivation of GLP-1 (glucagon-like peptide-1) in the body,
thereby enhancing the strength and duration of endogenous
GLP-1's effect within physiological concentration ranges, leading
to lowered blood glucose levels.

In May 2024, the Company's marketing application for Linagliptin
Tablet was accepted by the CDE (Center for Drug Evaluation) of
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the NMPA. Linagliptin Tablet represents the Company's second
DPP-4 inhibitor to seek marketing approval. Upon launch, this
product will provide a widely accessible, safe, and effective
hypoglycemic treatment option, aimed at benefiting a broader
patient population and offering higher-quality treatment
options.

Currently, the original product from Boehringer Ingelheim and
eight generic versions have been approved for marketing in
the domestic market. According to the IQVIA database, global
sales of Linagliptin Tablet in 2023 reached USD 2.585 billion,
Data from Pharnexcloud shows that the domestic hospitals’
sales of Linagliptin tablet in 2023 amounted to RMB 1.22 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 22%, indicating rapid
market growth. Linagliptin Tablet is the world’'s only DPP-4
inhibitor that does not require dosage adjustment based on
the patient's liver or kidney function. It offers advantages such
as stable blood glucose reduction, a low risk of hypoglycemia,
fewer gastrointestinal adverse effects, and being more suitable
for elderly patients and those with liver or kidney impairment.
Linagliptin Tablet has promising market prospects and significant
market potential. If approved and marketed, it will expand the
Company's hypoglycemic product line, enhance the overall
market competitiveness in the diabetes medication field, and
solidify the Company's leading position in the domestic diabetes
treatment market.

Ready for new opportunities in centralized procurement

The insulin-specific centralized procurement has had a
positive and profound impact on the development of the
biopharmaceutical industry. By using a volume-based pricing
model, it has effectively reduced the medication burden for
domestic patients and increased the accessibility of insulin,
As a leading domestic insulin producer, the Company actively
participates in the insulin-specific centralized procurement.
Following the execution of the previous procurement cycle, the
Company leveraged the price advantages from being an Category
A selected supplier and the nearly 10,000 newly approved
medical institutions to significantly increase sales and market
share. In the 2024 insulin-specific centralized procurement,
the demand data for the Company's products have shown a
significant increase. The first-year centralized procurement
demand in this round is 41.77 million units, which is an increase
of 25.13 million units compared to first-year centralized
procurement demand in the last round, representing a growth
rate of 151%. Among these, third-generation insulin analog
products account for 24% of the total first-year procurement
demand for third-generation insulin, increase by 10% from
the last round, making the Company the second largest in the
industry, just behind Novo Nordisk. The growth in mealtime and
pre-mixed products is even more remarkable, with growth rates
of 381% and 564%, respectively.
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On March 29, 2024, the National Joint Drug Procurement Office
released the "National Drug Centralized Procurement Document”
(Insulin-specific Succession). The document stipulates that all
companies must submit their application materials by 10:00 AM
on April 23, 2024, and the application information will be publicly
disclosed on the same day. The procurement cycle will start from
the date of the selected results and will last until December 31,
2027.

(1) Selection rules for centralized procurement bidding

The procurement document for the insulin successive
procurement specifies the pricing lines for selected product
categories within each procurement group. Within each
procurement group, products are classified into three categories
(A, B, and C) based on the selection criteria and ranking rules,
combined with price levels. The specific rules for the pricing lines
in each group are as follows:

®3 BRWAFEN LN

Table 3: Pricing line rules for each procurement group

RXWARFS
Procurement
group number name

1

PCE=E=R i

ERNABSZR
Mealtime human
insulin

EMARIER

Basal human insulin

FUREABR B R
Pre-mixed human
insulin

ERNBEZREMUY
Mealtime insulin
analog

EMBESREMY
Basal insulin analog

FURER S ERMNUY
Pre-mixed insulin
analog

CEFmMIBL (/%)
Procurement group  Category C product pricing Category B product pricing  Category A product pricing
line (RMB per unit)

BEMmMigL (/%) AL RN 8L (Oo/%)

line (RMB per unit) line (RMB per unit)

29.56 28.62 25.93
29.56 28.62 25.93
29.56 28.62 25.93
38.42 35.55 25.93

75.53 65.33

38.42 35.55 25.93

BRRR ERXRTERRRTERE,

RRAKFBNIEET, —RBESHE
NMBEE=ZREN. MEBRIHRXE
Mg —2, ERBEZHRSI
SHHERTHRRLR2MEERN=
K@, MRT=ARSEZEHR_N
BROETmOHE, EERERKER
ERREEKF, PHERDEE
RimEBEENRKBREMERE

Source: centralized procurement public information and Company
collation

Regarding the pricing line for Category A products in this round
of VBP, second-generation insulin is consistent with that for third-
generation mealtime and pre-mixed insulin analogs. The national
policy is guiding the market to choose third-generation products
with better efficacy and safety, accelerating the replacement of
second-generation insulin products with third-generation ones. This
approach enhances the level of health management for diabetes
patients and continuously improves the sense of access and well-
being among diabetes patients in China.
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(2) FRERPELR (2) Results of this round of VBP

202448288, ERARAMEKE On April 28, 2024, the National Joint Drug Procurement Office
REODRERTTE2ELHRERXY announced the results of the national centralized procurement
(BRRTMEL)NPELSR, (Insulin-specific succession).

®4. 2EAMETPRB(RERLTIEL) FRELERE

Table 4: Selected results of centralized procurement (insulin-specific succession)

Bl g —ZB3ml: 3008 U (EL) ARARDMRMN
(All companies provide quotes based on a standard specification of 3ml:300 units (cartridge))

SRRBEEXRANERER

Third-generation insulin analog procurement group results

H4: (BNBEEREXREGRE)
Group 4: (Mealtime insulin analogs)

R =@ | (/%) BESEFEXBMER KEEME (AX) ARENEE (R
Selected Company Product Quotation (RMB & (/%) Quantity acquired %)
category per unit) First-year (10,000 units) Available
procurement redistribution
demand (10,000 quantity (10,000
Units) units)
A HFEHIW % 25.90 545.99 491.39
Gan & Lee Aspart
A HERMEX BES 18.87 45.71 45.71
HEC Aspart
A BURE % 23.98 122.50 110.25 694.95
Tonghua Aspart
Dongbao
A BB ECHB % 25.91 104.49 94.04
United Aspart

Laboratories

A EFEY % 25.92 8.96 717
Huisheng Pharm Aspart

HEH i B

B Gan & Lee Lispro 35.55 173.59 95.47

B EMEE % 35.55 2,103.11 1,367.02
NVO Aspart

B LT B 0 B 35.55 2.08 1.14
Wanbang Lispro
Biopharma

C L3k Fuli 38.42 686.34 240.22
LLY Lispro

C FFE3E Ey 38.42 76.31 34.34
SNY Glulisine

it 3,869.08 2,486.76 694.95

Total
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A5: (RutEDERMUY)
Group 5: (Basal insulin analog)

ikl (|7 = i | (75/3%) RSEFERBUER REEME (B X) ARENEE (R
Selected Company Product Quotation (RMB g (F%) Quantity acquired %)
category per unit) First-year (10,000 units) Available
procurement redistribution
demand (10,000 quantity (10,000
Units) units)
A HEH BB 65.30 1,701.56 1,531.40
Gan & Lee Glargine
A BUKRE B 63.33 430.20 430.20
Tonghua Glargine
Dongbao
A HEERMANX HiE 63.37 119.38 107.44 440.60
HEC Glargine
A TTEE B 63.88 5.41 4.33
Boao Bio Glargine
A KB BCHB HiE 65.31 461.77 415.59
United Glargine
Laboratories
A FIEIE HE 65.32 1,882.04 1,882.04
SNY Glargine
A PSR Hi5 65.33 5.15 412
Wanbang Glargine
Biopharma
7R 37 B A i
B Shandong New P 75.53 2.08 115
. Glargine
Time
C EMIEE ma 77.11 702.69 386.48
NVO Degludec
C 1% HiE 77.11 39.34 17.70
LLY Glargine
Rt WA 4% 82.20 313.30
Not selected NVO Detemir
&it 5,662.92 4,780.46 440.60
Total
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¢H6: (FRBEDREXMY)
Group 6: (Pre-mixed insulin analogs)

ikl (|7 = i & (T/3%) BSEFEXMER REEME(AX) TUREIEE(CR
Selected Company Product Quotation (RMB & (5 %) Quantity acquired %)
category per unit) First-year (10,000 units) Available
procurement redistribution
demand (10,000 quantity (10,000
Units) units)
A HFEHI i7%30 25.90 1,327.83 1,195.05
Gan & Lee Aspart 30
A BURE I"1%30/50 23.98 129.83 129.83
Tonghua Aspart 30/50
Dongbao
A HERMANX 1430 25.87 87.49 69.99 1,365.74
HEC Aspart 30
A R B B 1430 2591 282.93 254.64
United Aspart 30
Laboratories
A BEAEY I"1%30/50 25.92 25.43 20.34
Huisheng Pharm Aspart 30/50
HFEH #FB25R
B Gan & Lee Lispro 25R 35.55 226.44 124.54
B EAIERE I"1%30/50 35.55 3,458.28 2,247.88
NVO Aspart 30/50
C L% #BE25R/50R 38.42 1,756.41 614.74
LLY Lispro 25R/50R
Aait 7,294.65 4,657.03 1,365.74
Total
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“THRERBEERENERLER

Second-generation insulin procurement group results

Hl: (BEWRNABRERER)
Group 1: (Mealtime human insulin)

Rk = i | (7T/%) BESEEXMER REEME(AX) TREHIEE2(H
Selected Company Product Quotation (RMB & (/%) Quantity acquired %)
category per unit) First-year (10,000 units) Available
procurement redistribution
demand (10,000 quantity (10,000
units) units)
A HERMN R 25.87 11.64 11.64
HEC
A aREXxZE R 25.90 192.87 173.58
HTBT
A 8 BX F R 25.91 87.00 78.30 46.34
United

Laboratories

A BIOTON S.A./ R 25.92 10.55 9.50
& Bz
BIOTON S.A./
YIFAN
A BUYERE R 25.93 639.49 575.54
Tonghua
Dongbao
A LA R R 25.93 90.68 81.62
Wanbang
Biopharma
ENIEE
C NVO R 29.56 89.97 40.49
F Ak ALK& & R 31.00 18.26 -
Not selected LY
AR 4 RTAE R 0.30
Not quoted Asia-East
&1t 1,140.76 970.66 46.34
Total
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H2: (EMABRRR)
Group 2: (Basal human insulin)

Bkl |7 = f wM (T/%) BEEERMER REEME(AxR) FREIEE(H
Selected Company Product Quotation (RMB & (5 %) Quantity acquired %)
category per unit) First-year (10,000 units) Available
procurement redistribution
demand (10,000 quantity (10,000
Units) units)
A alRxE N 25.90 0.57 0.57
HTBT
A BB N 2591 20.29 18.26
United
Laboratories
A BIOTON S.A./ N 25.92 1.99 1.79 27.63
BN
BIOTON S.A./
YIFAN
A BUARE N 25.93 44.27 39.84
Tonghua
Dongbao
A 35
C NVO N 25.56 41.36 14.47
KA ALk N 31.00 10.53 -
Not selected LLY
RAIE R YIE N 32.00 0.74 -
Not selected Wanbang
Biopharma
KB EREHE N 0.00 .
Not quoted Asia-East
it 119.75 74.94 27.63
Total
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H3: FMRABEBRR)

Group 3: (Pre-mixed human insulin)

XD W = & BN (T/X) BESEXWER FEEME(FR) ARGHERE(S
Selected Company Product Quotation (RMB & (5 %) Quantity acquired %)
category per unit) First-year (10,000 units) Available
procurement redistribution
demand (10,000 quantity (10,000
units) units)
A HEH 30R 25.90 201.53 181.38
Gan & Lee
A BIOTON S.A./ 30R 25.79 122.60 122.60
A HEZMI
BIOTON S.A./
YIFAN
A HERMAX  30R 25.87 71.61 57.29 739.67
HEC
A BREXE 30R 25.90 54.42 48.98
HTBT
A BB B 3B 30R/50R 25.91 1,120.41 1,008.37
United

Laboratories

A BUYARE 30R/40R/50R 25.93 2,412.16 2,170.95
Tonghua
Dongbao
A LB 30R 25.93 13.29 11.96
Wanbang
Biopharma
BB E
C NVO 30R/50R 29.56 1,717.39 772.83
C ALk 30R 29.56 395.94 17817
LLY
&it 6,109.35 4,552.52 739.67
Total
@ iz N A% MSelected Price
MEREXRENRTUEY, — 5 From the selected prices this round of VBP, it can be observed
BRERENBRREAEXRE—D that, on one hand, the highest selected price has decreased
FARNREN, &XWARNFIENE further compared to the last round of VBP, and the price
NXEHEE~E, BRNTFRERATG range within each procurement group has narrowed. This is
NEFATRS, ESEWREA beneficial for enhancing orderly and fair competition in the
BEFARLZWKE, RUTHES, market, encouraging enterprises to improve their academic and
HMRIEEDRERNRUEEM, professional levels, deepen market coverage, and ensure the
TUrIgeR BENRSRMEREK, effective implementation of insulin procurement. This, in turn,
F—HHE, ZRBEIRLXEMUYENE continuously enhances patients' sense of gain and well-being.
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On the other hand, the prices of third-generation insulin analogs
still have some products priced at the same level as, or even
lower than, second-generation human insulin products. This will
continue to advance the process of replacing second-generation
human insulin with third-generation insulin analogs in China,
allowing more diabetes patients to benefit from the better efficacy
and higher safety of third-generation insulin products sooner.

a. Third-generation insulin analog group

Third-generation insulin analog, designed for once-daily
injection, are the preferred choice for initiating insulin therapy in
diabetes patients. In the VBP, the selected prices have decreased
overall, with the price range further narrowing from the previous
difference of RMB 30.49 between the highest and lowest
prices to RMB 13.78. This result not only aids in increasing both
doctors' and patients' willingness to choose third-generation
insulin analogs and enhances the accessibility of these drugs but
also contributes to orderly and fair market competition.

This round of VBP, the Company's product, Insulin Glargine
Injection (Basalin®), has achieved a reasonable price adjustment
while still remaining in the low-price Category A. As the
Company's flagship product for many years, it not only boasts
robust product quality and a positive market reputation but also
has a considerable market share and high patient acceptance.
The Company's first-year centralized procurement demand in
this round has increased the most compared to the last round,
reaching 4.25 million units. This represents one of the significant
achievements since the last VBP, reflecting the Company's
ongoing market development efforts. With the increase in the
first-year centralized procurement demand, the Company's
selected price has undergone a reasonable adjustment,
which will help further enhance product service quality and
consolidate and increase market share.
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B2 ARERXRELERERXRTERWHPHFNITE (=K E )
Figure 2: Comparison of selection prices between the current and previous VBP for major companies
(third-generation basal)
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b. Third-generation mealtime and pre-mixed insulin analog group

In this round of VBP, the trends for third-generation mealtime
and pre-mixed insulin analogs are largely consistent. Firstly,
the price range has narrowed, and secondly, all foreign
companies have exited the Category A competition. This creates
opportunities for domestic companies, accelerating the process
of replacing imported insulin products with domestically
produced ones and gradually shifting the market share that was
previously dominated by foreign companies.

As one of the first domestic companies to enter the third-
generation mealtime and pre-mixed insulin analog market, the
Company leveraged the advantages gained from the previous
centralized procurement to secure numerous new hospital
entries and agreement volumes. By rapidly expanding its
academic promotion team and enhancing its professional and
academic expertise, the Company has seen continuous growth
in market share over the past two years. The Company's first-
year centralized procurement demand in this round has shown
even more substantial growth, with rates of 381% and 564%,
respectively. With continued selection in Category A, the
Company has gained access to more new medical institutions
with increased procurement volumes. This will further
enhance the Company's insulin product revenue structure and
profitability.

2024FFFERS
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E3: ARERXRELERERTERWHFNIEL (ZRER)
Figure 3: Comparison of selection prices between the current and previous VBP for major companies
(third-generation mealtime)
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E4: ARERELERERTEELWHFENTLE (ZAFR
Figure 4: Comparison of selection prices between the current and previous VBP for major companies
(third-generation pre-mixed)
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(3) Procurement demand for the first year of this round of VBP

As the VBP continues to be implemented, insulin accessibility
and market coverage are expanding significantly. In this round of
VBP, the first-year centralized procurement demand in this round
totals 242 million units, representing an increase of 28 million
units or 13% compared to the first-year centralized procurement
demand in the last round. The changes in the first-year
centralized procurement demand across different procurement
groups over the past two years indicate that, while the total
market volume is rising, there have been substantial shifts in
the structure of the procurement groups. Except for a slight
increase in the demand for human mealtime insulin, the demand
for other human insulin groups has decreased significantly.
The proportion of third-generation insulin analogs' first-year
centralized procurement demand has increased from 58% in
the previous procurement to 70% in this round. All categories of
third-generation insulin analog products have seen substantial
increases in first-year centralized procurement demand, with
the demand for third-generation basal insulin analog increasing
by 19.75 million units, the largest growth among all groups. This
trend suggests that more doctors and patients are opting for
third-generation insulin analog products due to their better
efficacy and higher safety. Among these, insulin glargine, a third-
generation insulin analog product administered once daily, is
particularly favored by the market.

ES5: MAREXRFERENLLE

Figure 5: Comparison of procurement demand volumes in the two rounds
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NBEEREXREFRBERERN
ATTH:, REXAEREFERY
FREBIEM2513F %, BKEXXK
151% . 2 mBBELZAXFTUE
=, NRTFEMER . RB&TmE
FRMEREYEKEE, HPE
B A PR~ BV IB K ENAI XL, 15
KX 55179 381% . 564%

The Company's first-year centralized procurement demand in
this round is 41.77 million units, representing an increase of
25.13 million units or 151% compared to the first-year centralized
procurement demand in the last round. The total quantity now
ranks second in the industry, only behind Novo Nordisk. All of
the Company's products have shown significant growth in first-
year centralized procurement demand, with mealtime and pre-
mixed products experiencing particularly notable increases, with
growth rates of 381% and 564%, respectively.

E6: 2021F 52024 FRBERMERERITE
Figure 6: Statistical chart of insulin centralized procurement demand volumes for 2021 and 2024

2021 procurement
demand (10,000 units)  demand (10,000 units)

2024 procurement
Unit: 10,000 units

B2 FHEKRE (52 B 2U4FEFERE (%) B4 Ax

41 B ABRSE -908
G1 Mealtime human insulin 1, 141

Second-  4H2 HEABERE 249
generation G2 Basal human insulin 120

G3 Pre-mixed human insulin 5, 109
G4 Mealtime insulin analog 3, 869
Third- 28 5 EREFRS =200 3, 688
generation G5 Basal insulin analog 5, 663
H 6 FURIR D REMY) 6, 101
G6 Pre-mixed insulin analog 7,295
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(4) Centralized procurement agreement volume this round of VBP

The procurement cycle for this round of VBP will run from the
implementation date of the selected results until December
31, 2027. According to the VBP rules, the total base quantity
awarded to all centralized procurement groups amounts to 175
million units, with an additional 33.15 million units available
for redistribution, resulting in a total centralized procurement
agreement volume of 208 million units for the first year of the
VBP. Of this, third-generation insulin analogs account for a total
agreement volume of 144 million units, representing 69% of the
total agreement volume for all procurement groups.

In this insulin procurement, the Company secured a total
centralized procurement agreement volume of 46.86 million
units (basic quantity of 36.19 million units and redistribution
quantity of 10.67 million units), representing an increase of 11.52
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million units or 32.6% compared to the previous round of VBP.
Of this, the agreement volume for insulin analogs was 43.55
million units, accounting for 30% of the total third-generation
agreement volume. Within the third-generation insulin group,
the Company obtained a basic quantity of 34.38 million units,
representing 29% of the total third-generation basic volume, and
a redistribution quantity of 9.17 million units, representing 37%
of the total third-generation allocated volume. The significant
procurement volume achieved by the Company is attributable
to the strategic planning from the previous round of VBP. In
the last round, the Company won bids for all products, with
many selected in Category A, gaining access to nearly 10,000
new medical institutions. Seizing this opportunity, the Company
rapidly expanded its academic promotion team, focused on
and refined its grassroots market management, and continually
increased market recognition of its brand. This rapid growth in
product sales and market share laid a solid foundation for the
substantial increase in procurement agreement volume in this
round.

E7: 204F&EX =" mhNERTE
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Figure 7: Evolution of centralized procurement agreement volumes for third-generation products in 2024
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The continuous increase in the Company's centralized
procurement agreement volume not only reflects the high
recognition of the Company's products and brand in the market
but also provides stronger confidence for the Company to
further enhance its professional and academic service levels and
accelerate market expansion.

(5) Coverage of medical institutions

In the previous round of VBP, the Company secured high-priority
bids for all products and gained access to nearly 10,000 new
medical institutions (with different products covering the same
hospital counted as one). Leveraging the advantages gained
from the last centralized procurement, the Company rapidly
expanded its academic promotion team and accelerated the
implementation of insulin centralized procurement. As a result,
the Company's market coverage continued to increase, reaching
37,000 medical institutions by the end of 2023. In this round of
VBP, the Company has once again gained access to nearly 2,000
new medical institutions (with different products covering the
same hospital counted as one), further expanding its market
coverage.

E8: HF2NIFESETINHNEZHELTHE
Figure 8: Change in the number of medical institutions covered by Gan & Lee from 2021 to present
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Note 1: Net Number of new medical institutions: The number of newly
added medical institutions in a given year minus the number of medical
institutions that were reduced in the same year.

Note 2: Different products covering the same hospital are counted as
one.

From the perspective of individual products, the Company
has secured a substantial number of new medical institutions
in both rounds of VBP. This achievement helps the Company
continuously enhance and deepen its brand influence, further
expand market coverage, and improve the accessibility of its

products.

B MREXEBF=ZABRIEHENETHIHREK
Figure 9: Number of new medical institutions approved for Gan & Lee's third-generation insulin analog in
two rounds of VBP
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The Company will continue to follow national policies closely,
seizing new development opportunities presented by the VBP
initiative, to actively expand its domestic market, strengthen
academic promotion activities, and further penetrate market
coverage. By enhancing brand recognition, the Company aims
to increase patient loyalty, supporting continuous sales growth
and further solidifying its position as a leading insulin company
in China. To ensure the secure supply of the centralized
procurement agreement volume, the Company will take multiple
measures, such as lean production, supply chain assurance,
and capacity enhancement, to prepare for post-procurement
supply security. The Company remains committed to research
and innovation, providing patients with more high-quality and
effective medication options.
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Expanding globally and extending into international markets

The Company remains committed to expanding its global
market presence to provide high-quality pharmaceutical
solutions for more diabetes patients. International market
expansion is a crucial component of the Company's globalization
strategy. In the process of internationalization, the Company
actively supports the national "Belt and Road" initiative,
deepening international cooperation under this framework,
and accelerating product certification in the EU and the U.S..
This effort continually expands the Company's market share
and influence internationally, contributing to global diabetes
management with Gan & Lee's solutions.

While continuing to deepen and expand the promotion of
existing products in overseas markets, the Company is actively
exploring diversified models for overseas business expansion.
The major emerging markets overseas are flourishing, each
with its highlights. During the reporting period, the Company
successfully entered the markets of Bolivia and Mexico in the
Latin American region as a Marketing Authorization Holder
(MAH), marking a further enhancement of its independent sales
capabilities and a deeper localization of Gan & Lee in overseas
markets. In the Asia-Pacific region, the Company's first insulin
aspart 30 injection product was launched in Bangladesh,
signifying the successful localization of the insulin aspart 30
project overseas. In the Middle East and North Africa (MENA)
region, the Company signed agreements with several countries
and initiated product registration and access processes,
indicating that the Company's key emerging markets have
achieved comprehensive coverage.

The Company's overseas revenue continues to increase, and
the overseas product structure is further optimized. During the
reporting period, the order volume of the Company's products
in emerging markets overseas increased, and international sales
revenue increased by 15.90% year-on-year. The export product
structure has been further optimized, and the export volume
of insulin aspart 30 injection has achieved zero breakthrough.
The export volume of medical equipment products has steadily
increased, and the Company's strategic advantage in combining
medicine and medical equipment has been further highlighted.

The Company's international image has been further
established, and its brand reputation has gradually improved.
During the reporting period, a Brazilian client, through
technology transfer cooperation with the Company, became
the first local enterprise in Brazil capable of insulin production.
Currently, the Brazilian client's insulin production facility in
Minas Gerais has obtained ANVISA approval and is now ready
to commence production. The completion of this factory
symbolizes the deep cooperation between China and Brazil in
the field of high-precision medicine. Furthermore, the Company
has repeatedly served as an outstanding representative of
enterprises in Beijing, participating in foreign affairs activities

such as "Foreign Diplomats Visit Beijing", indicating the




S5EMMN BEITEEHILRF
SNEED), RIEBERBXING R
BEESKY, EBBRRRE,

e 5h, 2024558, A8 @I TEMA
LEHHERGMPRE, XBEEF
BB R LMY L 5K E R ETEMA
WGMPHRE , MEERENETIK
R aMAGMPEMNER, EA
EEHRBEBRINR. BHREREER
AR NEESREIFBRLMNIE
FARNENMBRLUEF M
XEPTERSEFHEMNBEHH IR
PX—EEERANHED,

BT ELEHTmIEREE W AR
SR, NB=ZHEFHAYGZRIS .
GZRAFM GZRIOLTE £84/RADARI F =
WHIER BN R ESRE, AR
BAERTEHRTEERNE ZHER
*xF, BU TABTENERRE A
RAENMETUMBIAL S, &
MTRBABIEFLFLME. 15
SUELTCENERBEENA
FHRABE DR R D, H—F T
REIMNELKTIEE,

RORD, MRHEZIR

NBERBRRKRBEE, AR
BAFmEANRESFRENDURGEH
REFERD, REMA, 2B ME
EHKEEMERIKR, UERE
REBHRETHERENR

BERERIINTBHHHREYT X,
NREBEABHEBKHNITEFTK, F
HEBHRAHREIITG, A7
¢RI UK E 2 —Hm
B, MEILMT, IFARBEZKRE
mEFEN, BEATHMELKE AL
EMENEE—F, REKKRE2
Fmin g . TZ2E . RERE,
HRRBESIFENRRETEN,
HAOMANEEMRER. FRRY
B2 I raEETNEEAR
EFEM . WARIRFESEt—H
MEBEREENHET B. KFHR
B Eyrasm B Rk HEMEE &
Fo BXEMKBERREEME
AIE RSN EEMSKE, Hi
ERNBERESFRIGHEERIME

Semi-Annual Report 2024

Company's commitment to advancing cooperation at higher
levels and in more sophisticated ways.

In May 2024, the Company passed the pre-approval GMP
inspection by the EMA, marking the first time that a Chinese-
manufactured insulin analogue injections had passed such
an inspection, and indicating that the Company's production
facilities comply with EU GMP regulations and are ready for
the commercial production of Insulin Glargine Injection, Insulin
Lispro Injection, Insulin Aspart Injection, and pre-filled injection
pens in the EU. This is another milestone in the process of the
Chinese insulin company entering the European market.

In addition to the ongoing contribution of the listed products
to international sales revenue, the Company's three innovative
drugs, GZR18, GZR4 and GZR101, made a significant impact at
the 84th ADA Scientific Conference, attracting wider academic
attention worldwide. This demonstrated the Company's
leading position and scientific research strength in diabetes
frontier research, reflecting the Company's ability and
determination to continuously empower overseas customers,
continuously improve the treatment status of diabetes patients
worldwide, and further enhance the Company's global market
competitiveness.

Unite efforts and accelerate project construction

To meet the Company's future development strategy, enhance
the competitiveness of its product technology and improve
its comprehensive R&D production capabilities, during the
reporting period, the Company accelerated the construction
of various ongoing projects to strengthen its development
momentum and meet market growth demands.

As the domestic and international product markets continue to
expand, to meet the growing order demands and to facilitate the
Company's expansion into overseas markets, the Company has
invested in and is constructing Phase | of the Linyi production
base in Shandong Province, as shown in Figure 10. This site is
set to become the Company's second largest pharmaceutical
production base and a crucial step in establishing the global
commercial network. Following rigorous product standards,
process standards, and quality standards, the Company plans
to build a high-standard production base aimed at becoming
the largest in scale, most comprehensive in product range,
and most concentrated in innovative diabetes medication
production nationwide. Phase | of the Shandong Linyi production
base includes facilities for biopharmaceuticals, chemical
pharmaceuticals, medical devices, and other supporting
infrastructure. Relevant infrastructure has been progressively
solidified to meet planned operational readiness, with ongoing

2024FFFERS



76 \ HFEHURHBERAS

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

MR, HEHTIZRIERFRT
B, RAFMEAERARS FEHIT
KE. #EREWER, £EWHAH
MEERIFRNBELFEAM
MRERESEHNKQRETHEA
AZREFUARETVREKRBWE
AEBRBHTEBN B

BRFR: BEFUR KELRE

Rk, RAHMEDMNE

NREENHHERTUMFRD
BT, REF BmRMNEEHN,
RNEFEBBRHEUEREE. S
ME, BREAE. UEETHES
o BEHSTER-NEEFEEE
A4, WRW. CfE. EF.UR
SHTHRAFEEE, KIUMHLE
BEUTHNEEHZNRENE, 18
BENENBHEMDEME. EMH
NEEFrE, BEIS5HNERET
EEMERXR. EPXBF, &£
BRBMRMNUNESD, REEY
AN AN BEB RSN -
HAreEfYEREE, BHR
£, REBEX. XENBEFHERMH
NEEITAREREMRN, BRZIIB
=Nl AEIEUNNEFEE
MF RN, 5 RE % m&Y)

process validation and regulatory filings for other ongoing
projects according to construction progress and work plans.
As of the disclosure date, the Fast-acting Lispro Injection
(Prandilin®) and the Mixed Protamine Zinc Lispro Injection (25R)
(Prandilin®25) have completed the submission of the Company's
commissioned production in Gan & Lee Shangdong and received
the acceptance notification from the National Medical Products
Administration.

E10: W7 Im o 4 7= B i
Figure 10: Linyi Production Base in Shandong Province

Source: Actual photos of Gan & Lee Shandong's factory area

Strive for progress while maintaining stability, and enhance
the resilience of the supply chain

In order to respond rapidly to changes in the VBP market and
fluctuations in demand, maintain product quality and a stable
supply, and enhance the Company's market competitiveness,
the Company is continuously enhancing supply chain flexibility,
improving efficiency, reducing costs, and optimizing processes.
By continually enhancing the supply chain information
management system, we are able to facilitate collaborative
platform management for procurement, warehousing, inventory,
logistics and other areas. This enables information-sharing
and real-time collaboration across the supply chain, enhancing
transparency and synergy. In terms of supplier collaboration,
we can increase our procurement scale and bargaining
power, obtain better supply priority and more competitive
prices by establishing trust and reciprocal relationships with
suppliers, and by implementing a centralized procurement
strategy. Furthermore, the management of supply contracts
must be continuously improved, with responsibilities, quality
requirements and delivery times clarified. This will ensure that
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suppliers fulfil their commitments and guarantee supply, while
establishing accountability mechanisms. Furthermore, effective
inventory management and demand forecasting will ensure
sufficient product and material reserves to avoid shortages or
surpluses. In terms of supplier development and management
for domestic substitution, an independent development team
has been established to continuously develop diversified
suppliers, ensuring alternative supply channels and reducing
the risks associated with single-source supply. Under the
premise of meeting quality and performance requirements, the
Company is gradually advancing and implementing domestic
substitution to enhance product competitiveness and respond
to market challenges. In terms of cost control, the Company
continuously optimizes procurement costs through tendering,
price negotiations, and strategic partnerships, thereby
improving product quality, reducing costs, enhancing market
competitiveness, and ensuring the Company's long-term
development.

Quality oriented, strengthening quality management

In the past six months, the Company has consistently adhered
to its corporate mission of "Quality First, innovation forever®",
continuously strengthening the construction of the quality
management system. Through a series of management
optimization measures, the Company has ensured the quality
and safety of its pharmaceutical production. The Company has
continuously reinforced quality supervision, ensuring that every
production step strictly follows the requirements of the National
Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) for pharmaceuticals. This
commitment guarantees the quality and safety of the Company's
products, providing high-quality and reliable medicines to
patients.

(1) Successfully passed EMA's pre-approval GMP inspection
for the first time

In May 2024, Gan & Lee received a formal notification from
the EMA, stating that the company's manufacturing facility
complies with the requirements of EU GMP regulations and
is ready for commercial manufacturing of Insulin Glargine
Pre-filled Injection Pen, Insulin Lispro Pre-filled Injection
Pen, Insulin Aspart Pre-filled Injection Pen. This signifies that
Gan & Lee's drug substances, finished products, and pre-
filled injection pens manufacturing line have successfully
passed the GMP Inspection by the EMA, and it is the first
time domestic manufacturer of Insulin analog injection
passed the EMA inspection. The EMA inspection team carried
out a detailed and thorough evaluation of the company's
manufacturing capabilities/standards, integrity of the quality
system, and readiness for commercial production. The
successful result of this inspection is the verification of Gan &
Lee's world-leading quality standard in GMP compliance.
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(2) Strengthening quality system management

The Company places great importance on optimizing quality
system management, particularly in light of the selection
of various products in VBP, including the Company's Mixed
Protamine Human Insulin Injection (30R), Fast-acting Lispro
Injection, Fast-acting Aspart Injection, Long-acting Glargine
Injection, Mixed Protamine Zinc Lispro Injection (25R), and
Aspart 30 injection, as well as the acceleration of international
development. During the reporting period, the Company
continued to optimize the systems for deviation management,
change management, commissioned production management,
and supervision management. It also streamlined job transfer
processes to enhance data security and improve quality
management efficiency and timeliness.

In the future, the Company will actively respond to the
Shanghai Stock Exchange's initiative on the special action
regarding "Enhance Quality, Improve Efficiency, and Focus
on Returns", and continue to implement the 2024 "Enhance
Quality, Improve Efficiency, and Focus on Returns" action plan.
We will maintain a focus on our core business, guided by high-
quality and sustainable development, and leverage cost control
and efficient operations to maximize corporate benefits. By
building competitiveness with new quality productive forces,
we aim to further enhance the Company's business scale and
operational performance, provide high-quality services to
patients, create continuous value for shareholders, and achieve
multidimensional, comprehensive, and positive growth.

Take preventive measures and build a strong safety defense line

Under the guidance of the national safety production policy, Gan
& Lee Pharmaceuticals. consistently places safety production
at the core of development. We firmly adhere to the principle
of "safety first, prevention-oriented, and comprehensive
management”. In the face of a complex and changing production
environment, the Company recognizes the importance of
safety production and remains vigilant, making every effort to
strengthen emergency response capabilities. We ensure the
safety, efficiency, and stability of our production and operational
activities, contributing to the protection of the national safety
production front.

(2) Consolidate the responsibility for safety production

The Company is committed to strengthening the safety
production responsibility system for all employees, fully
implementing the dual- responsibility system. We are refining
and updating the safety production responsibilities and
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assessment standards at all levels of the Company and
organizing the signing of safety production responsibility
agreements with all employees. We have developed a
responsibility assessment form to establish a tiered assessment
mechanism and formulated a safety production reward and
punishment management method. Based on individual safety
hazard feedback and performance, we have established honor
awards such as "Safety Model", "Safety Star", etc. Meanwhile, we
have implemented relevant punitive measures for violations of
safety production regulations, known as the "three violations",
Through this reward and punishment mechanism, we aim to
motivate employees to actively participate in safety management
and create a safe and stable working environment together.

(2) Focus on the construction of safety culture

The Company is focused on building a safety culture and
prioritizes safety education and training. By leveraging the
Company's online academy platform, we ensure that safety
education involves all employees, closely monitor training
completion rates and assessment pass rates to achieve
full coverage. Key personnel and safety management staff
regularly undergo education and training, and obtain relevant
certifications through assessments. Based on the characteristics
of on-site operations, we periodically collect typical accident
cases and produce related warning educational videos, which
are played on the Company's promotional screens, ensuring
comprehensive coverage in terms of "personnel, time, and area".
This allows employees to flexibly receive warning education,
achieving fragmented learning of safety knowledge and
progressive enhancement of safety awareness. During safety
production month, leaders and employees at all levels actively
participated in the production and promotion of the "I Speak
for Safety" video series. A series of diverse and content-rich
activities were conducted on-site, enhancing employees' safety
awareness and strengthening the overall safety culture of the
Company.

(3) Strengthen the dual prevention mechanism

Only by taking preventive measures can we achieve long-
term peace and stability. Placing "preventive measures" before
"rescue measures during the event" and "punitive measures
after the event", placing safety risk control before hidden
dangers, and conducting hidden danger investigation and
management before accidents have always been the safety
management principles upheld by the Company. During the
reporting period, the Company adhered to the principle
of "heavy control and governance", closely monitored the
implementation of control measures at all levels, and accurately
controlled the scope of risks. Through over a hundred daily
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inspections, dozens of specialized and comprehensive checks,
and closely following the rectification of various hidden dangers,
we ensure the formation of a closed-loop management of
hidden dangers. In addition, the Company has launched a
"hidden danger shooting" QR code feedback mechanism, which
comprehensively covers all areas of the Company and effectively
promotes the enthusiasm of all employees to participate in
safety hazard investigation, laying a solid foundation for the
Company's safety management.

(4) Building a comprehensive emergency response system

In response to the 2024 safety production month theme of
"Everyone Talks Safety, Everyone Knows Emergency Response",
the Company is fully advancing the construction of its
emergency response system. This involves both solidifying
document development and regulatory management to ensure
comprehensive plans and clear processes, and strengthening
practical drills and skills training to enhance emergency response
capabilities and handling levels. The Company is pursuing these
efforts concurrently. To this end, we have established leadership
and execution teams to conduct surveys and assessments of the
Company's emergency capabilities and resources, linking with
dual prevention and control efforts to carry out comprehensive
risk evaluations. We have developed highly applicable on-site
handling plans and organized multiple comprehensive and
specialized emergency drills, including hands-on training in
emergency rescue skills provided by the local Red Cross. As a
result of this training, over 150 employees successfully obtained
"First Aid Skills Certificates", significantly improving their ability to
respond to emergencies and marking solid progress in advancing
the Company's emergency response system.

Party members take the lead and stimulate organizational vitality

The Party Committee of the Company has consistently
prioritized the political construction of the Party, asserted the
Party's overall leadership, and employed various forms, including
"Three Meetings and One Lesson", theme party day, theme party
lesson, etc. to enhance the understanding of party members
and cadres on the significance of comprehensively deepening
reform and promoting the Chinese path to modernization. These
measures have reinforced the sense of urgency and mission of
reform, ensuring that the entire Company aligns closely with the
Party Central Committee in ideclogy, politics, and action.

Under the leadership of party building, the Company actively
integrates into the national development framework, deeply
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implements an innovation-driven development strategy,
continuously optimizes industrial layout, and enhances core
competitiveness. Focusing on high-quality development,
the Company is advancing supply-side structural reforms,
improving systems and mechanisms that promote high-quality
growth, and striving to create new momentum and advantages
for development. Additionally, the Company emphasizes the
fundamental and strategic supporting roles of education,
technology, and talent. By deepening reforms in corporate
governance and talent development systems, the Company
provides strong talent assurance and intellectual support for
sustainable development.

Additionally, the Company focuses on strengthening the
construction of grassroots party organizations and improving
the quality of party building work. By establishing and improving
grassroots party organization work systems, enhancing
party member education and management mechanisms, and
promoting the deep integration of party building and business
operations, a positive situation has been created where party
building leads the business and business promotes party
building. The Company actively carries out various party building
activities, such as "party members displaying identity and setting
an example" and "party member volunteers donating blood",
to stimulate the cohesion and combat effectiveness of party
members and cadres, injecting strong momentum into the
Company's development.

Looking ahead to the future, the Company will continue to be
guided by the spirit of the Third Plenary Session of the 20th
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China, adhere to
the Party's comprehensive leadership without wavering, deepen
the various work measures of Party building leading the high-
quality development of enterprises, use high-quality Party
building to lead the high-quality development of enterprises,
and continuously promote new progress and achievements in
various undertakings of the Company
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Risks the Company may face

Risk of industry policy

Pharmaceutical industry is one of the key industries for
development in China, and at the same time, it is also an
industry subject to strong state regulation. With the deepening
of the reform of the national medical and health system and
the gradual improvement of the social medical security system,
China has released a number of heavyweight policies in the
pharmaceutical industry, such as the consistent evaluation
of generic drugs, the centralized procurement of medicines
and medical consumables, and the dynamic adjustment of the
medical insurance drug catalog, etc.

In response to the national call, the Company actively
participated in the insulin-specific volume-based succession
procurement in 2024. In the succession procurement, the
Company's entire product line was awarded contracts,
maintaining the same categories as previously selected. All
mainstream products in market demand were selected as
Category A. The selected categories for align with national policy
directions and the medication needs of a wide range of diabetes
patients. The results of the insulin succession procurement will
be gradually implemented across various provinces starting
from May 2024, with the procurement period lasting from the
implementation date of the results until December 31, 2027.

Countermeasures: It is important to closely monitor the
policy development trend of the pharmaceutical industry and
adjust the enterprise's business strategy accordingly. Specific
measures are as follows: (1) Actively seek external high-quality
targets for the introduction and expansion of product lines,
in addition to independent research and development of new
drugs. (2) Refine cost and quality management to address the
downward trend in product prices resulting from insulin-specific
centralized procurement by reducing costs and improving
efficiency. (3) Accelerate the coverage of recently admitted
medical institutions in insulin-specific centralized procurement,
strengthen the propaganda of relevant policy requirements for
the implementation of insulin centralized procurement, actively
promote medical institutions and doctors' understanding of
the Company's products, and assist medical institutions in
completing the agreed purchase volume of the centralized
procurement on schedule. (4) Speed up the certification process
for the products in Europe and the United States to create new
opportunities for profit growth for the Company.

Risk of supply of selected products in centralized procurement

According to the requirements of the "National Drug Centralized
Procurement Document (Insulin-Specific)", any selected enterprise
that fails to fulfill its supply commitment, resulting in adverse
effects on clinical use or serious quality issues with the selected
product, will be added to the "Violation List". This may lead
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to cancellation of the enterprise's declaration qualification or
selected qualification. Depending on the severity of the case,
the enterprise or insulin product concerned may be disqualified
from participating in centralized procurement for medicines in
various regions for up to two years from the date of inclusion in
the "Violation List".

The Company has secured a higher agreed purchase volume
for insulin-specific volume-based procurement. However,
international political changes and large exchange rate
fluctuations may affect the Company's supply of raw material
consumables, capacity arrangements, or product quality. These
issues pose a risk to the supply of selected products in the
centralized procurement. If the Company experiences any of the
aforementioned issues, it may be at risk of being listed in the
"Violation List", which could lead to a loss of market share and
significant fluctuations in its operating results.

Countermeasures: (1) The Company will promote the localization
of raw material consumables to cope with the instability of
international supply. (2) The Company will continue to strengthen
the promotion of production capacity upgrading and supply
security, and rationalize inventory reserves. (3) Carrying out
lean production activities, improving supply chain resilience, and
taking the supply of products won in centralized procurement
as the first priority to ensure efficient production, quality first,
and stable supply. (4) Additionally, accelerate the construction of
capacity incremental projects to enhance the Company's capacity
scale.

Risks of single revenue structure and technology iteration

The Company relies on its core technology and R&D strength to
focus on diabetes treatment. The Company's operating income
mainly comes from sales of insulin preparations and insulin
API. While this focus provides a significant product technology
advantage, it also poses a risk of a single revenue structure.

If innovative technologies are introduced in the field of basic
research and application transformation, it may lead to the
development and launch of innovative drugs with higher
safety and efficacy. This could potentially impact existing
listed products and significantly reduce the demand for insulin
preparations, which may have an unfavorable impact on the
Company's operating results. Additionally, the potential of
the diabetes market abroad should not be underestimated.
Currently, the Company's operating income is primarily derived
from domestic sales revenue, with international sales revenue
accounting for a smaller proportion. This is not conducive to the
Company's growth and expansion.

Countermeasures: (1) The Company has enhanced its R&D and

innovation capabilities and is actively researching the formation
mechanism of diabetes, drug action mechanisms, exploring new
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targets, and making efforts in drug design and clinical trials. The
goal is to accelerate the development of new glucose-lowering
drugs. (2) The Company is expanding its international business
by strengthening cooperation with overseas customers and
increasing the proportion of international revenue to operating
income. (3) The Company has enhanced its collaboration with
universities and research institutes in production, learning, and
research. It has also expanded its product pipeline to include
therapeutic drugs for various fields, including chemical drugs,
eukaryotic and prokaryotic protein engineering, oncology,
cardiovascular, and metabolic diseases, etc. These efforts
aim to optimize the Company's revenue structure, ensure the
sustainability and stability of its profitability, and enrich its
product offerings.

Risk of uncertainty in innovative drug development

The development of new drugs is characterized by a lengthy
R&D cycle, high investment, and a low success rate. Each step
of the process, from preliminary research and clinical trials to
production and marketing, carries the risk of failure. Additionally,
considering the lengthy research and development cycle for new
drugs and the potential market competition for future product
launches, any failure of the Company's newly developed drugs
to meet changing market demands or to compete in a more
challenging market environment could negatively impact the
Company's operating results and profitability sustainability.

Countermeasures: (1) The Company will on one hand combine the
current domestic clinical needs and develop MeToo new drugs
or better Me Better new drugs with similar efficacy and safety on
the basis of international new drug products. On the other hand,
leveraging the advantages of the Company's R&D platform, gradually
exploring the development of Class | new drugs. (2) The Company
will establish a scientific decision-making system. The Company fully
utilizes its expertise in drug development, timely grasps cutting-edge
technologies, ensures the scientific nature of the project decision-
making process, in order to make correct decisions. (3) The Company
conducts technical assessment and risk control on the early stage
of research and development projects (such as track selection, R&D
cycle, cost inputs and economic benefits assessment, industry policy
trends affecting new drug benefits, iteration of new drug usage
technologies, etc.), as well as key nodes, tracking the progress of
R&D projects in a timely manner, grasping major milestones in the
R&D process, and reducing R&D risks. (4) The Company actively
seeks high-quality resources that align with its future development
strategy. It collaborates with innovative biopharmaceutical R&D
enterprises that have complementary, profitable, and cutting-
edge technological advantages, thereby enhancing the Company's
R&D capabilities, expanding product pipelines, and continuously
improving the Company's core competitiveness. (5) The Company
evaluates the input-output ratio of each segment of R&D, outsources
low-value-added R&D segments, and makes corresponding
organizational structure adjustments to accelerate the process of
launching new drugs.
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Environmental information status

A description of the environmental protection situation
of the Company and its principal subsidiaries that are key
emission units announced by the environmental protection
authorities

The Company incorporates environmental protection and
green development into the entire operation and development
process, consistently adhering to the concept of prioritizing
environmental protection and green development. The
Company implements the principles of ecological civilization,
strengthens comprehensive management measures, fulfills
pollution prevention responsibilities, promotes clean production,
expands green vegetation, and is committed to building a green
pharmaceutical enterprise to achieve sustainable development.
During the reporting period, Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. and its
subsidiary, Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co. operated
in compliance with the laws and regulations, and all pollutants
were discharged in accordance with standards.

Information on pollutant discharge

(1) Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:
a Wastewater discharge

The Beijing headquarters follows a classified collection
approach, treating high-pollutant wastewater separately
and using a targeted pretreatment process. After
pretreatment, various types of wastewater are mixed
and blended before undergoing biochemical treatment.
This ensures that the effluent is discharged into the
downstream municipal wastewater treatment plant for
centralized treatment in a way that is stricter than the
indirect discharge standard. The site has one wastewater
port, located at the west boundary of the Beijing
headquarters; One domestic sewage port, located at the
south boundary of the Beijing headquarters; And four
rainwater ports, located within the Beijing headquarters.
During the reporting period, the wastewater treatment
station of Beijing headquarters had high treatment
efficiency and stable operation, and there were zero
incidents of wastewater exceeding the standard, and the
specific discharge situation is shown in the table below:
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FEKSRY THRABRE HRRE HBEE W TEHRE W) IREEBR WATIRE
Major water (mg/L) (mg/L) Total amount Permitted Whether or not  Standard of
pollutants Average Discharge limit discharged (t)  discharge (t) the standard is  implementation
discharge (mg/L) exceeded
concentration
(mg/L)
2R 1.5479 45 0.4480 534.6 & (KI5 R 42 & HE AR
Ammonia No ) (DB11/307-2013)
Nitrogen (AN) "Integrated Discharge
Standard for Water
Pollutants" (DB11/307-
wEBEE 314890 500 9.1571 5,940 & 2013)
Chemical No
Oxygen
Demand (COD)
b ESHBER b Exhaust gas emissions
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The Beijing headquarters strictly adheres to national and
operational air pollution prevention regulations and standards,
adopts clean production processes, carries out leakage detection
and repair work, eliminates leakage, and reduces exhaust gas
emissions at the source. Meanwhile, the Company has improved
its end-to-end treatment process and installed multiple exhaust
gas treatment facilities. The exhaust gases are collected and
treated before being discharged through exhaust pipes that are at
least 10 meters high to meet the required standards. The Beijing
headquarters has a total of 13 exhaust gas emission outlets
located within the plant. During the reporting period, the exhaust
gas treatment facilities at the Beijing headquarters operated
stably. There were no incidents of exhaust gas exceeding the
standard. Please refer to the table below for specific emission
data:

FERRTRY FHRABRE HRRE
Major air (mg/m3) (mg/m3)
pollutants Average Emission limit
emission (mg/m3)
concentration
(mg/m?3)
RENLY 21.4524 30(80)
Nitrogen
Oxides (NOx)
ERMEBENY  2.4367 20
(LANMHCZRAE)
Volatile Organic
Compounds
(VOC,

characterized
by NMHC)

HBEE WRHRE (W RS8BT AT
t) Permitted Whether or not Standard of
Total amount of emissions (t) the standard is implementation
emissions (t) exceeded
1.5784 4.9415 5 CERIP KRR EMHE
No AR ) (DB11/139-
2015)
“Emission Standards for
Boiler Air Pollutants”
(DB11/139-2015)
0.0040 0.0270 S (RRTBRMEEH
No HFR %) (DB11/501-
2017)

"Comprehensive
Emission Standards
for Air Pollutants”
(DB11/501-2017)

20173 A3IHA M BRI AT AWM <80mg/m By iR A R E
Note: New boilers built before March 31, 2017 implement the standard limit of NOx < 80mg/m?3
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C Hazardous waste discharges

Beijing headquarters strictly abides by the "Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Wastes", formulates the company-level "Hazardous
Waste Management System", the "Garbage Classification Management
System", and operating procedures, and is equipped with
specialized personnel in charge of the management of collection,
transportation, storage, etc. In addition, the floor of the hazardous
waste storage room adopts anti-corrosion and anti-seepage
measures, and the internal deflector ditch is set up to connect
with the accident pool to meet the requirements of storage
standards. While the Beijing headquarter has done a good job
in the compliant collection and disposal of waste, it has actively
implemented solid waste reduction measures such as sludge
drying, green packaging, laser coding machine instead of inkjet
printer, paperless office, recycling of office supplies, and sharing
of chemical agents. During the reporting period, the hazardous
waste of Beijing headquarters totaled 699.0880 tons, all of which
were entrusted to qualified manufacturers for disposal.

(2) Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.:
a Wastewater discharge

Gan & Lee Shandong follows the classification of
collection, clean sewage diversion, rain and sewage
diversion principle, wastewater is first treated by the plant
sewage treatment station to meet the discharge standards
before being discharged into the city sewage network.
After that, it undergoes centralized treatment at the
Economic and Technological Development Zone's second
sewage treatment plant. During the reporting period, the
wastewater treatment station of Gan & Lee Shandong had
high treatment efficiency and stable operation, and there
were zero incidents of wastewater exceeding the standard,
and the specific discharge situation is shown in the table
below:
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FEKSRY THRABRE HRRE AMEE WaHmE G RE8F AT IR
Major water (mg/L) (mg/L) (t) Permitted Whether or not Standard of
pollutants Average Discharge limit ~ Total amount discharge (t) the standard is implementation
discharge (mg/L) discharged (t) exceeded
concentration
(mg/L)
2R 1.01 40 0.386 8.98 5 G5 RKHEANE T
Nitrogen No N —
Oxides (NOX) K3 K AT ) (GBY
T31962-2015)
“Waterwaste Quality
e = Standards for Discharge
EEE 16.3 420 6.18 187.36 £ to Municipal Sewers “
Chemical No (GB/T31962-2015)
Oxygen
Demand (COD)
SR 0.276 6 0.0997 2.88 £
Total No
Phosphorus
(TP)
BA 8.99 50 3.49 24.03 £
Total Nitrogen No
(TN)
b B SHBER b Exhaust gas emissions
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Gan & Lee Shandong strictly complies with national and local
air pollution control regulations and standards, adopts clean
production processes, and carries out environmental monitoring
on a regular basis to ensure that the exhaust gases are discharged
in compliance with the standards. At the same time, Gan & Lee
Shandong has installed several sets of waste gas treatment
facilities to strengthen the end-to-end treatment, and the waste
gas is collected and treated, and then discharged through an
exhaust pipe with a height of 15 meters and above to meet the
standards. The whole factory sets up 14 waste gas pipes, which
are located in the Shandong plant. During the reporting period,
the operation of the waste gas management facilities of Gan & Lee
Shandong was stable, with zero incidents of waste gas exceeding
the standard, and the specific emission situation is shown in the
table below:
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FTERISRY FHHBOKRE HBRE HBEE FHHKRE (W) BEEF AT AR
Major air (mg/m?) (mg/m3) t) Permitted Whether or not the Standard of
pollutants Average Emission limit Total amount of emissions (t) standard is exceed implementation
emission (mg/m3) emissions (t)
concentration
(mg/m3)
AENH 37.25 100 1.3133 6.656 = GRIP RS54 HE
E“N‘g;’)t‘%e” Oxides No HUAR ) (DB37/2374-
2018)
“Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Boiler”
(DB37/2374-2018)
EEAMEAM UL 2.8931 60 0.4566 16.651 = GER BN H R
NMHCEAE) No FEE6ES: BN
Volatile Organic T471k)(DB37/2801.6-
Compounds
(VOC, 2018)
characterized by “Emission Standard
NMHC) of Volatile Organic
Compounds
Part 6: Organic
Chemical Industry”
(DB37/2801.6-2018)
C BREMHBRER C Hazardous waste discharges
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(1).

During the reporting period, the total amount of hazardous wastes
in Gan & Lee Shandong was 732.1982 tons, all of which were
entrusted to qualified manufacturers for disposal.

Construction and operation of pollution prevention and
control facilities

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:

a Wastewater treatment facilities:

The wastewater treatment station is located in the west side
of Beijing headquarters, and divided into clean/heavy sewage
treatment system depending on the type of wastewater being
treated: O equipment cooling water, water machine thick water,
and other clean sewage is collected separately to be pH adjusted,
and only after passing the pH test will it be discharged, the
designed treatment capacity is 1,800m3/d, and the treatment
process is as follows: collection system - pH adjustment - terminal
discharge; @ fermentation wastewater, solvent wastewater, and
other types of heavy sewage is collected separately, first through
different pre-treatment processes, then water quality adjustment
into the biochemical system for treatment, and discharge after
completing the treatment and passing the testing. The designed
treatment capacity is 800m3/d, and the treatment process is as
follows: the collection system - pre-treatment - two-stage AO
biochemical treatment - terminal discharge. The wastewater
treatment facilities were in good operating condition throughout
the year, with regular inspections and maintenance and no
operational failures.
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b Exhaust gas treatment facilities:

The Beijing headquarter adopts targeted treatment processes
according to the different nature of the exhaust gases. Meanwhile,
it reduces disorganized emissions by optimizing the process,
sealing the plant, sealing the equipment, sprinkling water to
suppress dust and other measures.

(@ Adopt sterilization and filtration-alkali absorption process to
treat the fermentation waste gas emitted from the production
fermentation process.

@ Activated carbon adsorption process is used to treat the
exhaust gas emitted from the QC experimental process,
sterilization process, and storage, loading and unloading of
materials in the raw material tank area.

(3 The oil smoke exhaust from the cafeteria is treated by
electrostatic oil smoke purifier.

@ Hydrochloric acid configuration exhaust gas is treated by
alkaline absorption process.

® Urea packing workshop exhaust gas is treated by spray
absorption process.

® The waste gas from the fermentation liquid receiving tank
is treated by alkaline liquid absorption-activated carbon
adsorption process.

@ Use of gas boilers equipped with low-NOx burners to reduce
NOx emissions. The Company carried out low-NOx renovation
of the Company's two old boilers in 2017, and new boilers were
built after April 2017 with low-NOx burners to guarantee NOXx
compliance.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.:
a Wastewater treatment facilities:

Wastewater treatment station is located in the southwest of Gan &
Lee Shandong, divided into clear/heavy sewage treatment system,
@ equipment cooling water, water machine thick water, the last
cleaning water of the process equipment and other clear sewage is
collected separately to adjust the pH test until qualified for discharge,
the designed treatment capacity is 2,000m3/d, and the treatment
process is as follows: collection system - pH adjustment - terminal
discharge; @ fermentation wastewater, solvent wastewater and other
types of heavy sewage is collected separately, first through different
pre-treatment processes, then water quality adjustment into the
biochemical system for treatment, and discharge after completing the
treatment and passing the testing. The designed treatment capacity is
1,200m3/d, and the treatment process is as follows: collection system
- pre-treatment - UC hydrolysis - UASB anaerobic - HBF system
(Improved A/O-flocculation and sedimentation) - coagulation and
sedimentation depth treatment - terminal discharge.
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b Exhaust gas treatment facilities:

Gan & Lee Shandong adopts water washing-activated
carbon adsorption device to treat the organic waste gas of
biopharmaceutical process; hydrochloric acid and trifluoroacetic
acid preparation waste gas is treated by lye spray absorption
device; organic waste gas of chemical process is treated by
condensation - alkali washing - alkali washing - water washing -
dehumidification and drying (2-stage tandem activated carbon
adsorption / vapour desorption) - condensation device; organic
waste gas of chemical process is treated by surface cooler
cooling - alkali liquid absorption - activated carbon adsorption
device; Pilot laboratory exhaust gas is treated by alkali washing -
activated carbon adsorption device; QC laboratory is treated by
alkali washing - activated carbon adsorption device; Raw material
tank area, waste liquid tank area, distillation treatment workshop,
hazardous waste warehouse exhaust gas is treated by alkali
washing - activated carbon adsorption device; Urea recovery,
urea condensate deamination of the exhaust gas is treated by
water washing tower device; Waste water treatment system, the
fermentation exhaust gas, and fermentation and sterilization
exhaust gas are treated by alkali washing - alkali washing - bio
filter - activated carbon adsorption device; the canteen exhaust
gas is treated by oil fume purifier; among them, simplified
management is implemented for the exhaust gas discharge port of
device building and sterilization station area. The device building
exhaust gas is treated by G4 filtration - photo-oxidative catalysis
- activated carbon adsorption device; and the sterilization station
exhaust gas is treated by EO post-processing device of ethylene
oxide sterilizer; the boiler exhaust gas adopts low-NOx burner to
ensure that the NOx is qualified and meets the standard.

In addition to the implementation of the hardware construction
of environmental protection management facilities, the Company
also focuses on soft power to improve, and fully guarantee
the operation of environmental protection work. Fully staffed,
strong professionalism: the establishment of environmental
management department, full-time responsible for the operation
of pollution control facilities, maintenance, monitoring, etc.
Sound environmental management system, perfect system:
the development of exhaust gas, wastewater, solid waste, self-
monitoring, control facilities, such as operation inspection and
a number of management systems and operating procedures,
standardize environmental protection operations. The company
developing environmental protection annual budget, to protect
the environmental protection investment and ensure that the
environmental protection work is carried out smoothly.
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Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and
other administrative licences for environmental protection

The Company strictly implements the national requirements
for the management of new, renovated and expanded projects,
and implements the environmental impact assessment, "Tri-
simultaneous" and environmental protection acceptance of
construction projects. The Company applies for a sewage
discharge license in accordance with the law to ensure that
sewage discharge is licensed and managed according to the
license. During the operation period, the Company submits the
annual management plan of hazardous waste on time, operates
the hazardous waste transfer joint bill, records the environmental
management account, fills in the report on the implementation
of the sewage discharge permit, discloses the environmental
management information in accordance with the law, and ensures
that all the work carried out meets the requirements of the
environmental protection policy.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:

As of the reporting period, the main administrative licenses for
environmental protection are:

The insulin industrialization project of Gan & Lee passed the
completion environmental protection acceptance on July 3,
2017, acceptance document number: Environmental Protection
Verification of Tongzhou District [2017] No0.0030.

On July 27, 2020, the application was made to obtain a permit to
discharge urban sewage into the drainage network, Permit No.
Tong Pai 2020 No. 20.

Gan & Lee completed an application for a Main Industry
Discharge Permit on December 29, 2020, Permit No.
91110000102382249M001U.

Gan & Lee obtained the EIA approval for the third-phase new
production workshop project (dangerous goods warehouse) on
September 6, 2021, with the approval document number: Tong
Huan Shen [2021] No. 0027.

Completion of environmental protection acceptance of the
biological pilot research project (Boiler House) of Gan & Lee on
January 28, 2022.

Completion of the identification of hazardous characteristics
of evaporative crystallization for the recovery of urea and
pretreatment sludge for phosphorus removal from fermentation
wastewater by Gan & Lee on June 7, 2022.

Gan & Lee passed a re-application for an emission permit on
October 20, 2022, Permit No. 91110000102382249M001U.
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Gan & Lee passed the environmental protection acceptance
of the the third-phase new production workshop project
(dangerous goods warehouse) on Auguest 11, 2023.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.:

As of the reporting period, the main administrative licenses for
environmental protection are:

The Phase | Project of Gan & Lee Shandong Linyi Production
Base, obtained the EIA approval on April 2, 2022, with the
approval document number: Lin Jing Kai Hang Shen Huan Zi
[2022] No. 19.

Gan & Lee Shandong obtained a discharge permit on November
14, 2022, certificate number: 91371300MA3QTLTC4A001Q.

Gan & Lee Shandong passed the re-application of the
emission permit on March 12, 2024, certificate number:
91371300MA3QTLTC4A001Q.

Gan & Lee Shandong Linyi Production Base of biopharmaceutical
GZR raw material series project on December 4, 2023 to obtain
the approval of the environmental assessment, the approval
number: Yi Xin Xing Shen Fu Huan Zi [2023] No. 38.

Gan & Lee Shandong received environmental impact assessment
approval for the antibody drug industrialization project on
March 12, 2024, with the approval document number: Yi Xin
Shen Pi Tou Zi [2024] No. 15001.

Gan & Lee Shandong received environmental impact assessment
approval for the capacity expansion and technological
improvement project for automatic injectors and pre-filled
injection pens on June 5, 2024, with the approval document
number: Yi Xin Shen Pi Tou Zi [2024] No. 15025.

Contingency plans for environmental emergencies

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:

The Beijing headquarters establishes a three-tier environmental
emergency plan system in accordance with the mode of
comprehensive environmental emergency plan, special plan and
on-site disposal plan, taking into account the nature, scale and
environmental risk situation of the enterprise. Gan & Lee signed
and issued the signed and issued the "Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.
Emergency Response Plan for Unexpected Environmental Incidents (2024
Edition)” on March, 2024, which has been reported to Tongzhou
District Ecological Environment Bureau for the record, with the
record number of 110112-2024-019-M, and set up an emergency
rescue team for environmental emergencies within the Company,
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establish an emergency organization and command system,
and reserve the necessary emergency rescue materials and
equipment. The Company organizes emergency drills and trainings
every year according to the plan, and constantly standardizes and
strengthens the comprehensive disposal capacity of the Beijing
headquarters for environmental emergencies.

Beijing headquarters set up a total of 6 groundwater monitoring
wells in the key environmental risk unit area of the plant and 1
reference well in the upstream of the plant to carry out regular
monitoring of groundwater and soil on a regular basis to prevent
pollution hazards.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.:

Gan & Lee Shandong signed and issued the comprehensive
contingency plan for environmental emergencies on June, 2023,
which has been reported to the Yihe New District Branch of Linyi
Ecological and Environmental Bureau for the record, with the
record number of 371361-2023-024-M.

Environmental self-monitoring programme

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:

During the reporting period, the Beijing headquarter has
completed the preparation of environmental self-monitoring
program for 2024, and entrusted a third party with inspection and
testing qualification to implement manual monitoring of waste
gas, waste water, noise at the plant boundary and groundwater
in strict accordance with the monitoring requirements of the
environmental protection department, and all pollutants have
met the standards of discharge. At the same time, automatic
wastewater monitoring equipment is installed at the total
wastewater discharge port to automatically monitor the flow
rate of discharged wastewater, Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD),
Ammonia Nitrogen (AN), and pH value that all meet the standards.
The monitoring data is regularly reported to the National
Pollutant Discharge Permit Management Information Platform for
public disclosure, and the trend of pollutant monitoring data is
summarized and analyzed internally to continuously improve the
Company's pollution prevention and control capabilities.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.:

During the reporting period, Gan & Lee Shandong has completed
the preparation of the 2024 environmental self-monitoring
programme, in accordance with the requirements of self-
monitoring, commissioned a third-party testing agency to regularly
monitor the wastewater, waste gas and plant noise, all the
pollutant monitoring indexes are in compliance with the emission
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standards, and have been made public on the National Emission
Permit Management Information Platform. Besides, in accordance
with the regulatory requirements of the environmental protection
authorities, the total wastewater discharge outlets are equipped
with online automatic monitoring equipment.

Other environmental information that should be disclosed

On November 14, 2018, the Company passed the 1SO14001
environmental management system audit for the first time,
obtained the system certification certificate, and still maintains
the system certification. In order to achieve the expected
results and improve environmental performance, the company
has formulated the environmental management policy of
"Implementing pollution prevention, and creating green
production"”, and actively carries out daily management activities
such as identification of environmental factors and rectification
of hidden dangers, interpretation of laws and regulations, and
compliance review, etc,, to control and optimize environmental
impacts arising from business activities, and continuously improve
the environmental management system.

Gan & Lee headquarters was rated as a "Beijing Sub-center
Enterprise with Green Credit B-level" in the green credit
evaluation for key pollution discharge enterprises in the entire
district, organized by the Tongzhou District Environmental
Protection Bureau of Beijing.

Information that helps protect ecology, prevent pollution
and fulfill environmental responsibilities

The Company strictly abides by the requirements of national
and local laws and regulations, builds a management system
based on the law, optimizes the details of the system operation
by self-examination of the law, continuously improves and
enhances the environmental management system by optimizing
the management measures, upgrading the hardware facilities
and refining the skills of the personnel. Adheres to the concept
of long-term sustainable development, the Company endeavors
to build a resource-conserving and environmentally friendly
enterprise. The Company formulates annual environmental
protection objectives, environmental management policies, and
continuously improves environmental management measures
and pollution prevention facilities. The work of complying with
the three wastes and meeting the emission standards has been
effectively implemented: 100% of wastewater emissions meet
the standard, 100% of exhaust gas emissions meet the standard,
100% of solid wastes meet the standard of complying with the
disposal standard, and 100% of factory noise testing pass rate.
The Company discloses environmental information in accordance
with the law and accepts social supervision.
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Measures and effects taken to reduce carbon emissions
during the reporting period

The Company adheres to clean production, continuously
implements existing low-carbon emission reduction measures,
and explores new ways to reduce carbon emissions. The Company
actively contributes to the "dual carbon" goals. The measures
taken and their effects during this reporting period are as follows:

(1) Continuously promoting the renewable energy renovation
project for photovoltaic power generation in plant areas, so that
photovoltaic power generation replaces part of the fossil energy
power generation. During the reporting period, the Company
generated a total of 482,787.97 kWh of electricity through
photovoltaic power generation technology, reducing carbon
dioxide emissions by 291.6039 tons.

(2) Actively fulfilling social responsibility by purchasing green
electricity through market-based methods and proactively
using green electricity. As of June 2024, the total usage of green
electricity, evidenced by green power certificate transactions
and green electricity consumption certificates, amounted to
11,643.406 MWh, resulting in a reduction of 7,032.6172 tons of
carbon dioxide emissions compared to using non-green electricity.

(3) Adopting automated management technology for unified
management, realizing real-time monitoring of high-energy-using
equipment, abnormal energy consumption, energy consumption
deviation, energy consumption estimation and other alarming
auxiliary functions, and assisting in the projection and analysis of
energy-using indexes and the formulation of energy-saving plans,
so as to significantly improve energy utilization.

(4) The boiler room employs waste heat recovery technology,
utilizing deaerator exhaust and wastewater to increase heat
exchange, and recovering steam condensate, among other
measures. This maximizes the use of waste heat and reduces
natural gas consumption.

(5) The equipment is updated with low-power, high-efficiency air
suspension fans. Compared to Roots blowers (under the same
air supply conditions), this upgrade can save 96,141 kWh of
electricity annually, which is equivalent to approximately 11.23
tons of standard coal.

(6) After a light fixture in the plant area is damaged, it is directly
replaced with energy-efficient lighting (with the same illumination
but 40% lower power consumption). This gradual transition to
new energy-efficient lighting aims to achieve full coverage and
reduce the electricity usage of the lighting system.
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Consolidating and expanding the achievements of
poverty eradication and rural revitalization

In February 2024, Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. participated
in the "Taste of the New Year - Poverty Alleviation with Good
Products New Year's Shopping Festival", part of the China Rural
Revitalization Entrepreneur Support Program. During the event,
the Company purchased RMB 20,000 worth of ingredients
to actively contribute to rural revitalization and support the
sustainable development of rural industries. These ingredients
symbolize a firm belief in a bright future for rural areas, embody
the vitality and energy of the countryside, and reflect the hard
work of farmers and their aspirations for a better life. Gan
& Lee has taken concrete actions to inject vitality into rural
revitalization, supporting the development of rural industries and
aiming to invigorate the rural economy. In the future, Gan & Lee
will continue to focus on rural revitalization and contribute to the
sustainable development of rural areas.
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(Z) REFRNSEZESEAOEME ()
s

1. WHESERSHTIZE®ER, 1
REBXFmBER

Other situations regarding the use of raised funds during the
reporting period
Cash management of idle raised funds and investment in
related products

BB M ARM
Unit: RMB'0,000

20234#887H 2023488 7H 20244%886H .

25,000.00 August 7,

August 7, 2023 2023

August 6, 23,600.00 o
2024
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Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

FtT ROTDREREBER
SECTION VIl CHANGES IN SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS

— . BEToHER I Changes in share capital
(—) BOTmHERR (1 Statement of changes in shares
1. BT shiERER 1. Statement of changes in shares
B B
Unit:Share
AR 2 5 AR B R (+, ) o, RS
Before this change Increase/decrease (+, -) After this change
HeE £t 1l (%) EITHE HAh NI HE HI(%)
Quantity Proportion  New shares Others Subtotal Quantity Proportion
(%) issued (%)
— . BRE& % Shares with trading 63,086,855 10.62 7,040,000 -1,189,200 5,850,800 68,937,655 11.47
1 BG4 limited conditions
1. BXR#FK 1.Shares held by
state
2. EBA AN 2.Shares held by 4,256,033 0.72 4,256,033 0.71
HEe domestic state-
v owned legal entity
3. HMAZE 3.Shares held by 32,881,077 5.53 7,040,000 -1,189,200 5,850,800 38,731,877 6.44
1% pe domestic capital
Hrp: I8 3E Of which: Shares 259,327 0.04 259,327 0.04

P n held by domestic
EEEABR non-state-owned

legal entity
R B A Shares held by 32,621,750 5.49 7,040,000 -1,189,200 5,850,800 38,472,550 6.40
A domestic natural
person
4. SNEFERR 4.Shares held by 25,949,745 4.37 25,949,745 4.32
foreign capital
Heh: B 4ME Of which: Shares 25,949,745 4.37 25,949,745 4.32
o held by foreign legal
VST entity
BN B R A Shares held by
Az foreign natural
person
Z . ERE% Floating shares on 531,074,895 89.38 1,189,200 1,189,200 532,264,095 88.53
[N unlimited trading
HomiE R condition
1. ARMmE 1.RMB ordinary 531,074,895 89.38 1,189,200 1,189,200 532,264,095 88.53
BB shares
2. BW LM 2.Domestically listed
i ks B foreign shares

3. 4L 3.Foreign shares
ok B listed overseas

4. Hfb 4.0thers

= . 2% Total number of 594,161,750 100.00 7,040,000 7,040,000 601,201,750 100.00
shares
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T B E LBIESRK 5P ML (Www.
sse.com.cn) (X F20224 R & M
BRZ BBt R — N ERBR IR S HA AR
MRIREE EHREBENERELASENA
£/ S 2024-039)

202458248, A8 EH EIE F
BILEEBERRETLAALES A
TANETHAT024EREEMERE
BRI YN EFEILIE, itk
177,040,0008% , 1B IEE R LB T
2024F5B28BHI B E L BIEHR
5 B M 5 (www.sse.com.cn) B9 {3
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S I3 it R 13408 B XY R B §R
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TEBEERIETRAT EEDRTR
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Statement on the changes in shares

On 10 May 2024, the Company handled the lifting of restrictions
on restricted stocks for 135 incentive recipients who met the
conditions for lifting the restrictions under the 2022 Restricted
Stock Incentive Plan. The number of shares listed is 1,189,200.
For details, please refer to the “Reminder Announcement on the
Lifting of Restrictions and Listing of Restricted Stock for the First Lifting
Period of the 2022 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan” (Announcement
No.: 2024-039) published on the SSE website (www.sse.com.cn)
on May 7, 2024.

On 24 May 2024, the Company completed the grant registration
work for the 2024 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan at the
Shanghai branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited, with a total issuance of 7,040,000 shares.
For details, please refer to the “Announcement on the Completion
of the Grant Registration of the 2024 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan”
(Announcement No.: 2024-052) published on the SSE website
(www.sse.com.cn) on May 28, 2024.

The impact of stock changes on financial indicators such as
earnings per share and net assets per share between the
reporting period and the semi-annual report disclosure (if any)

During the period after the reporting period and up to the
disclosure date of the semi-annual report, the Company
experienced one share change due to the repurchase and
cancellation of some restricted stocks. On July 25, 2024, the
Company repurchased a total of 136,460 restricted shares from
the 2022 restricted stock incentive plan that had been granted
to 13 incentive recipients but had not yet been released from
restrictions, and completed the cancellation at the Shanghai
branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited. After the repurchase and cancellation, the Company
reduced its share capital by 136,460 shares and changed its total
share capital to 601,065,290 shares. For details, please refer to
the "Announcement on the Implementation of Partial Restricted Stock
Repurchase and Cancellation under the 2022 Restricted Stock Incentive
Plan” (Announcement No. 2024-060) published by the Company
on the SSE website (www.sse.com.cn) on July 23, 2024.

The impact of the above share changes on relevant financial
indicators is as follows:

B T/BEHM: ARD
Unit: RMB per share

W 5 46 1%
Financial indicators

g AR U 3
Earnings per share

gREE™
Net asset value per share

ZEMRHERZEE T EER MR R EH

Considering restricted stock cancellation Not considering restricted stock
cancellation

0.51 0.51

18.79 18.79
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(Z) RRERMENBR (Il Changes in shares with trading limited conditions
B R
Unit:Share
HYRERS REMBHRBRER REMIGMBER REPRBRER RE&RE R IR IR & B 83
Number of # 0 #] Reason for Release date
B % 2 shares with Number of Increase in Number of ~ restricted
! trading limited  shares released the number shares with sales
Shareholder condition at ; : T
name artl from restricted of restricted  trading limited
thebeginning of  sale during the shares during the condition at

the reporting

reporting period

reporting period  the end of the

period reporting period

20225 [R5 14 A& 4,113,200 1,189,200 2,924,000 PR 114 i 1% IRIB2022F RHIM R 2

Z 58 sh 3T X BUD ¥ Bt X (2 22) 48 X L RE %

73 % (145 A) Restricted  po o e of o 40 =) (@1 M 5 84

The 2022 stock grant Released from

restricted stock restrictions according

incentive plan to the provisions of

recipients (145 the 2022 Restricted

individuals) Stock Incentive Plan
(Draft) or repurchased
and canceled by the
Company

2024 4 PR 14 B 7,040,000 7,040,000 PR &I 1% B 2% 1RIE 2024 R B RR 2

SR Rh T X8 D ¥ it (R 5) 48 X K E fi#

51K (8TA) Restricted g 1 g o oy 4 58] 19 3% 44

The 2024 stock grant  pajeased from

restricted stock restrictions according

incentive plan to the provisions of

recipients (87 the 2024 Restricted

individuals) Stock Incentive Plan
(Draft) or repurchased
and canceled by the
Company

&It 4,113,200 1,189,200 7,040,000 9,964,000 / /

Total

Z. BRER Il.  Shareholders

(—) BHREH: 0] Total number of shareholders:

HERFHASERRASHP,) Total number of ordinary shareholders by 82,782

BERSHRKANMENRERREASH(P)

the end of the reporting period

Total number of preferred shareholders

with voting rights restored by the end of the
reporting period

(=)

BERSGHAGT+TIRER.

Al

TRERRERE (HEREFHR
F) FREBERR

110\ BHFEHIRHERAF

(I

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders and the top ten
circulating shareholders (or shareholders with unlimited
rights to sell) as at the end of the reporting period
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EMXHNRIESRZILSMUNE
Ko Q) ENEK B ENHITRIE,
WK ERARELZECHEHEH
EEERFERNMZERFEKIE
HinWEGS, WESERAKES —
ERFENDZRETE KB T WA
B M PTR Uz I50% 24 F H B0
(Erh, STRONG LINKFYIZ R 15 U
HAHPEMFTEHRUEZMN), EX
B T BYORL I N R A8 AR XY B E
WHER. QEEKMERARMTR
BROPMEBENRANFAZ 0,
IRBIBE AR PSS RZ B RIIB AN « 3= R4 .
PDEANERANF, AZEKBE
BRARBIBEHETITE,

ERE3 L 2024 E IR B AR R BAGD It
VWEFHREMEREFTREXAE
HATDHES, REMAIINANER
FEICTMZARI2TA . 2418 .
361 A

Notes:

Note 1: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. issued shares to specific
recipients, and as part of this process, the Company and Zhongru
Gan signed the “Conditionally Effective Share Subscription Agreement”
and the “Supplemental Agreement to Conditionally Ef fective Share
Subscription Agreement”. The agreements stipulate that the share
subscribed by the issuance targets cannot be transferred for 36
months after the offering’s closing date. The newly issued shares
will be listed and available for trading on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange's Main Board starting on the next trading day after the
restriction period ends. If there are any statutory holidays or
rest days, the restriction period will be extended to the following
trading day.

Note 2: According to the “Agreement on Extension of Share Lock-
up Period” signed by the Company’s shareholders MING HUA
TECHNOLOGY, Wintersweet, Hillhouse, STRONG LINK, Zhucheng
Shunkang, and the Company’s controlling shareholder as well
as the actual controller Zhongru Gan: (1) Under the premise
that Zhongru Gan directly and indirectly holds no less than
55% of the issuer’s total current holdings, each extended lock-
up shareholder is willing to extend the lock-up of 16.91% of
the issuer’s shares (hereinafter referred to as the “underlying
shares”) held by him after the expiration of the statutory lock-
up period. Until Zhongru Gan's written notice releases the
extended lock or other circumstances of locking termination
agreed upon in the locking agreement. After the extension lock is
lifted, the above-mentioned shareholders shall still comply with
the requirements of laws, regulations, normative documents,
and business rules of the stock exchange when they reduce
their holdings of the issuer’s shares. (2) As a guarantee for
the execution of the extended lock-up, if the extended lock-
up shareholder elects to reduce his holdings of the underlying
shares that are still subject to the extended lock-up at that time
after the expiration of the statutory lock-up period, the reducing
shareholder shall pay 50% of the proceeds from each reduction
of his holdings of the underlying shares that are still subject
to the extended lock-up at that time to Zhongru Gan (among
which, the proceeds of such divestment of STRONG LINK shall
be paid by MING HUA TECHNOLOGY to Zhongru Gan), and the
divestment in such circumstances shall not constitute a breach
of the lock-up agreement. (3) The shareholders’ rights enjoyed by
the extended locked-in shareholders in respect of the underlying
shares shall not be affected, and the shareholders’ rights such
as the right to know, the right to vote, and the right to dividend
corresponding to the underlying shares shall be independently
owned and exercised by each extended locked-in shareholder.

Note 3: Restricted shares granted under the FY2024 Restricted
Stock Incentive Plan will be unlocked in batches according to
relevant regulations. The restriction periods are 12, 24, and
36 months from the date of grant registration completion,
respectively.




—_

AR4 2022F ERREIM R Z BT
jZHx%E’]ﬁEF*ﬁH_&L EXREXEAMTE
DY, REPILI HEE
%ﬂlﬂmﬁZEilZ/\ﬁ <2478 .
36MB . ABBITXE —ERIE
EHRRBERBRELXGHEREK, T2024
F58108 EmmE, FER(XRF2022
F (R 6 M B =R 1T X 58 — R BR
[REHRMGRREREE LM ABENIRS
MREYGER RN L 2024-039)

F S5 AT F2024F7H258 B
20222 PR A1 B& Z B Bh it &I 1311
/%SZJEMT%E??*TE'F‘U%%#F?BEEE’J

7 BRI IEEQT,J‘I'I% 4600% , F
T'_EPllE% EHEERIAETLE
+ iéj\’/_éjrcﬁiifﬁo [B] 8 7 3 52
KE, 28RV A136,4608 , 2
B K T & 9601,065,290% - X 1515
ERABF2024F7H23BHEE L
TBIEH R 5 P Ik (www.sse.com.cn)
B9 €5 F2022 5 [R 1 1% A% 28D 11 X
B BREI MR ZEL W ELERE)
(NERS: 2024-060)

ES. nSNESREEA
GifER

NERRESPNBEESE. &
ENEREBARBRENER

(1

Semi-Annual Report 2024

Note 4: Restricted shares granted under the FY2022 Restricted
Stock Incentive Plan will be unlocked in batches according to
relevant regulations. The restriction periods are 12, 24, and
36 months from the date of grant registration completion,
respectively. The conditions for lifting the restrictions for the first
release period of this incentive plan have been met. The shares
were listed and tradable on May 10, 2024. For details, please
refer to the “ Reminder Announcement on the Lifting of Restrictions
and Listing of Restricted Stock for the First Lifting Period of the 2022
Restricted Stock Incentive Plan” (Announcement No.: 2024-039).

Note 5: On July 25, 2024, the Company repurchased a total of
136,460 shares of restricted stock that had been granted but
not yet released from restrictions to 13 incentive recipients
under the FY2022 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan and
completed the cancellation at the Shanghai branch of China
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited. After
the repurchase and cancellation, the Company reduced its
share capital by 136,460 shares, and the total share capital
changed to 601,065,290 shares. For details, please refer to
the "Announcement on the Implementation of the Repurchase and
Cancellation of Certain Restricted Stocks under the 2022 Restricted
Stock Incentive Plan" (Announcement No.: 2024-060) published on
the SSE website (www.sse.com.cn) on July 23, 2024.

Information on directors, supervisors, and senior
management

Changes in shareholdings of current and departed directors,
supervisors, and senior management during the reporting
period

2024FFFERS



Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

B4 R’
Unit: Share

w RACE B RH MR RR T
Bz
# 2l EE.BEE 55400 520,000 400,000 Equity incentive restricted
Kai Du CEO, Board stock grant
e siag BEE.RSERE B A 32K o R 1 14 AR AR T
Weiaiang Son Board, Vice 120,000 520,000 400,000 Equity incentive restricted
qiang &  Ppresident stock grant
15 o RACHEBRG MR ERT
e 120,000 270,000 150,000 Equity incentive restricted
Jiao Jiao Board stock grant
=5 B (BR)
Le?\i(in Board 120,000 120,000
(departed)
e BEE.RASEE B A 32K B BR 1 14 AR AR T
\;\/\ei Chen Board, Vice 120,000 520,000 400,000 Equity incentive restricted
President stock grant
N | 1SR
BMGE. U5 ﬂj&zizﬁiﬁfﬁxmg%\
iz fEA — N
1 120,000 530,200 410,200 ity i i i
CrFo market purchase
. = RACHE B RG MR ERTF
o[ &4 42
BT % BISEE 120,000 520,000 400,000 Equity incentive restricted
Zifei Yuan Vice President stock grant
o 5 RACH IR &R BT
ik 12 Bl REIE N : X
Cheng Xing Vice President 120,000 520,000 400,000 Eﬁoucllt(yglrnacnetmlve restricted
Zs 50 3 AR &1 R RE T
= BT = 120,000 520,000 400,000 Equity incentive restricted
Zhi Li Vice President stock grant
ap EZaMB RACE B R MR ZR T
Rong Zou Secretary of 120,000 520,000 400,000 Equity incentive restricted
8 the board stock grant
He i) e8 Other information
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On February 19, 2024, following the nomination by the
Company's General Manager and the qualification review by
the Nomination Committee, the 16th meeting of the Company's
fourth Board of Directors reviewed and approved the "Proposal
to Appoint the Company's Vice President”. The Board agreed to
appoint Wei Chen and Zhi Li as Vice Presidents. Their terms
will commence from the date of the Board's resolution and
will end upon the conclusion of the fourth Board of Directors'
term. For more details, please refer to the "Announcement on
the Appointment of Senior Management" (Announcement No.:
2024-008), published on the SSE website (www.sse.com.cn) on
February 20, 2024.
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On May 17, 2024, the Company received the resignation
letter from Director Mr. Yin Lei, who applied to resign from
the position of director due to personal reasons. The 84,000
shares of restricted stock that had been granted to him but
not yet released from restrictions will not be lifted and will be
repurchased and canceled by the Company at the grant price.
For details, please refer to the "Announcement on the Resignation
of Director” (Announcement No.: 2024-050) published on the SSE
website (www.sse.com.cn) on May 18, 2024.

Equity incentives granted to directors, supervisors, and
senior management during the reporting period

No stock options were granted or unlocked during the reporting
period.

B K
Unit: Share

. BEx. 58
ﬁEiEILDu Board, Senior 120,000
managent
e 5. 58
O 46 58 i
Weigiang Song a(;anradg'esnetmor 120,000
1 =
B mE 120,000
e BH (BT
Leim\i(in Board 120,000
(departed)
5. 88
\B//\ifgi%chen Board, Senior 120,000
managent
= s
72 Coni
Senior 120,000
Cheng Sun mar:agent '
. =g
g?f_:i ;Euan senior £20.000
managent
= =&
7 12 Coni
Cheng Xing ?neanr:ggem 120,000
" =58
iﬁi Senior 120,000
managent
=
EE Coni
Senior 120,000
Rong Zou managent
a1t
Total / 1200.000

400,000 36,000 484,000 484,000
400,000 36,000 484,000 484,000
150,000 36,000 234,000 234,000
36,000 84,000 84,000
400,000 36,000 484,000 484,000
400,000 36,000 484,000 484,000
400,000 36,000 484,000 484,000
400,000 36,000 484,000 484,000
400,000 36,000 484,000 484,000
400,000 36,000 484,000 484,000
3,350,000 360,000 4,190,000 4,190,000
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FN\T MSKRE
SECTION VIII FINANCIAL REPORTS

—. MSEKR | Financial reports
BHAFERMRER Consolidated balance sheet
2024FE6830H
June 30, 2024
R HERUROERQE B r MM ARM
Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. Unit: RMB
B E 2023F12831H
b
G| Item Notes December 31, 2023
Mo EFE: Current Assets:
whAE Cash and Cash equivalents 1 2,442,708,603.20
X5/ A T Financial assets held for 2 2,410,429,796.82
trading
L7 W Tk 5% Accounts receivable 3 383,735,270.90
7 W 3R T ik S Financing receivables 4 1,634,782.89
FRAT #0I Prepayments 5 40,979,491.54
Hth &7 W 7t Other receivables 6 3,491,907.62
Hrh: 7B F) Of which: Dividends
receivable
=5 Inventories 7 860,506,306.14
Htmoh &~ Other current assets 8 32,263,551.43
MBI A~ &It Total current assets 6,175,749,710.54
ERDEF: Non-current Assets:
R R Debt investment 9 304,658,333.33
HiErnoEsmEr Other non-current financial 10 30,000,000.00
assets
[E & &~ Fixed assets 1 1,872,067,763.13
EEIRE Construction in progress 12 2,006,961,148.27
ERANEF Right-of-use assets 13 6,592,364.52
T A= Intangible assets 14 278,082,595.92
A& H Development expenditures 813,105,292.99
KEFF R A Long-term prepaid 15 8,868,054.70
expenses
BT R A Deferred tax assets 16 168,953,020.84
HMgERh A~ Other non-current assets 17 49,985,187.56
ERBDEFEIT Total non-current assets 5,539,273,761.26
E Rt Total assets 11,715,023,471.80
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BHEERABRRER () Consolidated balance sheet (Continued)
B S 202342128318
mE Item Notes December 31, 2023
ThEhfafR: Current Liabilities
WENEEN Accounts payable 19 105,541,739.99
E R 7GR Contract liabilities 20 52,991,852.39
N7 BR T 5 B Payroll and employee benefits 21 139,761,214.89
payable
Y 32 F7 28 Taxes payable 22 16,910,777.27
=R PVENE SN Other payables 23 454,009,437.80
HA: AR F) Of which: Dividends payable
—FRE A IE R s A Current portion of non- 24 3,958,443.73
current liabilities
Him syt fz Other current liabilities 25 275,580.81
moh R A it Total current liabilities 773,449,046.88
ERohfafh: Non-current Liabilities:
HE R Lease liabilities 26 5,447,249.65
EEIVASEN Long-term payables 27 13,995,107.23
% HE U Deferred income 28 179,625,640.40
5 HE F 1 At Deferred tax liabilities
FERBAREIT Total non-current liabilities 199,067,997.28
AEE it Total liabilities 972,517,044.16
FREENE (HRBRANE) : Owners' (or Shareholders’)
Equity:
SE U R AR (SRR AR) Paid-in capital (or share 29 594,161,750.00
capital)
RN Capital reserve 30 3,350,753,839.87
B EER Less: Treasury share 31 71,364,020.00
HihZa W m Other comprehensive income 32 3,817,428.85
BENAR Surplus reserve 33 297,080,875.00
RO EFE Retained earnings 34 6,568,056,149.20
PBEFEBREIMEE N @ Equity attributable to owners 10,742,506,022.92
VRN of the parent
(B ARNE) &It
D EBE AR R Non-controlling interests 404.72
FECEDEACT &) Total owners’ (or 10,742,506,427.64
&3t shareholders’) equity
AEMPAEE NS (B AN Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ 11,715,023,471.80
) 2t Equity
NEIATRAN: BB TEASIIMEAT A NEE SRR A B
Legal representative: Zhongru Gan Chief accountant: Cheng Sun Head of accounting Li Zhou

department:
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2024FE6830H
June 30, 2024

Balance sheet of the parent company

AR HERHILRDBERAE
Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

mE
TEE
wEAS
RRERBA
2 U5 K

B2 45 3 7
A 3T

B 1t 57 U2 30
Heb: mR R
7 8%

ELfth 70 28 7
T A At
ERAA
BT A
KRN R
B fth 4 7 e R
B e

R IR
ChD
ER A
FRZH

I F A8 A
Bt 7 7 4
ERBASE I
ARt
TED P B

B2 19 BB

& B £

[ 1 BR T #r B

3
=)

[z 32 %5t 2%

VAN BN

Hep: WA A
—FREHHIER B AR
HAth 7% & 2 3R

mEN RS it

Iltem

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets held for
trading

Accounts receivable
Financing receivables
Prepayments

Other receivables

Of which: Dividends
receivable

Inventories

Other current assets

Total current assets
Non-Current Assets:

Debt investments

Long-term equity
investments

Other non-current financial
assets

Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Development expenditures
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contract liabilities

Payroll and employee
benefits payable

Taxes payable

Other payables

Of which: Dividends payable

Current portion of non-
current liabilities

Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

M o

Notes

Semi-Annual Report 2024

B MMARM
Unit: RMB

2023%12H31H
December 31, 2023

2,359,684,574.09
2,410,429,796.82

377,687,677.64
1,634,782.89
36,978,386.16
2,723,074,560.84

587,033,901.97
30,346,630.28
8,526,870,310.69

304,658,333.33
662,851,363.04

30,000,000.00

1,536,599,780.63
168,073,556.37
416,568.88
154,512,530.10
790,687,343.08
25,122,908.05
1,927,123.15
3,674,849,506.63
12,201,719,817.32

51,551,208.54
38,349,021.43
120,220,444.05

13,719,664.08
299,208,545.77

1,408,891.96

38,321.70
524,496,097.53
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Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

BREZEEAGRKR (& Balance sheet of the parent company (Continued)
hp= 2023F12831H

=] Item Notes December 31, 2023
e & fA fm Non-current Liabilities:

HE AR Lease liability 168,264.20

INEEIVASEN Long-term payable 3,790,552.63

& JE U Deferred income 45,880,986.91

2 IE TS A L f Deferred tax liabilities

Emop s it Total non-current liabilities 49,839,803.74

&It Total liabilities 574,335,901.27
FrEENE (HRANG) : Owners' (or Shareholders’)

Equity:
U AN (3K AR AN Paid-in capital (or share 594,161,750.00
capital)

BAERANTR Capital reserve 3,350,753,079.70

B EER Less: Treasury shares 71,364,020.00

BENATR Surplus reserve 297,080,875.00

R B Retained earnings 7,456,752,231.35

FrE &N & (AN E) Total owners' (or 11,627,383,916.05
&3t shareholders’) equity
ARFMFABEENG (HREM  Total Liabilities and 12,201,719,817.32
=) B Shareholders’ Equity
YNETRAR N HE2 BRITIERZE A hig I AZRE A & N

Ve ; . Head of accounting .

Legal representative: Zhongru Gan Chief accountant: Cheng Sun department: Li Zhou
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SHAER Consolidated income statement

2024F1—-68
From January to June 2024

FHRUHFHULRNDBERELRT Bt mHARD

Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. Unit: RMB
ip=a 023FHFE
I
=] Item Notes 2023 H1
— . BlEEA I. Total Operating Revenue 1,229,765,113.65
He: gl Including: Operating revenue 35 1,229,765,113.65
T EBULEEA Il. Operating cost 1,108,907,254.24
Hep: Bl A Including: Operating cost 35 322,655,986.20
5t & K2 BfS AN Taxes and surcharges 36 12,493,109.55
HEZA Selling expenses 37 465,243,177.81
EEZEA General and 38 100,695,377.33
administrative expenses
A & R&D expenses 39 261,962,985.39
52 A Financial expenses 40 -54,143,382.04
m: EU Add: Other income 41 11,053,501.82
BHEWE GRELL Income from 42 21,034,510.73
= | investments (loss expressed
S5 with ")
NAaAMET S (R Income from changes in 43 9,902,075.97
K ple_” 2 F) fair value (loss expressed with
n_n)
ERBER K R KLU Credit impairment 44 5,476,246.03
«_veiEE)) losses (loss expressed with
"
AR ER K RKLL Asset impairment losses 45 -4,326,667.96
«_veiEE|) (loss expressed with "-")
BB W E (BKL Income from disposal 46 45,822.47
“_veiEE|) of assets (loss expressed with
"
=. BUFMBEGHEL—"5 I Operating profit (loss 164,043,348.47
1 51) expressed with "-")
m: gl s N Add: Non-operating revenue 47 2,185,720.84
B BN H Less: Non-operating 48 6,535,466.78
expenses
CFERE (SR AU IV. Total Profit (loss expressed 159,693,602.53
“__» %tﬁ§u) W|th |v7n)
B TSt gt B Less: Income tax expense 49 25,538,397.62

h.AMEBGRSRULTS
=)
(DEZERFREDE

LEREESFE (SR
Be—" S E51)

V. Net profit (net loss
expressed with "-")

(I) Classification by business
continuity

1. Net profit from continuing
operations (loss expressed
with "=")

134,155,204.91

134,155,204.91
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Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

aHFER &)

Consolidated income statement (Continued)

o
(D) EEAmERAR D %
LABT 8RB RANA
Ao O ML =" S8 )

0B BARBRm (TR
" SIET)

AL HMEEWRENRER
#

(DHAEBRBMEER
Hih & W B i 2 % 3

1. TRREDLHMENE
RS =l

2. BEHEHIAEN EA
Ga i

®) SIS REFTEEDR

(DABFLHERANE
iR & Wr at B9 AR /2 0% B

t. GERELH|

(HPRAEBTHABMES
HEERE S|
(D)EABTFTLHBRANS
AW E 23]
N, ERIKE:
(mBEAERWET/R)

(D) mRsRWE(T/R)

Iltem
(I Classification by ownership

1. Net profits attributable to
shareholders of the parent (net loss
expressed with "-")

2. Minority profits and losses (net
loss expressed with "-")

VI. Net amount after tax of other
comprehensive income

(1) Net amount after tax of other
comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the parent Company

1. Other comprehensive income
that cannot be reclassified into
profits/losses

2.0ther comprehensive income
to be reclassified into gains/losses

(6) Exchange differences from
translation of foreign currency
financial statements

(I) Net amount after tax of other
comprehensive income attributable
to minority shareholders

VII. Total Comprehensive Income

(I) Total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the parent
Company

(I) Total comprehensive
income attributable to minority
shareholders

VIIl. Earnings Per Share:

(I) Basic earnings per share (RMB
per share)

(I) Diluted earnings per share
(RMB per share)

M o

Notes

203FHFE
2023 H1

134,155,242.69

-37.78

1,789,558.67

1,789,558.67

1,789,558.67

1,789,558.67

135,944,763.58

135,944,801.36

-37.78

0.24

0.24

TR ER—IZH TERLEHB, &
BHATEEHEIRNAFE 0
70, EEEH AR AFE N

As for business merger under the same control in the current
period, the net profit generated by the merged party before the
merge was RMB 0, and that generated during the previous period

07T o was RMB 0.
NEHEAN: HEa FERITIERZTA: mizg UMW ATR A B
o . . Head of accounting .
Legal representative: Zhongru Gan Chief accountant: Cheng Sun department: Li Zhou
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From January to June 2024
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Income statement of the parent company

WA B EFHIWERNERLST

Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

BT mHARD
Unit: RMB

oA
22 ON
V=357
ot = K ffS AN
HERR
B

MAER
2R

e HAb s

% 7 W i (R 5 L=
S #51)

A E T YR 3 (R
51 “—" SHLF)

{25 P AL{E 462 26 (352 26 0
“—" S 3)

BEFERERR (BRU
‘7 S1E5)

AP B W (BR L
=T SIETY)

—LEBLABGERLS
=)
m: B SR

BB S

S HMBEEIGERETU
‘=" S1H)
PS8R A
M. &EFECGESRL S
=)
(D) BaagsiE (35
B =" ST
. Bt G5 RENHES

i
N EEREEE

Iltem

I. Operating Revenue
Less: Operating cost
Taxes and surcharges
Selling expenses

General and
administrative expenses

R&D expense

Financial expense

Add: Other income

Investment income
(loss expressed with "-")

Income from changes
in fair value (loss expressed
with "=")

Credit impairment
losses (loss expressed with
")

Assets impairment
losses (loss expressed with
n_n)

Income from disposal
of assets (loss expressed with
)

II. Operating profit (loss
expressed with "-")

Add: Non-operating revenue

Less: Non-operating
expenses
IIl. Total profit (Total loss
expressed with "-")

Less: Income tax expense

IV. Net profit (Net loss
expressed with "-")

(I) Net profit from
continuing operations (Net
loss expressed with "-")

V. Net amount after tax of
other comprehensive income

VI. Total comprehensive
income

B E
Notes

023FFFE
2023 H1

1,196,874,650.97
311,782,190.62
9,532,806.25
422,849,623.10
71,562,749.51

231,960,395.14
-90,793,296.25

10,089,887.40
21,034,510.73

9,902,075.97

7,654,059.10

-3,843,398.71

-234.00

284,817,083.09

2,004,342.23
6,339,008.05

280,482,417.27

44,535,639.38
235,946,777.89

235,946,777.89

235,946,777.89

NEIAE A

Legal representative: Zhongru Gan

TR

FESUWIMEATA:

Chief accountant:

iz UM BAZTE AL S

Head of accounting
department:

Cheng Sun Li Zhou

2024 FERE /127



Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

BHRERER

2024%1—-6H
From January to June 2024

Consolidated cash flow statement

RHEBAEFTHIWERNERALFT

Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

oA

— AEEDFENAETR

80

HEBM. BREFSSWE
NI =

U B B9 7 28 0R 1E
WEHMSZEENE X
B =

KEERNE RN

MEER. BERF SN
I =
SNHIR T RARIT AN
M &

S AT B9 & TR 2R
ENEMEZEEEHE X
I &
KEESRNERE NI

KEEDTFENATRE
ekl
L RABEDFENRNER

=.
Y [o] 4% 3= B B9 L &=
BEHEARZWRINAE

REEEAE™. EXHE
MEMKAE~RENINE
& &

WEIHM S KRB E X
B &

BAREDIE R NN

WEEEAE™. XA
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I. Cash flows from operating
activities:

Cash received from the sale
of goods and the rendering of
services

Receipts of tax refund

Other cash receipts in
relation to operating activities

Subtotal of cash inflows
from operating activities

Cash paid for purchase of
goods and services

Cash paid to and for
employees

Cash paid for taxes

Cash paid relating to other
operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows
from operating activities

Net cash flow from
operating activities

II. Cash flows from investing
activities:

Cash received from disposal
of investment

Cash received from
investment income

Net proceeds from disposal
of fixed assets, intangible
assets, and other long-term
assets

Cash received relating to
other investing activities

Subtotal of cash inflows
from investing activities

Cash paid for purchase and
construction of fixed assets,
intangible assets, and other
long-term assets

Cash paid for investment

Cash paid relating to other
investing activities

Subtotal of cash outflows
from investment activities

Net cash flow from investing
activities

M oE

Notes

BT mHARD
Unit: RMB

128\ HFEHIRBERATE

023FFFE
2023 H1

1,157,280,652.42

31,079,292.02
13,995,993.30

1,202,355,937.74

375,439,095.39

386,260,587.44

17,747,324.19
481,074,651.89

1,260,521,658.91

-58,165,721.17

2,752,063,500.44

28,500,704.86

190,000.00

13,846,993.67

2,794,601,198.97

216,193,860.03

2,525,166,333.92
41,243,532.84

2,782,603,726.79

11,997,472.18
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) Consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)
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[Il. Cash flows from financing
activities:

Cash received from
absorbing investment

Subtotal of cash inflows
from financing activities

Cash paid for dividend and
profit distribution or interest
payment

Other cash payments
related to financing activities

Subtotal of cash outflows
from financing activities

Net cash flow from financing
activities

IV. Effect of exchange rate
changes on cash and cash
equivalents

V. Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Add: Opening balance of
cash and cash equivalents

V1. Closing balance of cash and
cash equivalents

Pz

Notes

203F ¥ FE
2023 H1

2,202,856.29

2,202,856.29

-2,202,856.29

4,549,384.22

-43,821,721.06

397,328,882.98

353,507,161.92

NEIAR A

Legal representative:

BB

Zhongru Gan

Chief accountant:

FESUWIEARA:

g

UMW HARZE A

Head of accounting
department:

B

Cheng Sun Li Zhou
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Cash flow statement of the parent company
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I. Cash flows from operating
activities:

Cash received from the sale
of goods and the rendering of
services

Cash received relating to
other operating activities

Subtotal of cash inflows
from operating activities

Cash paid for purchase of
goods and services

Cash paid to and for
employees

Cash paid for taxes

Cash paid relating to other
operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows
from operating activities

Net cash flow from
operating activities

II. Cash flows from investing
activities:

Cash received from disposal
of investment

Cash received from
investment income

Net proceeds from disposal
of fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term
assets

Cash received relating to
other investing activities

Subtotal of cash inflows
from investing activities

hp=
Notes

BT MM ARM

Unit: RMB

130\ HFEHRHBERAFE

03FHFE
2023 H1

1,090,122,370.64

144,943,479.75

1,235,065,850.39

268,282,956.29

339,970,519.50

7,792,832.66

572,839,873.38

1,188,886,181.83

46,179,668.56

2,781,943,959.65

28,500,704.86

10,000.00

46,364,956.16

2,856,819,620.67
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Cash flow statement of the parent company (Continued)

iz 2023F+FE
IR
=] Item Notes 2023 H1
WEBEHR™. LA Cash paid for purchase and 70,803,754.16
< HA 2R 2 <5 ot B 3T construction of fixed assets,
MAMKAAF XN intangible assets, and other
long-term assets
BRAIZTNIUE Cash paid for investments 2,551,422,240.70
TRHEMEERERENE Cash paid relating to other 271,976,132.84
R investing activities
BRFEHI &R E /NI Subtotal of cash outflows 2,894,202,127.70
from investing activities
SEEMEENNERE Net cash flow from investing -37,382,507.03
R activities
= ERFEHEENME R 1L Cash flows from financing
2 activities:
T Uy 3% 5 I B B L & Cash received from
investment
FERG M T |MNNIT Subtotal of cash inflows
from financing activities
D ECRF . FE = AT A Cash paid for dividend and
. profit distribution or interest
EXMHNIE payment
TRHEMEERENEX Other cash payments 660,151.00
R related to financing activities
EXRENIE HME /NIt Subtotal of cash outflows 660,151.00
from financing activities
ERFNFENNERE Net cash flow from financing -660,151.00
B activities
CEEXRTHWEME RIS V. Effect of foreign exchange 2,499,252.17
¥ A rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents
E.WERWEENY ST V. Netincrease in cash and 10,636,262.70
10 &5 cash equivalents
mn:EyRERMEEN Add: Opening balance of 317,342,04815
i cash and cash equivalents
N HERMERMEENY VI Closing balance of cash and 327,978,310.85
B cash equivalents
NEAFEAN: HaRm FEHIERZTE A N2 =M AE A ISR
o ' . Head of accounting '
Legal representative: Zhongru Gan Chief accountant: Cheng Sun department: Li Zhou
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Basic information of the Company
Company overview

Registered address, organizational form and headquarter
address of the Company

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. (hereinafter referred to as the
"Company" or "the Company") formerly known as Beijing Gan
& Lee Biotechnology Co., Ltd., established on June 17, 1998. It
is a limited liability company registered in Beijing, China. It was
jointly funded by Zhongru Gan, Yiru Gan, and Xiru Gan, and was
restructured as a joint stock limited company on September 13,
2012. The Company was listed in Shanghai Stock Exchange on
June 29, 2020, and now holds a business license with Unified
Social Credit Identifier of 91110000102382249M.

The Nineteenth Meeting of the Fourth Session of the Board of
Directors and the Eighteenth Meeting of the Fourth Session of
the Supervisory Committee of the Company were held on 15
May 2024, at which the “Proposal on the Granting of Restricted
Shares to the Incentive Participants under the Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme of the Company for the Year 2024" was
considered and approved, and 7,130,000 restricted shares were
granted to the 90 incentive recipients who fulfilled the conditions
for granting the shares, and 7,040,000 restricted shares were
actually granted to 87 incentive recipients, with 15 May 2024 as
the grant date. On 24 May 2024, the Company completed the
registration of the grant of restricted shares under the Restricted
Share Incentive Scheme. After the grant of restricted shares, the
total share capital of the Company changed from 594,161,750
shares to 601,201,750 shares.

As at 30 June 2024, the total cumulative issued share capital of
the Company was 601,201,750 shares and the registered capital
was RMB 601,201,750. Registered address is No. 8 Nanfeng West
1st Street, Huoxian, Tongzhou District, Beijing. Headquarter
address is No. 8 Nanfeng West 1st Street, Huoxian, Tongzhou
District, Beijing. The actual controller is Zhongru Gan.

Business type and main business activities of the Company

The Company belongs to the pharmaceutical manufacturing
industry, principally engages in R&D, production and sales of
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insulin analogue APIs and preparations. The main products
of the Company include several insulin analogues and human
insulin, namely Long-acting Glargine Injection (Basalin®), Fast-
acting Lispro Injection (Prandilin®), Mixed Protamine Zinc Lispro
Injection (25R) (Prandilin®25), Fast-acting Aspart Injection
(Raplin®), Aspart 30 Injection (Raplin®30), Mixed Protamine
Human Insulin Injection (30R) (Similin®30).

Approval of the financial statements

This financial statements have been approved for disclosure by
the Board of Directors of the Company on August 27, 2024.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
Basis of preparation

The Company prepares financial statements on the basis of
transactions and events that have actually occurred and are
recognized and measured in accordance with the "Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises - Basic Standards", specific
accounting standards for business enterprises, application
guidelines for accounting standards for business enterprises,
interpretations of accounting standards for business enterprises
and other related provisions (collectively referred to as
"Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises") issued by the
Ministry of Finance, and on this basis, in conjunction with the
provisions of the China Securities Regulatory Commission's
"General Provisions on Financial Reporting, No. 15 of the Rules
Governing Disclosure of Information by Companies Issuing Public
Securities" (revised in 2023).

Going concern

The sustainability of the 12 months of the report from the end of
this period has been evaluated. No significant matter or situation
which could influence the ability to maintain its sustainability has
been found. Therefore, the financial statements are based on the
assumption of going concern.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting
estimates

Reminders on specific accounting policies and accounting
estimates:

The Company determines specific accounting policies and
accounting estimates based on actual production and operating
characteristics, which are mainly reflected in the methods of
accruing expected credit losses on accounts receivable amounts
(see Note (IV)/ (12) Accounts receivable), the valuation methods of
inventories (see Note (IV)/ (14) Inventiory), depreciation of fixed
assets and amortization of intangible assets (see Note (IV)/ (16)
Fixed Assets and Note (1V)/ (18) Intangible Assets), and the timing
of revenue recognition (Note (IV)/ (25) Revenue).

The Company evaluates the critical accounting estimates and
key assumptions used on an ongoing basis, based on historical
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations
of future events. Significant changes in the following critical
accounting estimates and key assumptions could result in a
material impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in subsequent fiscal years:

Expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Company calculates expected credit losses on accounts
receivable by using the exposure to default on accounts
receivable and the expected credit loss rate, and determines
the expected credit loss rate based on the probability of default
and the default loss rate. In determining the expected credit
loss rate, the Company uses data such as internal historical
credit loss experience and adjusts historical data by taking into
account current conditions and forward-looking information,
and in considering forward-looking information adjusts historical
data. In considering forward-looking information, the Company
uses indicators such as the risk of economic downturns, changes
in external market conditions and customer situations. The
Company regularly monitors and reviews assumptions related to
the calculation of expected credit losses.

Estimation of inventory impairment

In accordance with the Company's inventory accounting policy,
inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value,
and a provision for inventory write-downs is made for inventories
with cost higher than net realizable value and for obsolete, near-
expired and expired inventories. The impairment of inventories to
net realizable value is based on an assessment of the marketability
of inventories and their net realizable value. The identification of
inventory impairment requires management to make judgments and
estimates based on obtaining conclusive evidence and considering
factors such as the purpose for which the inventory is held and
the impact of post-balance sheet events. Differences between
actual results and original estimates will affect the carrying value of
inventories and the provision for impairment or reversal of inventories
in the period in which the estimates are changed.
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Depreciation and amortization

The Company depreciates and amortizes fixed assets and
intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their useful
lives, taking into account their residual values. The Company
periodically reviews useful lives to determine the amount of
depreciation and amortization expense to be charged to each
year, and useful lives are determined based on the Company's
historical experience with similar assets and in conjunction with
anticipated technological updates. Depreciation and amortization
expense is adjusted in future periods if there are significant
changes in previous estimates.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to offset the losses. This requires
the Company's management to use significant judgment in
estimating the timing and amount of future taxable profit,
combined with tax planning strategies, to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets to be recognized.

Statement of compliance OF ASBES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, which truly and completely reflect the Company's
financial status, operating results, changes in shareholders'
equity, cash flow and other relevant information during the
reporting period.

Accounting period

The Company's fiscal year begins on 1 January and ends on 31
December of the Gregorian calendar.

Operating cycle

The period from 1 January to 31 December of the Gregorian
calendar is a fiscal year.

Recording currency

The Company's recording currency is RMB.

Foreign subsidiaries are recorded in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate and are translated
into RMB for the preparation of financial statements.

Methodology for determining materiality criteria and basis
for selection
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Materiality criteria

Individual write-offs amounting to more
than 5% of the accounts receivable balance
and amounting to more than 0.1% of total
assets at the end of the period

Prepayments individually aged over 1 year
represent more than 5% of the balance of
prepayments and are greater than 0.1% of
total assets at the end of the period

Accounts payable with an individual aged
over 1 year accounted for more than

5% of the accounts payable balance and
amounted to more than 0.1% of total assets
at the end of the period

Other accounts payable with an individual
aged over 1 year accounted for more
than 5% of the balance of other accounts
payable and amounted to more than 0.1%
of total assets at the end of the period

Closing balance of individual construction
in progress exceeds 0.5% of total assets

Closing balance of individual R&D projects
exceeds 0.5% of total assets
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Accounting treatment of mergers of enterprises under or
not under common control

Multiple transactions are accounted for as a package when the
terms, conditions and economic effects of each transaction in the
course of a step-by-step realization of a business combination
meet one or more of the following conditions.

®

The transactions are made simultaneously or with
consideration of each other's influence.

Only when the transactions are as a whole can they achieve a
complete business outcome.

The occurrence of a transaction depends on the occurrence of

at least one of others.

A transaction considered alone is uneconomic, but it is
economic when considered together with others.
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Mergers of enterprises under common control

In a business combination, assets and liabilities are valued at
the carrying value of the party being acquired, including any
resulting goodwill, as reported in the consolidated financial
statements at the date of the combination. The book value of
net assets acquired in a merger is compared to the book value
of the merger consideration paid (or the total par value of the
shares issued). Any difference is adjusted to the equity premium
in capital surplus. If the equity premium in capital surplus is
not enough to offset the difference, the retained earnings are
adjusted accordingly.

If there is a contingent consideration that requires recognition
of a projected liability or asset, adjust the difference between
the projected liability or asset and the subsequent settlement of
the contingent consideration to capital surplus (capital premium
or equity premium), or to retained earnings if capital surplus is
insufficient.

For business combinations achieved through multiple
transactions, each transaction is accounted for as a single
transaction for the acquisition of control if they are part of a
package deal. If they are not part of a package deal, on the
date of the acquisition of control, the difference between the
initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment and
the sum of the book value of the long-term equity investment
before reaching the merger plus the book value of the new
consideration paid for the further acquisition of shares on the
date of the merger adjusts the capital surplus. If the capital
surplus is insufficient to cover the difference, retained earnings
are adjusted. For equity investments held before consolidation,
any other comprehensive income resulting from adopting
the equity method of accounting or financial instrument
recognition and measurement guidelines is not accounted for
until the investment is disposed of using the same basis as the
investee unit's direct disposal of related assets or liabilities.
Other comprehensive income recognized in the net assets of
the investee unit due to the adoption of the equity method
of accounting, excluding net gain or loss, changes in equity
other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income, and
profit distribution, are not accounted for until the investment
is disposed of and transferred to profit or loss for the current
period.

Mergers of enterprises not under common control

The acquisition date is the date on which the Company actually
obtains control of the acquire, i.e., the date on which control of
the acquiree's net assets or production and operating decisions
is transferred to the Company. The Company generally considers
that the transfer of control is achieved when all the following
conditions are met:
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® The business combination contract or agreement has been
approved by the Company's internal authority.

@ If the matter of business combination requires the approval
of the relevant state authorities, such approval has been
obtained.

® The necessary procedures for the transfer of property rights
have been carried out.

@ The Company has paid the majority of the consideration for
acquisition and has the ability and plan to pay the remaining
amount.

® The Company has effectively controlled the financial
and operating policies of the acquiree, and enjoys the
corresponding benefits and bears the corresponding risks.

The Company measures assets given and liabilities incurred or
assumed as consideration for a business combination at fair
value. The difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

The difference between the combination cost and the fair value
of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree obtained in the
combination is recognized as goodwill. The difference between
the combination cost less than the fair value of the identifiable
net assets of the acquiree obtained in the combination is
included in the profit or loss upon review for the current
reporting period.

For mergers of enterprises not under common control realised
by multiple exchange transactions, if the transaction is a package
deal, each transaction is accounted for as a transaction to obtain
control. If it is not a package deal, and the equity investment
held before the acquisition date is accounted for using the
equity method, the sum of the carrying amount of the equity
investment held in the acquiree before the purchase date and
the new investment cost on the acquisition date is taken as the
initial investment cost of the investment. Other comprehensive
income recognized by the equity method for equity investment
held before the merger date is accounted for on the same basis
as the investee directly disposes of related assets or liabilities.
If the equity investment held before the acquisition date is
accounted for using the financial instrument recognition and
measurement criteria, the sum of the fair value of the equity
investment on the combination date plus the new investment
cost is taken as the initial investment cost on the acquisition
date. The difference between the fair value of the original equity
interest and the carrying amount and the accumulative changes
in fair value originally included in other comprehensive income
shall be transferred to the current investment income on the
acquisition date.
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Related expenses incurred for the combination

The audit fee, legal service fee, assessment and consulting
expenses and other directly related expenses incurred for
the business combination are recognized in current profit or
loss during the period incurred. Transaction costs for equity
securities issued for the business combination are deducted
from equity if they are directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Criteria for determining control and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements

Criteria for determining control

The scope of consolidation for the consolidated financial
statements is determined based on control. Control refers to the
Company's power over the investee. From the participation in
the activities of the investee, variable returns can be obtained,
of which the Company is able to use its power to affect the level
of those returns. The Company reviews its assessment of control
when changes in relevant facts and circumstances affect the
elements that define control.

In determining whether to include a structured entity in the
consolidated financial statements, the Company evaluates
whether it controls the structured entity based on a combination
of all the facts and circumstances, including an assessment of
the purpose and design for which the structured entity was
established, the identification of the types of variable returns,
and whether the Company assumes some or all of the variability
of returns through its participation in the related activities, etc.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements
@® Scope of consolidation

The scope of combination of the Company's consolidated
financial statements is determined based on control, and
all subsidiaries (including separate entities controlled by the
Company) are included in the combined financial statements.

@ Consolidation procedure

The Company prepares consolidated financial statements based on
the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, and
other relevant information. The Company prepares the consolidated
financial statements to reflect the financial position, operating results
and cash flows of the enterprise group as a whole by considering the
entire enterprise group as a single accounting entity in accordance
with the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements of
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and in accordance
with unified accounting policies.
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The accounting policies and accounting periods adopted by
all subsidiaries included in the scope of consolidation of the
consolidated financial statements are consistent with the
Company. If the accounting policies and accounting periods
adopted by the subsidiaries are inconsistent with the Company,
the Company will make necessary adjustments to the accounting
policies and accounting periods of subsidiaries in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

When the financial statements are consolidated, the impact of
internal transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
and between subsidiaries on the consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated income statement, consolidated
cash flow statement and consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders' equity is offset. If the judgment of the consolidated
financial statements of the enterprise group is different from
the recognition of the same transaction by the Company or the
subsidiary as the accounting entity, the transaction is adjusted
from the perspective of the enterprise group.

The share of owner's equity, net profit and loss, and
comprehensive income of the current period attributable to
minority shareholders of a subsidiary are separately listed under
the owner's equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position, the net profit under the consolidated income statement
and under the total comprehensive income. The difference
between the current loss shared by the minority shareholders

of the subsidiary and the minority shareholder's share of the
owner's equity of the subsidiary at the beginning of the period is
eliminated to reduce the minority shareholders' equity.

For a subsidiary acquired under merger of enterprises under
common control, the financial statements are adjusted based
on the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities (including
goodwill resulting from the acquisition of the subsidiary by the
ultimate controlling party) in the financial statements of the
ultimate controlling part.

For subsidiaries acquired from mergers of enterprises not under
common control, the financial statements are adjusted based
on the fair value of the identifiable net assets at the acquisition
date.

Increase in subsidiaries or business

During the report period, if the Company increased subsidiaries
or business from mergers of enterprises under common control,
then the opening balance of the consolidated statement of
financial position should be adjusted. The revenue, expense and
profit from the combinations of the subsidiaries and business
from the beginning of the current year to the end of the
reporting period shall be included in the consolidated income
statement. Cash flows from the combinations of the subsidiaries
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and business from the beginning of the current year to the end
of the reporting period shall be included in the consolidated cash
flow statement. At the same time, the Company should adjust the
relevant items of the comparative statements and deem that the
reporting entity already exists when the ultimate controller starts
its control.

Where the Company can control the investee under common
control from additional investments, it should deem that
parties involved in the combination have adjust at the current
state when the ultimate controller starts its control. Equity
investments held before the company controls the cquire, the
relevant profit and loss recognized during the period from
the later of the date when the company obtains the original
equity and the date when the acquirer and the cquire are under
common control, other comprehensive income and changes in
other net assets shall be used to offset the retained earnings
at the beginning of the year or the current profit and loss in the
period of the comparative statements.

During the report period, if the Company increased subsidiaries
or business from mergers of enterprises not under common
control, then the beginning amount of the consolidated
statement of financial position should not be adjusted. The
revenue, expense and profit from the subsidiaries and business
from the acquisition date to the end of the report period shall be
included in the consolidated income statement. Cash flows from
the subsidiaries and business from the acquisition date to the
end of the reporting period shall be included in the consolidated
cash flow statement.

Where the Company can control the investee not under common
control from additional investments, it shall remeasure equity
of the acquiree held before the acquisition date at the fair
value of such equity on the acquisition date and include the
difference of the fair value and book value in the investment
income in the current year. Where equity of the acquiree held
before the acquisition date involves in other comprehensive
income accounted for under equity method and other
changes in owner's equity other than net profit and loss, other
comprehensive income and profit distribution, the relevant other
comprehensive income and other changes in owner's equity shall
be transferred to investment income in the current year when
the acquisition date falls in, except for other comprehensive
income from changes arising from remeasurement of net
liabilities or net assets of defined benefit plan.
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Disposal of subsidiaries or businesses

General treatment

During the reporting period, if the Company disposed
subsidiaries or business, the revenue, expenses and profits from
the subsidiaries or from the beginning of operating period to
date of disposal shall be included in the consolidated income
statement. Cash flows from the combinations of the subsidiaries
and business from the beginning of the year to the disposal date
shall be included in the consolidated cash flow statement.

When the Company losses the control over the original
subsidiary due to disposal of partial equity investments or other
reasons, the remaining equity investments after the disposal will
be remeasured at the fair value at the date of loss of the control.
The difference of total amount of the consideration from disposal
of equities plus the fair value of the remaining equities less the
shares calculated at the original shareholding ratio in net assets
of the original subsidiary which are continuously calculated as
of the acquisition date is included in the investment income of
the period at the loss of control. Other comprehensive income
associated with the original equity investments of the subsidiary
and other changes in owner's equity other than net profit and
loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution are
transferred into investment income in the current year when
the control is lost, except for other comprehensive income from
changes arising from remeasurement of net liabilities or net
assets of defined benefit plan.

Step-by-step disposal of subsidiaries

If the equity investment in a subsidiary is disposed of step by
step through multiple transactions until the loss of control, the
terms, conditions, and economic effects of each transaction to
dispose of the equity investment in the subsidiary satisfy one or
more of the following conditions, which generally indicate that
the multiple transactions should be accounted for as a package
deal:

A These transactions are concluded simultaneously or under the
consideration of mutual effects.

B. Only when the transactions are as a whole can they achieve a
complete business outcome.

C. The occurrence of a transaction depends on the occurrence of
at least one of others.

D. A single transaction is uneconomical, but it is economical when

considered together with others.

If all transactions of the disposal of an equity investment in a
subsidiary until the loss of control is a package transaction,
the Company accounts for each transaction as one transaction
to dispose of a subsidiary and to lose control. However, the
difference between the disposal price and the corresponding
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share of the net assets of the subsidiary corresponding to the
investment disposed of in each case prior to the loss of control
should be recognized in the consolidated financial statements as
other comprehensive income, and should be transferred to the
current profit or loss at the loss of the control.

If the various transactions for the disposal of equity investments
in subsidiaries until the loss of control are not a package
transaction, prior to the loss of the control, the accounting
treatment shall be made according to the relevant policies for
partial disposal of equity investments in the subsidiary without
losing control; upon the loss of the control, accounting treatment
shall be made according to general treatment methods for
disposal of subsidiaries.

Purchase of minority interest of subsidiaries

The difference between long-term equity investments newly
acquired by the Company through purchase of minority interest
and the subsidiary's identifiable net assets attributable to the
Company calculated continuously from the acquisition date (or
the combination date) in accordance with the newly increased
shareholding ratio shall be charged against stock premium
within capital reserves in the consolidated statement of
financial position, when stock premium within capital reserves is

insufficient to offset, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.

Partial disposal of equity investments in subsidiaries without losing
control

The difference between the proceeds from partial disposal of
equity investments in the subsidiary and the share of identifiable
net assets of the subsidiary attributable to the Company which
are calculated continuously from the acquisition date or the
combination date and which are corresponding to the disposal
of long-term equity investments without losing control shall
be charged against stock premium within capital reserves in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When stock
premium within capital reserves is insufficient to offset, the
retained earnings shall be adjusted.

Criteria for determining cash and cash equivalents

In preparing cash flow statement, the Company recognizes cash
on hand and deposits that are readily available for payment
as cash. Investments that have all four conditions of short
maturity (generally maturing within three months from the date
of purchase), high liquidity, easy conversion to known amount of
cash, and minimal risk of changes in value are identified as cash
equivalents.
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Foreign currency transactions and translation of foreign
currency statements

Foreign currency transactions

When the foreign currency business transaction is initially
recognized, it is converted into RMB at the spot exchange rate on
the transaction date.

On the balance sheet date, monetary foreign currency items are
translated at the spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences, except for those from foreign
currency special borrowings related to the acquisition and
construction of assets eligible for capitalization that are treated
based on the principle of capitalization of borrowing costs, are
included in the current profit and loss. Non-monetary foreign
currency items measured at historical cost are still translated at
the spot exchange rate on the transaction date without changing
the amount of the book keeping currency.

Non-monetary foreign currency items measured at fair value
are translated using the spot exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The resulting exchange differences
are recognized in profit or loss as change in fair value. In the
case of non-monetary items that are available for sale in foreign
currencies, the resulting exchange differences are included in
other comprehensive income.

Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency financial
statements

Assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are translated using the
spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Owner's equity
except for the "undistributed profit", are converted at the spot
exchange rate at the time of occurrence. Income and expense in
the income statement are translated at the spot exchange rate
on the transaction date. The exchange differences on translation
of foreign currency financial statements arising from the above
conversion is included in other comprehensive income.

When disposing of an overseas operation, the exchange
differences on translation of foreign currency financial
statements related to the foreign operation listed in other
comprehensive income in the balance sheet is transferred
from the other comprehensive income to the profit or loss for
the period of disposal. When disposing of part of the equity
investment or other reasons, resulting in a decrease in the
proportion of overseas business interests held but not losing
control over overseas operations, the translation difference of
foreign currency statement related to the disposal part of the
foreign operation will be attributed to minority shareholders'
equity and will not be transferred to the current profit or loss.
When disposing of a part of the equity of an overseas enterprise
or a joint venture, the exchange differences on translation of
foreign currency statement related to the foreign operation
is transferred to the current profit or loss according to the
proportion of disposal of the foreign operation.
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Financial instruments

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognized when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
financial instrument.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense to each accounting
period.

The effective interest rate is the rate used to discount the
estimated future cash flows of a financial asset or financial
liability through its expected life to the carrying amount of the
financial asset or the amortized cost of the financial liability. In
determining the effective interest rate, the expected cash flows
are estimated taking into account all contractual terms of the
financial asset or financial liability (such as early repayment,
rollover, call option or other similar options, etc.) without
considering the expected credit losses.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the
cumulative amortization resulting from the initial recognized
amount of the financial asset or financial liability, less the
principal repaid, plus or minus the difference between that initial
recognized amount and the amount due using the effective
interest rate method, then less accumulated provision for losses
(applicable only to financial assets).

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following
three categories based on the business model of the financial
assets under management and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets:

® Financial assets measured at amortized cost.

@ Financial assets measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in other comprehensive income.

® Financial assets measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in profit or loss.

Financial assets are measured at fair value at initial recognition,
except for accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from
the sale of goods or provision of services that do not contain a
significant financing component or do not consider a financing
component of less than one year, which are initially measured at
transaction price.

For financial assets measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in profit or loss, the related transaction
costs are recognized directly in profit or loss, and for other
categories of financial assets, the related transaction costs are
recognized in their initial recognition amounts.
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The subsequent measurement of a financial asset depends
on its classification, and all related financial assets affected
are reclassified when and only when the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets classified as measured at amortized cost

If the contractual terms of a financial asset provide that the cash
flows arising on a specific date are solely payments of principal
and interest based on the outstanding principal amount, and the
business model for managing the financial asset is to collect the
contractual cash flows, the Company classifies the financial asset
as financial assets carried at amortized cost. The Company's
financial assets classified as financial assets carried at amortized
cost include monetary funds, accounts receivable, other
receivables, investments in debt and long-term receivables, etc.

The Company recognizes interest income on such financial
assets using the effective interest method, which is subsequently
measured at amortized cost, and any gain or loss arising from
impairment, derecognition or modification of such financial
assets is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. The
Company determines interest income by multiplying the carrying
amount of the financial assets by the effective interest rate,
except for the following situations:

1) For financial assets acquired or originated that are credit
impaired, the Company determines the interest income from
the initial recognition on the basis of the amortized cost of
the financial assets and the effective interest rate adjusted for
credit.

2) For financial assets acquired or originated that are not credit
impaired but become credit impaired in a subsequent period,
the Company determines interest income in the subsequent
period based on the amortized cost of the financial asset
and the effective interest rate. If the financial instrument is
no longer credit impaired in a subsequent period because
its credit risk has improved, the Company shifts to determine
interest income by multiplying the effective interest rate by the
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Financial assets classified as measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in other comprehensive income
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If the contractual terms of a financial asset provide that the only cash
flows arising on a specific date are payments of principal and interest
based on the principal amount outstanding, and the business model
for managing the financial asset is to both collect the contractual cash
flows and sell the financial asset, the Company classifies the financial
asset as a financial asset measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in other comprehensive income.

The Company uses the effective interest rate method to
recognize interest income on such financial assets. Except for
interest income, impairment loss and exchange differences
recognized in profit or loss, the remaining changes in fair
value are recognized in other comprehensive income. When
the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
transferred from other comprehensive income and recognized in
profit or loss for the period.

Notes receivable and accounts receivable measured at fair
value and will have their changes accounted for in other
comprehensive income are reported as financing receivables,
and other such financial assets are reported as other debt
investments, of which other debt investments maturing within
one year from the balance sheet date are reported as current
portion of non-current asset, and other debt investments with
original maturity of less than one year are reported as other
current assets.

Financial assets designated as measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for in other comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate
investments in non-trading equity instruments as financial assets
as measured at fair value and will have their changes accounted
for in other comprehensive income on an individual financial
asset basis.

Changes in the fair value of such financial assets are recognized
in other comprehensive income and no impairment allowance
is required. Upon derecognition of such financial assets,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is transferred from other comprehensive
income and included in retained earnings. Dividend income
is recognized in profit or loss over the period, in which the
Company holds the investment in this equity instrument, when
the Company's right to receive dividends has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividends will flow to the Company, and the amount of the
dividends can be measured reliably. The Company reports such
financial assets under the item of investment in other equity
instruments.
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An investment in equity instruments is a financial asset
measured at fair value and will have their changes accounted for
in profit or loss, if it meets one of the following conditions: it is
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term,
it is part of a portfolio of centrally managed identifiable financial
asset instruments at initial recognition and there is objective
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking,
or it is a derivative (other than meeting the definition of a
financial guarantee contract and derivatives that are designated
as effective hedging instruments).

Financial assets classified as measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for in profit or loss

Financial assets that do not qualify for classification as financial
assets at amortized cost, or measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for in other comprehensive income
and are not designated as measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for other comprehensive income, are
classified as financial assets measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for in profit or loss.

The Company uses fair value for the subsequent measurement
of such financial assets and recognizes gains or losses resulting
from changes in fair value, as well as dividend and interest
income related to such financial assets, in profit or loss for the
current period.

The Company presents such financial assets in the items of
financial assets held for trading and other non-current financial
assets according to their liquidity.

Financial assets designated as financial assets measured at fair value
and will have their changes accounted for in profit or loss

At initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate
a financial asset as a financial asset measured at fair value
and will have their changes accounted for in profit or loss on
an individual basis in order to eliminate or significantly reduce
accounting mismatches.

If a hybrid contract contains one or more embedded derivatives
and its host contract is not one of the above financial assets,
the Company may designate the whole of it as a financial
instrument measured at fair value and will have their changes
accounted for in profit or loss. The exceptions are as follows:

1) The embedded derivatives do not materially change the
cash flows of the hybrid contract.
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2) When firstly determining whether a similar hybrid contract
requires a spin-off, little analysis is required to clarify that
the embedded derivatives it contain s should not be spun
off. If an embedded loan has an early repayment right that
allows the holder to repay the loan early at an amount
close to amortized cost, the early repayment right does
not require a spin-off.

The Company uses fair value for the subsequent measurement
of such financial assets and recognizes gains or losses resulting
from changes in fair value, as well as dividend and interest
income related to such financial assets, in profit or loss for the
current period.

The Company presents such financial assets under the line
items of financial assets held for trading and other non-current
financial assets according to their liquidity.

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Company classifies a financial instrument or its components
as financial liabilities or equity instruments at initial recognition
based on the contractual terms of the financial instrument
issued and the economic substance reflected therein, rather
than solely in legal form, in conjunction with the definitions of
financial liabilities and equity instruments. Financial liabilities
are classified at initial recognition as follows: financial liabilities
measured at fair value and will have their changes accounted
for in profit or loss, other financial liabilities, and derivatives
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities are measured at fair value at initial
recognition. For financial liabilities measured at fair value and
will have their changes accounted for in profit or loss, the related
transaction costs are recognized directly in profit or loss. For
other categories of financial liabilities, the related transaction
costs are recognized in the initial recognition amount.

The subsequent measurement of a financial liability depends on
its classification:

Financial liabilities measured at fair value and will have their changes
accounted for in profit or loss

Such financial liabilities include financial liabilities held for trading
(including derivatives that are financial liabilities) and financial
liabilities designated as measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in profit or loss on initial recognition.
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A financial liability is classified as a financial liability held for
trading if one of the following conditions is met: the financial
liability is assumed primarily for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near future, it is part of a portfolio of
centrally managed identifiable financial instruments and there
is objective evidence that the enterprise has recently adopted
a pattern of short-term profit-taking, or it is a derivative
instrument, except for derivatives that are designated and
are effective hedging instruments, derivatives that qualify as
financial guarantee contracts exceptions. Financial liabilities for
trading (including derivatives that are financial liabilities) are
subsequently measured at fair value, with all changes in fair
value recognized in profit or loss, except those related to hedge
accounting.

At initial recognition, for the purpose of providing more relevant
accounting information, the Company irrevocably designates
financial liabilities measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in profit or loss if they meet one of the
following conditions:

1) Be able to eliminate or significantly reduce accounting
mismatches.

2) The management and performance evaluation of a portfolio of
financial liabilities or a portfolio of financial assets and financial
liabilities is performed on a fair value basis in accordance
with the enterprise risk management or investment strategy
set forth in formal written documents and reported to key
management personnel on this basis within the enterprise.

The Company uses fair value for the subsequent measurement
of such financial liabilities and recognizes changes in fair value
in profit or loss, except for those arising from changes in the
Company's own credit risk, which are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The Company recognizes all changes in
fair value (including the amount of the effect of changes in its
own credit risk) in profit or loss unless the inclusion of changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Except for the following items, the Company classifies financial
liabilities as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost,
and applies the effective interest rate method to such financial
liabilities, which are subsequently measured at amortized cost,
with gains or losses arising from derecognition or amortization
recognized in profit or loss for the current period:
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1) Financial liabilities measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in profit or loss.
2) Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets

that do not qualify for derecognition or continue to be involved
in the transferred financial assets.

3) Financial guarantee contracts that do not fall into the first two
categories of this article, and loan commitments to lend at
below-market interest rates that do not fall into category 1) of
this article.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to pay a specified amount to the contract holder who
has suffered a loss when a specified debtor is unable to pay its
debt when due in accordance with the terms of the original Ol
modified debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts that
are not financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss are measured after initial recognition at the higher
of the amount of the allowance for loss and the amount initially
recognized, less accumulated amortization over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is written off from its accounts and balance sheet
when it meets one of the following conditions:

1) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset are terminated.

2) The financial asset is transferred and the transfer satisfies
the requirements for derecognition of financial assets.

Conditions for derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a portion thereof) is derecognized when
the present obligation of the financial liability (or a portion
thereof) is discharged.

If an agreement is entered into between the Company and the
lender to replace an original financial liability by assuming a new
financial liability, and the contractual terms of the new financial
liability are materially different from those of the original financial
liability, or if the contractual terms of the original financial
liability (or part thereof) are materially modified, the original
financial liability is derecognized and a new financial liability is
recognized at the same time, and the difference between the
carrying amount and the consideration paid (including the non-
cash assets transferred or the difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration paid (including the non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period.
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If the Company repurchases a portion of a financial liability, the
carrying amount of the financial liability as a whole is allocated
according to the proportion of the respective fair values of the
continuing recognized portion and the derecognized portion
to the fair value of the whole at the date of repurchase. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
derecognized portion and the consideration paid (including the
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) should be
recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Recognition basis and measurement method for transfer of
financial assets

When a transfer of financial assets occurs, the Company
assesses the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets and treats them separately as
follows:

If control over the financial asset is not retained, the financial asset is
derecognized, and the rights and obligations arising from or retained
in the transfer are recognized separately as assets or liabilities.

If control over the financial asset is retained, the financial asset
is recognized to the extent of its continuing involvement in the
transferred financial asset and the related liability is recognized
accordingly. The degree of continuing involvement in the transferred
financial asset is the extent to which the Company bears the risk or
reward of changes in the value of the transferred financial asset.

In determining whether a transfer of financial assets meets
the above conditions for derecognition of financial assets,
the principle of substance over form is applied, The Company
distinguishes between transfers of financial assets as a whole
and partial transfers of financial assets.

If a transfer of a financial asset as a whole meets the derecognition
condition, the difference between the following two amounts is
recognized in profit or loss:

1) The carrying amount of the transferred financial asset at the

date of derecognition.

2) The sum of the consideration received for the transfer
of the financial asset and the amount of the cumulative
amount of changes in fair value recognized directly in other
comprehensive income (the transferred financial asset
is a financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income).
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@ If a portion of a financial asset is transferred and the
transferred portion as a whole meets the derecognition condition,
the carrying amount of the financial asset as a whole before the
transfer is apportioned between the derecognized portion and
the continuing recognized portion (in which case the retained
service asset shall be treated as part of the contimuing recognized
financial asset) according to their respective relative fair values at
the date of transfer, and the difference between the following two
amounts is recognized in current period's profit or loss:

1) The carrying amount of the derecognized portion at the
date of derecognition.

2) The sum of the consideration received for the
derecognition portion and the amount corresponding
to the derecognition portion of the cumulative amount
of changes in fair value previously recognized in other
comprehensive income (financial assets involved in the
transfer are financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income).

If the transfer of a financial asset does not meet the
derecognition condition, the financial asset continues to be
recognized and the consideration received is recognized as a
financial liability.

Methods for determining the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The fair value of a financial asset or financial liability for which
there is an active market is determined using quoted prices
in an active market, unless there is a restricted period for the
financial asset itself. The fair value of a financial asset or financial
liability for which there is a restricted period for the asset itself is
determined on the basis of quoted prices in active markets, less
the amount of compensation required by market participants
for assuming the risk of not being able to sell the financial asset
on the open market within a specified period, Quoted prices in
active markets include quoted prices for the relevant assets or
liabilities that are readily and regularly available from exchanges,
dealers, brokers, industry groups, pricing agencies or regulators,
etc., and are representative of actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm's length basis.

The fair value of financial assets initially acquired or derived or
financial liabilities assumed is determined on the basis of quoted

market prices.
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Financial assets or financial liabilities for which no active market
exists are valued using valuation techniques to determine
their fair value. In the valuation, the Company uses valuation
techniques that are applicable in the current circumstances and
supported by sufficient available data and other information,
selects inputs that are consistent with the characteristics
of the asset or liability considered by market participants
in transactions for the relevant asset or liability, and gives
preference to relevant observable inputs whenever possible.
Where relevant observable inputs are not available or not
practicable to obtain, unobservable inputs are used.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company conducts impairment accounting for financial
assets measured at amortized cost on the basis of expected
credit losses and recognizes loss reserves.

Expected credit losses, which are the weighted average of credit
losses on financial instruments weighted by the risk of default,
are recognized. Credit losses, which are the present value of the
difference between all contractual cash flows receivable under
the contract and all cash flows expected to be collected by the
Company discounted at the original effective interest rate, i.e,
the present value of the entire cash shortfall. In particular, for
financial assets purchased or originated by the company that are
credit impaired, they should be discounted at the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate of the financial assets.

For receivables resulting from transactions governed by the
accounting standards of revenue recognition, the Company
applies the simplified measurement method and measures the
allowance for losses at an amount equal to the expected credit
losses over the entire life of the receivables.

For financial assets that are purchased or originated with
credit impairment, only the cumulative changes in expected
credit losses throughout their lives since initial recognition are
recognized as a provision for losses at the balance sheet date. At
each balance sheet date, the amount of the change in expected
credit losses over the entire life of the asset is recognized as an
impairment loss or gain in profit or loss. Favorable changes in
expected credit losses are recognized as impairment gains even
if the expected credit losses determined at that balance sheet
date for the entire life of the asset are less than the amount of
expected credit losses reflected in the estimated cash flows at
the time of initial recognition.
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For financial assets other than those for which simplified
measurement methods and purchased or originated credit
impairment have been applied as described above, the Company
assesses at each balance sheet date whether the credit risk of
the relevant financial instruments has increased significantly
since initial recognition and measures the allowance for
losses, recognizes expected credit losses and changes therein,
respectively, in accordance with the following circumstances:

If the credit risk of the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and is in the first stage, the
allowance for losses is measured at an amount equal to the expected
credit loss over the next 12 months and interest income is calculated
based on the carrying amount and effective interest rate.

If the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition but no credit impairment has occurred, and
is in the second stage, the allowance for losses is measured at an
amount equal to the expected credit loss over the entire life of the
financial instrument, and interest income is calculated based on the
carrying amount and effective interest rate.

If the financial instrument has been credit impaired since initial
recognition and is in the third stage, the Company measures its loss
allowance at an amount equal to the expected credit loss over the
entire life of the financial instrument and calculates interest income
based on the amortized cost and effective interest rate.

The amount of increase or reversal of the allowance for credit losses
on financial instruments is recognized as impairment loss or gain in
profit or loss. Except for financial assets classified as financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income, the allowance
for credit losses is offset against the carrying amount of the financial
assets. For financial assets classified as at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Company recognizes a provision for credit
losses in other comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amount of the financial assets presented in the balance sheet.

If the Company has measured the allowance for losses in the previous
accounting period at an amount equal to the expected credit losses
over the entire life of the financial instrument, but at the balance
sheet date of the current period, the financial instrument is no longer
subject to a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Company measures the allowance for losses on the financial
instrument at the balance sheet date of the current period at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses over the next 12 months,
and the resulting reversal of the allowance for losses is recognized as
an impairment gain in profit or loss for the current period.
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Significant increase in credit risk

The Company determines whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default of the financial instrument
at the balance sheet date with the risk of default at the
initial recognition date using reasonable and substantiated
forwardlooking information that is available. For financial
guarantee contracts, the Company uses the date on which the
Company becomes a party to an irrevocable commitment as
the initial recognition date when applying the provisions for
impairment of financial instruments.

The Company considers the following factors when assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk:

1) Whether there is a significant change in the actual or expected
results of operations of the debtor.

2) Whether there has been a significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic or technological environment in which
the debtor operates.

3) Whether there have been significant changes in the value of
collateral pledged as security for the debt or in the quality of
guarantees or credit enhancements provided by third parties
that are expected to reduce the debtor's economic incentive
to repay the debt by the contractual deadline or to affect the
probability of default.

4) Whether there is a significant change in the expected
performance and repayment behavior of the debtor.

5) Whether there are any changes in the Company's approach to
credit management of financial instruments, etc.

On the balance sheet date, if the Company determines that
a financial instrument has only low credit risk, the Company
assumes that the credit risk of the financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition. A financial
instrument is considered to have low credit risk if the risk of
default is low, the borrower’s ability to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the short term is strong, and the borrower’s
ability to meet its contractual cash flow obligations may not
necessarily be reduced even if there are adverse changes in
economic conditions and business environment in the longer
term.

Financial assets that are credit impaired

A financial asset becomes credit impaired when one or more
events occur that have an adverse effect on the expected future
cash flows of the financial asset. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit impaired includes the following observable information:
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1) Significant financial difficulties on the part of the issuer or the
debtor;

2) Breach of contract by the debtor, such as default or
delinquency in the payment of interest or principal;

3) Creditors granting concessions to the debtor that the debtor

would not otherwise make, due to economic or contractual
considerations related to the debtor’s financial difficulties;

4) A high probability of bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization of the debtor;

5) The disappearance of an active market for the financial asset as
a result of the financial difficulties of the issuer or the debtor;

6) The purchase or origin of a financial asset at a significant
discount that reflects the fact that a credit loss has occurred.

Credit impairment of a financial asset may be the result of a
combination of events and may not necessarily be the result of
separately identifiable events.

Determination of expected credit losses

The Company evaluates expected credit losses on financial
instruments on an individual and portfolio basis, and considers
reasonable and substantiated information regarding past
events, current conditions, and projections of future economic
conditions when evaluating expected credit losses.

The Company classifies financial instruments into different
portfolios based on common credit risk characteristics. The
common credit risk characteristics used by the Company include:
type of financial instrument, credit risk rating, aging portfolio,
overdue aging portfolio, etc. The individual evaluation criteria
and portfolio credit risk characteristics of the relevant financial
instruments are detailed in the accounting policies of the
relevant financial instruments.

The Company determines the expected credit losses on the
related financial instruments in accordance with the following
methods:

1) For financial assets, credit losses are the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows receivable by
the Company and the cash flows expected to be received.

2) For lease receivables, the credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flow that the
Company should receive and the cash flow that is expected to
be received.
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3) For financial guarantee contracts, the credit loss is the present
value of the difference between the expected payment to be
made by the Company to the holder of the contract for credit
losses incurred by the holder of the contract, less the amount
expected to be collected by the company from the holder of
the contract, the debtor or any other party.

4) For financial assets that are credit impaired at the balance
sheet date but not purchased or originated with credit
impairment, the credit loss is the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

The Company's method of measuring expected credit
losses on financial instruments reflects factors such as: the
weightedaverage amount of unbiased probability determined
by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of
money, and reasonable and substantiated information about
past events, current conditions and projections of future
economic conditions that is available at the balance sheet date
without unnecessary additional cost or effort.

Write-down of financial assets

When the Company no longer has a reasonable expectation that
the contractual cash flows from a financial asset will be fully or
partially recovered, the carrying amount of the financial asset is
written down directly. Such write-down constitutes derecognition
of the related financial assets.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately
in the balance sheet and are not offset against each other.
However, if the following conditions are met at the same time,
they are presented in the balance sheet as the net amount after
offsetting each other:

The Company has a legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
such legal right is currently enforceable.

The Company plans to settle on a net basis, or to realize the financial
asset and settle the financial liability simultaneously.
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Notes receivable

Categories of portfolios for which allowances are established
based on a combination of credit risk characteristics and the basis
for determining them

The Company determines its credit losses separately for notes
receivable that are sufficiently evidenced to assess expected
credit losses at a reasonable cost at a single instrument level.

When it is not possible to assess sufficient evidence of expected
credit loss at reasonable cost at single instrument level, the
Company, taking into account the experience of historical credit
loss, combines the current situation and judgment of future
economic conditions, divides the notes receivable into several
combinations according to the credit risk characteristics, and
calculates the expected credit loss on a combination basis. The

combination is based on the following:
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the shorttermisvery 8K EHE provisions
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in history, and no ABHFCKRMLL  current conditions and
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12.

Accounts receivable

Categories of portfolios for which allowances are established
based on a combination of credit risk characteristics and the
basis for determining them

The Company separately determines credit losses on accounts
receivable for which sufficient evidence of expected credit
losses can be assessed at the individual instrument level at a
reasonable cost.

When it is impossible to assess the sufficient evidence of
expected credit loss at a reasonable cost at the level of a single
tool, the Company refers to historical credit loss experience,
combines the current situation and the judgment of the future
economic situation, and divides the receivables into several
combinations based on the characteristics of credit risk, and
calculate expected credit losses on a combined basis. The basis
for determining the combination is as follows:

Combination name
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REX T3 MU
Ik R

FE TR
A= B
KBISNEB L
W T R

Accounts
receivable from
related parties

Non-separate
provision for
expected

credit losses of
external accounts
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B9 17 U2 K R
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EESINEY NS ==
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BX 73 1 88 Nz Ui Ik

Basis for determining iR A 7% Method for accrual

the combination

Accounts receivable SERLEAHPL  Expected credit losses is

with various related a4k o2y Measured by reference

parties 23, HEHH 4\* to historical credit loss
ARSI RELZFF  experience, taking into
ORI & account current conditions

o and expectations of future

RN R AR S economic conditions

External accounts
receivable from
unrelated parties
that have not been
individually tested for

K 5 A
BTBERREE
x 88 % it 12

Provision is based on the
ageing of the accounts
against the expected credit
loss rate for the entire
duration

receivable
E=nd
TA

impairment and that
are not subject to
separate testing
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Other receivables

Categories of portfolios for which allowances are established
based on a combination of credit risk characteristics and the
basis for determining them

The Company separately determines credit losses on other
receivables for which sufficient evidence of expected credit
losses can be assessed at the individual instrument level for a
reasonable cost.

When sufficient evidence of expected credit losses cannot
be evaluated at a reasonable cost at the level of a individual
instrument, the Company refers to historical credit loss
experience, combines current situations and judgments on
future economic situations and divides other receivables into
several combinations based on credit risk characteristics, and
calculate expected credit losses on a combined basis. The basis

TRIBW T

for determining the combination is as follows:

HE B

XEABARER
B HAth 7 U R

IF 8 Wit 2
HERRKEH
b B8 E fth K7 U
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Portofolio name

Related parties
and other
receivables
without risk

Non-separate
provision for
expected
credit losses of
external other
receivables
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Basis for determining
portofolio

Other receivables with
various related parties,
guarantee deposits,
standby loans, and export
tax refunds

External other receivables
from unrelated parties
that have not been
individually tested for
impairment and that are
not subject to separate
testing
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2EREERE
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Method of accrual

Reference to historical
credit loss experience,
combined with current
conditions and expected
credit losses for future
economic conditions

Provision is made on the
basis of ageing against
the expected credit

loss rate for the entire
duration of the accounts
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Inventory

Inventory category, issue valuation method, inventory system,
depreciation method for low-value consumables and packaging

Classification of inventories

Inventories refers to finished products or merchandise
possessed by the Company for sale in the daily of business, or
work in progress in the process of production, or materials and
supplies to be consumed in the process of production or offering
labor service. Mainly includes raw materials, revolving materials,
packaging materials, goods in progress, self-made semi-finished
products, finished goods (commodity stocks), goods in transit,
etc.

Measurement method of inventory

Inventories are initially measured in light of the cost when they
are obtained, including preparation costs, processing costs and
other costs. Inventories are priced by the weighted average
method at the end of the month.

Inventory count system

Perpetual inventory system is adopted.

Amortization method of low-value consumables and packaging
materials

One-off write-off method is amortized using for low-value
consumables.

One-off write-off method is amortized using for packaging materials.

Other revolving materials are amortised using one-off write-off
method.

Criteria for recognizing and accounting method for inventory
impairment

At the end of the period, the provision for inventory decline is
made or adjusted at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The
net realizable value of finished goods, inventory and materials
for sale, which are directly used for sale, is determined in the
normal course of production and operation as the estimated
selling price of the inventory less estimated selling expenses and
related taxes. The net realizable value of materials for processing
is determined in the normal course of production and operation
as the estimated selling price of the finished goods produced
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less estimated costs to be incurred to completion, estimated
selling expenses and related taxes. The net realizable value
of inventory held for the execution of sales contracts or labor
contracts is calculated on the basis of the contract price. If the
quantity of inventory held exceeds the quantity ordered in the
sales contract, the net realizable value of the excess inventory is
calculated on the basis of the general sales price.

At the end of the period, the provision for inventory impairment
are accrued according to a single inventory item. However, for
the inventory with large quantity and low unit price, the provision
for inventory impairment are accrued according to the inventory
category. For the inventory related to the product series
produced and sold in the same region, with the same or similar
end use or purpose, and difficult to be measured separately from
other items, the provision for inventory impairment are accrued
in combination.

If the influencing factors of the previously written down inventory
value have disappeared, the written down amount shall be
recovered and reversed within the amount of the originally
accrued provision for inventory impairment, and the provision
amount shall be included in the current profit and loss.

Long-term equity investment

Determination of initial investment cost

For the long-term equity investment formed by the business
combination, the specific accounting policies are detailed in the
accounting treatment of business combination under common control
and not under common control as set out in this chapter/ (6).

Long-term equity investments acquired by other means

For a long-term equity investment acquired by cash, its initial
cost is the actually paid purchase cost. The initial cost includes
expenses directly related to the acquisition of long-term equity
investments, taxes and other expenses.

For a long-term equity investment acquired from issuance of
equity securities, its initial cost is the fair value of the issued
equity securities. The transaction cost incurred in the issuance or
acquisition of equity instruments is deducted from equity if it is
attributable to equity transactions.
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Under the premise that the exchange of non-monetary asset
has the commercial substance and the fair value of the assets
received or surrendered can be reliably measured, the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity investment acquired in
exchange for non-monetary assets is determined based on the
fair value of the assets exchanged, unless there is conclusive
evidence that the fair value of the assets transferred is more
reliable. For the exchange of non-monetary asset that do not
meet the above premise, the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment is the carrying amount of the assets
exchanged and the related taxes and fees payable.

For a long-term equity investment acquired from debt
restructuring, its initial cost is determined based on the fair
value.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit and losses

Cost method

The long-term equity investment that the Company can control
over the investee is accounted for using the cost method, and
the cost of the long-term equity investment is adjusted by adding
or recovering the investment according to the initial investment
cost.

Except for the actual payment or the cash dividends or profits
included in the consideration that have been announced but
not yet paid, the Company recognizes the current investment
income according to the cash dividends or profits declared to be
distributed by the investee.

Equity method

The Company's long-term equity investments in associates
and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method,
and some of the equity investments in associates that are
indirectly held by venture capital institutions, mutual funds,
trust companies or similar entities including investment-linked
insurance funds are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

If the cost of initial investment is in excess of the proportion of
the fair value of the net identifiable assets in the investee when
the investment is made, the difference will not be adjusted to
the initial cost of the long-term equity investments. If the cost of
initial investment is in short of the proportion of the fair value of
the net identifiable assets in the investee when the investment
is made, the difference will be included in the current profit and
loss.
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After obtaining the long-term equity investment, the Company
shall recognize the investment income and other comprehensive
income according to the share of net profit and loss and other
comprehensive income realized by the investee that is entitled
or should be shared, and adjust the carrying amount of the long-
term equity investment. Reducing the carrying amount of the
long-term equity investment based on portion of the profit or
cash dividend declared to be distributed by the investee. And for
other changes in the owner's equity other than the net profit or
loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution of the
investee, the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment
is adjusted and included in the owner's equity.

When recognising the share of the net profit or loss of the
investee, the Company shall adjust and recognize the net profit
of the investee based on the fair value of the identifiable assets
of the investee at the time of obtaining the investment. The
unrealized internal transaction gains and losses between the
Company and the associates and joint ventures shall be offset
against the portion attributable to the Company in accordance
with the proportion to be enjoyed, on the basis of which the
investment gains and losses are recognized.

When the Company recognizes the losses incurred by the
investee that it should share, the Company shall deal with it in
the following order: First, offset the carrying amount of the long-
term equity investment. Secondly, if the carrying amount of
the long-term equity investment is not enough to be offset, the
investment loss will continue to be recognized to the extent of
carrying amount of other long-term equity that constitutes a net
investment in the investee, and the carrying amount of the long-
term receivables is offset. Finally, after the above-mentioned
treatment, if the enterprise still bears additional obligations
in accordance with the investment contract or agreement, the
estimated liabilities are recognized according to the estimated
obligations and included in the current investment losses.

If the investee becomes profitable in a subsequent period, the
Company proceeds in the reverse order of the above, after the
reduction of book balance of the recognized estimated liabilities
and recovery of the other long-term interest that constitute the
net investment of the investee and carrying amount of long-term
equity investment, the Company shall restore the investment
income.

Conversion of accounting methods of long-term equity

investment

Fair value measurement to equity method accounting
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The equity investment originally held by the Company that does
not have control, joint control or significant influence on the
investee, which is accounted as financial instrument under the
recognition and measurement criteria, can exert significant
influence on the investee or jointly control but does not
constitute control due to additional investment and otherwise, its
initial investment cost shall be the fair value of the original equity
investment held in accordance with the "Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No.22-Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments" plus the sum of new investment cost.

If the initial investment cost calculated by the equity method is
less than the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of
the investee on the additional investment date determined by
the new shareholding ratio after the additional investment, the
carrying amount of the long-term equity investment is adjusted
and included in the current non-operating revenue.

Conversion method of fair value measurement or equity method
measurement to cost method measurement

If the equity investment originally held by the Company that does
not have control, joint control or significant influence on the
investee and which is accounted as financial instrument under
the financial instrument recognition and measurement criteria,
or the long-term equity investment originally held in associates
or joint venture, can exercise control over the investee not under
common control due to additional investment or otherwise, in
the preparation of individual financial statements, the sum of the
carrying amount of the equity investment originally held and the
new investment cost shall be regarded as the initial investment
cost under cost method.

The other comprehensive income recognized by the equity
method in respect of the equity investment originally held before
the purchase date is accounted for on the same basis as the
investee directly disposes of the relevant assets or liabilities
when the equity method is terminated.

If equity investments were held before the purchase date and
accounted for according to "Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No.22-Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Instruments", any previously recognized cumulative change in fair
value in other comprehensive income is transferred to current
profit or loss when changing to the cost method.
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Equity method measurement to fair value measurement

If the Company loses joint control or significant influence over
an investee for reasons such as disposal of a portion of its
equity investment, the remaining equity interest after disposal
is accounted for in accordance with "Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No.22-Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments", and the difference between its fair value
and carrying amount at the date when joint control or significant
influence is lost, is recognized in the current profit or loss.

The other comprehensive income recognized in respect of the
original equity investment using the equity method is accounted
for on the same basis as the investee directly disposes of
the relevant assets or liabilities when the equity method is
terminated.

Cost method to equity method

If the Company loses control over the investee due to the
disposal of part of the equity investment etc., in the preparation
of individual financial statements, if the remaining equity after
disposal can exercise joint control or exert significant influence
on the investee, equity method is adopted for accounting, and
the remaining equity is treated as an adjustment to the equity
method when it is acquired.

Cost method to fair value measurement

If the Company loses control over the investee due to the
disposal of part of the equity investment etc., in the preparation
of individual financial statements, the remaining equity after
disposal cannot jointly control or exert significant influence
on the investee, the relevant provisions of the "Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No.22-Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments" are adopted. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount when
joint control or significant influence is lost, is recognized in the
current profit or loss.

Disposal of long-term equity investments

For the disposal of long-term equity investment, the difference
between the carrying amount and the actual purchase price
shall be included in the current profit and loss. For the long-term
equity investment accounted for using the equity method, when
the investment is disposed, the part that is originally included in
the other comprehensive income is accounted for in the same
proportion based on the same basis as the investee directly
disposes of the relevant assets or liabilities.
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If the terms, conditions and economic impact of each transaction
dealing with the equity investment of the subsidiary satisfy one
or more of the following cases, the multiple transactions are
treated as a package transaction:

The transactions are simultaneously made or with consideration of
each other's influence.

Only when the transactions are as a whole, can they achieve a
complete business outcome.

The occurrence of a transaction depends on the occurrence of at least
one of others.

A transaction is not economical on its own, but it is economical when
considered together with others.

Where the loss of control over the original subsidiary due to
disposal of part of the equity investment or otherwise, which
does not belong to a package transaction, the individual financial
statements and combined financial statements shall be classified
for relevant accounting treatment:

In the individual financial statements, the difference between the

carrying amount of the disposed equity and the actual purchase price
is included in the current profit and loss. If the remaining equity after
disposal can exert joint control or significant influence on the investee,
it shall be accounted for under the equity method, and the residual
equity shall be deemed to be adjusted by equity method when it is
acquired. If the remaining equity after disposal shall not exert joint
control or significant influence over the investee, it shall be measured
by the relevant provisions of the "Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No.22-Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments",
and the difference between the fair value and the carrying amount on
the date of loss of control is included in the current profit and loss.

In the consolidated financial statements, for each transaction
before the loss of control over the subsidiary, capital reserve (share
premium) is adjusted for the difference between the disposal price
and the share of the net assets that the subsidiary has continuously
calculated from the date of purchase or the merger date; if the
capital reserve is insufficient to offset, the retained earnings shall be
adjusted; when the control of the subsidiary is lost, the remaining
equity shall be re-measured according to its fair value on the date
of loss of control. The sum of the consideration for the disposal of
the equity and the fair value of the remaining equity, less the share
of the net assets that have been continuously calculated from the
date of purchase calculated based on the original shareholding, are
included in the investment income for the period of loss of control,
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while reducing goodwill.Other comprehensive income related to the
original subsidiary's equity investment will be converted into current
investment income when control is lost.

If per transaction on disposal of the equity investment in
a subsidiary until the loss of control, belongs to a package
transaction, each transaction is accounting for as a transaction
to dispose of the equity investment of the subsidiary with loss of
control, and should be distinguished between individual financial
statements and combined financial statements:

In individual financial statements, the difference between the disposal
price and the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment
corresponding to the disposed equity before the loss of control is
recognized as other comprehensive income, and when the control
is lost, it is transferred to profit or loss for the period of the loss of
control.

In the consolidated financial statements, the difference between each
disposal price and the disposal investment that has the share of the
net assets of the subsidiary before the loss of control is recognized as
other comprehensive income, and transferred to profit or loss for the
period of the loss of control.

Judging criteria for joint control and significant impact

If the Company collectively controls an arrangement in
accordance with the relevant agreement, and the activity
decision that has a significant impact on the return of the
arrangement needs to be agreed upon by the parties sharing
the control, it is considered that the Company and other parties
jointly control the arrangement, and therefore constitutes a joint
venture arrangement.

If the joint venture arrangement is reached through a separate
entity and it determines that the Company has rights to the net
assets of the separate entity in accordance with the relevant
agreement, the separate entity is regarded as a joint venture
and is accounted for using the equity method. If it is judged
according to the relevant agreement that the Company does not
have rights to the net assets of the separate entity, the separate
entity acts as a joint operation, and the Company recognizes the
items related to the share of the common operating interests and
conducts accounting treatment in accordance with the relevant
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.
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(1)

)

Significant influence refers to the investor's power to participate
in the decision-making of the financial and operating policies
of the investee, but it cannot control or jointly control the
preparation of these policies. Taking into account all facts and
circumstances, the Company has a significant influence on the
investee under one or more of the following situations:

@ Representation on the Board of Directors or similar authority
of the investee.

@Participation in the preparation of financial and business policy
of the investee.

® Significant transactions with investees.

@ Assignment of management personnel to investees.

® Provides key technical information to the investee.

Fixed Asset

Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets refer to tangible assets held for the purpose of
producing goods, providing labor services, renting or operating
management, and having a useful life of more than one fiscal
year. Fixed assets are recognized when they meet the following
conditions:

It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the fixed
asset will flow to the enterprise.
The cost of the fixed asset can be measured reliably.

Depreciation method

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided over their estimated
useful life based on their recorded value less estimated net
salvage value. For fixed assets that provision for impairment has
been made, depreciation is determined in future periods on the
basis of the carrying amount net of provision for impairment
and the remaining useful life. Fixed assets that have been fully
depreciated and continue to be used are not depreciated.

The Company determines the useful life and estimated net
salvage values of fixed assets based on the nature and use of
the fixed assets. The useful life, estimated net salvage values and
depreciation methods of fixed assets are reviewed at the end of
the year, and adjustments are made accordingly if there are any
difference from the original estimates.

The depreciation methods, useful life, and annual depreciation
rates for various types of fixed assets are as follows:
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el Category IR & IRER (F) HER FIIRR
Method of depreciation Useful Life (year)  Residual ratio (%)  Annual Depreciation
Rate (%)
BENERY Buildings and FR T 20-30 5.00% 3.17%-4.75%
constructions Straight-line method
V288 & Machinery and FRFEIYE 5-10 5.00% 9.50%-19.00%
equipment Straight-line method
EWmIA Carriers F R T4 5 5.00% 19.00%
Straight-line method
Hig& Others equipment  FE[RFi§7% 5 5.00% 19.00%
Straight-line method
17. ##IE 17. Construction in progress
(1) HTEBIEWEIE (1) Initial measurement of construction in process
KABBITRENTRE IRZL KM The actual construction cost of the construction in progress
AT, KR ABHBEIEZINR is determined by the actual expenses incurred before the
FRIMEANFEARSEAREDN construction of the asset reaches the intended usable condition,
HEXZHM, BEIERBYA including the cost of project materials, labor costs, relevant taxes
Ao ANIRA . THPEXTE. payable, capitalized borrowing costs, and indirect costs that
N 25 A0 BY 18 7R 2% A DA K2 e 70 Bt should be apportioned.
el A%,
2) GEIELZNETFEZS~BIFEEN (2 Criteria for and time point of construction in progress to convert

Bt =

AETIENERESZMAT AL
MEAFERARSEFAAEN 2
H, FABREEFBHOANKNE. FT
BENETEIREXIMEYTFER
RE, BEXRNEBERI REN, B
AMEAFEARSZHE, RIBT
BME . ENWEIERMRAASE,
BETHNERANEBERS, HIZ
AKRBIEEARFITIAREKITIREE
AFEWNITR, SHEBRTAEE, B
BEMAABER RN ENE,
BEREEREITIRNITIEM

into fixed asset

The total expenditure incurred before the construction projects
constructed to reach the intended usable condition shall be
recorded as the value of the fixed assets. The construction of
fixed assets under construction has reached the intended use
of the state, but has not yet completed the final accounts, since
the scheduled use of the date of use, according to the project
budget, cost or actual project costs, according to the estimated
value into fixed Assets and depreciation of fixed assets in
accordance with the depreciation policy of the company's fixed
assets. After the completion of the final accounts, the original
estimated value shall be adjusted according to the actual cost,
but the original depreciation amount shall not be adjusted.
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(1)

Intangible assets

Useful life and the basis for its determination, estimation,

amortisation method, or review procedure

Intangible assets refer to identifiable non-monetary assets
owned or controlled by the Company without physical form,
including land use right, software license, exclusive license, non-
patented technology, etc.

Initial measurement of intangible assets

The costs of external purchase of intangible assets comprise the
purchase price, related tax and surcharges and any other directly
attributable expenditure incurred to prepare the asset for its
intended use. If payments for the purchase of intangible assets
are extended beyond the normal credit terms with financing
nature, the costs of intangible assets are determined on the
basis of present values of the purchase prices.

For intangible assets obtained from debtors in settlement of
liabilities in case of debt restructuring, they should be initially
stated at their fair value. Differences between the book value and
the fair value of the intangible assets are charged to profit or loss
for the current period.

If the exchange of non-monetary assets has commercial
substance, and the fair value of these assets can be measured
reliably, the book-entry value of intangible assets traded-in
are based on the fair value of the intangible assets traded-out
unless there is any conclusive evidence that the fair value of
the assets traded-in are more reliable. If the exchange of non-
monetary assets does not meet the above criteria, the cost of
the intangible assets traded-in should be the book value of the
assets traded-out and relevant taxe and surcharges paid, and no
profit or loss shall be recognized.

For intangible assets obtained through business absorption
or mergers of entities under common control, the entry value
is determined by the carrying amount of the combined party.
For intangible assets obtained through business absorption
or mergers not under common control, the entry value is
determined by the fair value of the intangible assets.

The cost of an internally developed intangible asset include:
the materials consumed in developing the intangible asset,
labor costs, registration fees, amortization of other patents and
licenses used in the development process, interest expenses
meeting capitalization conditions, and other direct costs for
bringing the intangible asset to the intended usable condition.



A3 B EBRAG B T 38 BY 43 47 1 U
HEAES, WHNEBEHER
MEBESTHENER A ™.

D EREMERNELAS

NTEBEFMBERNELE
=, ERAEERE A
WHEIRNIZELEZRHE. £
BEam BRI AT Mit

Semi-Annual Report 2024

Subsequent measurement of intangible assets

The Company determines the useful life of intangible assets on
acquisition, which are classified as intangible assets with finite
useful life and those with indefinite useful life.

1) Intangible asset with a limited life

Intangible asset with a finite useful life is depreciated using
straight-line method over the term when it brings economic
benefit to the Company. The estimated useful life and basis for
the intangible assets with a limited life are as follows:

Fon RIRIEN T

ltem Wit EM&Fd  Estimated useful i Basis
life

T AR Land use right 50 50 years MRIFBIMERIEEERER The legal useful life
according to the land
use right
WE#E AN Software license 54 5 years TR IE T 15 FB HA PR & 1t Estimated based on
expected useful life
1 8 A Exclusive license 5-10 & 5to 10 years 1R 8 3t {5 B EB PR (& 1t Estimated based on
expected useful life
FEEZEFEAR  Non-patent 10 £ 10 years R IE T 5 BB HA PR & 1t Estimated based on
technology expected useful life

BHX, WEBEHERNELHE
FRERFmAEE R EAEITER,
MEREGTBEEERD, #H1T
GERVAESRIEE:- 38

S8, FBPRETERTER
FakMHEHESUAGEITRE TR
& o

2) RSN AHMENTRA

TEMAER R REALTE
REFHmHARE, AR
BEB A HMENTEES .

Xt F 6 B3 %5 dn B E BY B
B, AR EHEATK
H, BHERNELATNE
mETEZ. WRAREHMR
ERBEMATHEN, 8
A= Tt HA 18] 4F £ 1T R B
o

The useful life and depreciation method of intangible assets with
finite useful life are reassessed at the end of each period. If the
original estimate varies, corresponding adjustments are made.

Upon reassessment, at the end of the period there was no
difference in the useful life and depreciation method of
intangible assets from the previous estimates.

2)  Intangible assets with indefinite useful life

If the term of economic benefit the intangible asset can bring
to the Company cannot be estimated, it is deemed to be an
intangible asset with indefinite useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are not amortized
during the holding period. The useful life of intangible assets
with indefinite life is reassessed at the end of each period. If
it is reassessed to remain indefinite at the end of the period,
impairment tests shall be conducted during each accounting
period.
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Scope of attribution of R&D expenditures and related accounting
treatment

Specific criteria in dividing the research stage and development stage
of internal research and development projects of the Company

Research stage: the stage of original and planned investigation
and research activities to acquire and understand new scientific or
technological knowledge.

Development stage: the stage of applying research results or other
knowledge to a plan or design to produce new or substantially
improved materials, devices, products and other activities before
commercial production or use.

Expenses for the research stage of internal research and development

projects are charged to current profit or loss as incurred.

Specific criteria of expenses met for capitalization during development
stage

Expenditure on the development stage is capitalized only when the
Company can demonstrate all of the following:

1) The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale.

2) Intention to complete the intangible asset and either use or
sellit.

3) The way in which the intangible asset produces economic
benefits includes demonstrating the existence of a market for
the product that will be created using the intangible asset or
for the intangible asset itself. Additionally, it is important to
demonstrate the usefulness of the intangible asset if it is to be
used internally.

4) The availability of adequate technical, financial and other re-
sources to complete the development and the ability to use or
sell the intangible asset.

5) The expenditure attributable to the development stage of the
intangible assets can be reliably measured.

Taking into account the R&D process in thepharmaceutical industry
and the company's own R&D characteristics, the company's R&D
expenditure after the key time node or key stage of the R&D project
(in accordance with the Measures for the Administration of Drug
Registration promulgated by National Medical Products Administration
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or the review deadline stipulated by other countries to be declared,
or the "clinical trial approval document" approved, or the approval of
the international drug regulatory agency in the regulatory market, and
the related clinical research can be conducted) can be considered as
capitalized R&D expenditure; Other R&D expenses are included in the
profit or loss of the current period when incurred. On each balance
sheet date, the company assesses projects under development for
capitalization as described above. For the project no longer meet the
conditions of capitalization, the carrying amount shall be written off,
included in the current profit and loss.

Expenditures incurred in the development stage that do not meet the
above conditions shall be included in the current profit and loss in the
event of occurrence. The development expenditures which has been
included in the profit and loss shall not be reconfirmed as an asset
in the future. Capitalized expenditures in the development phase are
shown on the balance sheet as development expenditures and are
converted into intangible assets from the date when the item realizes
its intended use.

Impairment of long-term assets

On the balance sheet date, the Company determines whether
there may be a sign of a reduction in long-term assets. If there
are signs of impairment in long-term assets, the recoverable
amount is estimated on the basis of a single asset. If it is difficult
to estimate the recoverable amount of a single asset, then
determine the recoverable amount of the asset group on the
basis of the asset group that the asset belongs to.

The estimation the recoverable amount of assets is the larger
amount between the fair value deducting net cost when disposal,
and the expected value of future cash flow.

The measurement results show that when the recoverable
amount of long-term assets is lower than its book value, the
book value of long-term assets is reduced to its recoverable
amount. The reduced amount is recognized as impairment loss,
at the same time, make the corresponding provision for asset
impairment. As soon as the loss of assets is confirmed, it shall
not be returned in the subsequent accounting period.

After the asset impairment loss is confirmed, the depreciation
or amortization expenses of the impaired assets will be adjusted
accordingly in the future period so that the book value of
adjusted assets will be allocated in the remaining useful life
(deducting the estimated net residual value).
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Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives arising
from business combinations are tested annually for impairment,
regardless of whether there are any indication of impairment.

In performing the impairment test for goodwill, the book value
of goodwill would be amortized to the asset group or portfolio
group that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination. When performing the impairment test
for the relevant asset group or portfolio group containing
goodwill, if there is an indication of impairment for the asset
group or portfolio group related to goodwill, the asset group or
portfolio group that does not contain goodwill is first tested for
impairment, the recoverable amount is calculated and compared
with the relevant carrying amount, and a corresponding
impairment loss is recognized. An impairment test is then
performed on the asset group or portfolio group containing
goodwill by comparing the carrying amount of the relevant asset
group or portfolio group (including the portion of the carrying
amount of the goodwill apportioned to it) with its recoverable
amount, and an impairment loss on goodwill is recognized if
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset group or portfolio
group is less than its carrying amount.

20. KHSEHER 20. Long-term prepaid expenses

(1) #HE7Z* (1) Amortization method
KEEFEHMER, BEIEALNTBER A Long-term prepaid expenses refer to all expenses that have been
SENHAHMUERBHRIEN S incurred but should be borne by the Company in the current and
MAREIFU ENEMER. K future periods and are apportioned over a period of more than
EMERESHIARNRES LS one year. Long-term prepaid expenses is amortized on a straight-
PEEH o line basis over the benefit period.

(2) HHEER (2)  Amortization years

el Category P8 55 F IR Amortization period

[T BB RI& I Plant decoration and design 10 & 10 years

fee
NREEEER Office renovation fee 54 5 years
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Contract liabilities

The Company recognizes the portion of the obligation to transfer
goods to customers for consideration received or receivable from
customers as a contractual liability.

Employee compensation

Accounting treatment of short-term remuneration

Employee remuneration refers to various forms of remuneration
or compensation given by the Company for services rendered by
employees or for the termination of employment relationships.
Employee remuneration includes short-term remuneration, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits, and other long-term
employee benefits.

Short-term remuneration is employee remuneration, other than
post-employment benefits and termination benefits, that is
payable in full within twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employee rendered the related
service. The Company recognizes short-term remuneration
payable as a liability in the accounting period in which the
employee provides the service and includes it in the cost and
expense of the related assets based on the beneficiary of the
service provided by the employee.

Accounting treatment of post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are all forms of compensation and
benefits, except short-term remuneration and termination
benefits, provided by the Company to obtain services
rendered by employees after their retirement or termination of
employment with the Company.

The Company's post-employment benefit plans are classified as
defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plan of post-employment benefits refers to
the basic endowment insurance and unemployment insurance
paid for the employees organized and implemented by local
labor and social security institutions. During the accounting
period when employees render services to the group, amount
payable calculated by the base and ratio in conformity with local
regulation is recognized as liability and accounted for current
profit and loss or related cost of assets.

The Company will no longer have any other obligation to pay
after making the above-mentioned payments on a regular basis
in accordance with the standards prescribed by the State.
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Accounting treatment of termination benefits

Termination benefits refer to the compensation paid when the
Company terminates the employment relationship with employee
before the expiry of the employment contracts or provides
compensation as an offer to encourage employee to accept
voluntary redundancy. The group recognizes a liability into the
current profit or loss relative to the payment of termination
benefits, at the earlier of the date that the Company is unable to
unilaterally withdraw the plan for termination of the employment
relationship or the proposal for layoffs, and the date that the
Company recognizes a cost related to the restructuring that
involves the payment of the termination benefits.

Accounting treatment of other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits refer to all employee
benefits, except short-term employee benefits, post-employment
benefits, and termination benefits.

Provisions

Recognition criteria for provisions

A provision is recognized for an obligation related to a
contingency if all the fllowing conditions are satisfied:

The obligation is a present obligation of the Company.

It is probable that the fulfillment of this obligation will result in an
outflow of economic benefits to the Company.

The amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Measurement method of provisions

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation.

When determining the best estimates, the Company considers
the risks, uncertainties and time value of the currency. If the time
value of money has a great influence, the Company determines
the best estimate by discounting the related future cash
outflows.

The best estimates are measured in different situation as follow:

If there is a continuous range (or interval) of the required
expenditure and the probability of the occurrence of all the
results in the range is the same, the best estimate is determined
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according to the median value of the range, which is the average
of the upper and lower limit.

Where there is no continuous range (or interval) of expenditure
requirements, or where there is a continuous range but the
probabilities of the various outcomes within the range are
not the same, the best estimate is determined on the basis of
the most probable amount to be incurred. If the contingency
relates to more than one item, the best estimate is determined
on the basis of a range of possible outcomes and associated
probabilities.

If all or part of the expenditure necessary for settling the
provision is expected to be compensated by a third party, the
amount of compensation is separately recognized as an asset
when it is basically certain to be received. The recognized
compensation amount shall not exceed the carrying amount of
the provision.

Share-based payment
Types of share-based payments

The Company's share-based payment is divided into equity-
settled share-based payment and cash-settled share-based
payment.

Determination of the fair value of equity instruments

For granted equity instruments such as options in an active
market, the fair value is determined according to the quoted
price in the active market. For the granted options and other
equity instruments that do not have an active market, the option
pricing model is used to determine their fair value. The option
pricing model is selected considering the following factors: (1)
the exercise price of the option, (2) the validity period of the
option, (3) the current price of the underlying shares, (4) the
expected volatility of the stock price, (5) the expected dividends
of the shares, (6) the risk-free interest rate during the validity
period of the option.

When determining the fair value of the equity instrument on
the grant date, the effects of market conditions and non-viable
conditions in the viability conditions set out in the share-based
payment agreement are taken into account. If there are non-
viable conditions for share-based payment, as long as employees
or other parties satisfy all non-market conditions (e.g. service
period etc.) in all viability conditions, the corresponding costs
and expenses of the services have been confirmed.

Basis for determining the best estimate of vested equity
instruments
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On each balance sheet date during the waiting period, make the
best estimate based on the latest obtained follow-up information
such as changes in the number of exercisable employees, and
revise the estimated number of exercisable equity instruments.
On the exercise date, the final estimated number of exercisable
equity instruments is consistent with the number of those
actually exercisable.

Accounting treatment

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair
value of equity instruments granted to employees. If the right
can be exercised immediately after the grant, the fair value of
the equity instrument shall be included in the relevant costs
or expenses on the grant date, and the capital reserve shall be
increased accordingly. If the option is not exercisable until the
services during the waiting period have been completed or the
required performance conditions have been met, at each balance
sheet date during the waiting period, the services acquired in
the period are recognized in the relevant costs or expenses
and capital surplus at the fair value of the equity instrument at
the date of grant, based on the best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will become exercisable. After the viable
date, no further adjustments are made to the related costs or
expenses recognized and to total owners' equity.

The cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured at
the fair value of the liabilities calculated and determined on the
basis of shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Company. If the right can be exercised immediately after the
grant, the fair value of the liabilities assumed by the Company
shall be included in the relevant costs or expenses on the grant
date, and the liabilities shall be increased accordingly. For cash-
settled share-based payments that become exercisable only
after the completion of services within the waiting period or
the fulfillment of specified performance conditions, at each
balance sheet date during the waiting period, the services
acquired in the period are recognized as a cost or expense and
the corresponding liability at the amount of the fair value of the
liabilities assumed by the Company, based on the best estimate
of the circumstances under which they will become exercisable.
On each balance sheet date and settlement date before the
settlement of the relevant liabilities, the fair value of the liabilities
is remeasured, and the changes are included in the current profit
and loss.

If the granted equity instruments are cancelled during the
waiting period, the Company treats the cancellation of the
granted equity instruments as an acceleration of the exercise
of options, and recognizes the amount to be recognized during
the remaining waiting period immediately in profit or loss and
recognizes capital surplus. If the employees or other parties can
choose to meet the non-viable conditions but not within the
waiting period, the Company will treat it as the cancellation of the
grant of equity instruments.
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Revenue

Accounting policies used for revenue recognition and
measurement

The Company's revenue mainly comes from the following
business types:

Revenue from sales of commodities such as biological products (APIs
and preparations), medical devices, etc.
Revenue from franchise services

General principles of revenue recognition

The Company has fulfilled the performance obligations in the
contract, that is, when the customer obtains control of the
relevant goods or services, the revenue is recognized at the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation.

The performance obligation refers to the commitment of the
Company to transfer the goods or services that can be clearly
distinguished to the customer in the contract.

Obtaining control of related commodities means being able to
lead the use of the commodities and obtain almost all economic
benefits from them.

The Company evaluates the contract on the contract start date,
identifies the individual performance obligations contained in the
contract, and determines whether the individual performance
obligations are performed within a certain period of time or at a
certain point in time. If one of the following conditions is met, it
is a performance obligation performed within a certain period of
time. The Company recognizes revenue within a period of time
according to the progress of the performance: (1) The customer
acquires and consumes the economic benefits of the Company's
performance at the same time as the Company's performance.
(2) The customer can control the goods under construction of
the Company during the performance of the contract. (3) The
goods produced by the Company during the performance of the
contract have irreplaceable uses, and the Company has the right
to receiving money for the accumulated performance part that
has been completed so far. Otherwise, the Company recognizes
revenue when the customer obtains control of the relevant goods
or services.

For performance obligation fulfilled during a certain period
of time, the Company uses input method to determine the
appropriate performance schedule based on the nature of the
goods and services. The output method determines the progress
of performance on the basis of the value to the customer of the
goods that have been transferred to the customer (the input
method determines the progress of performance on the basis
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of the inputs that the Company has made in order to fulfill its
performance obligations). When the performance of the contract
cannot be reasonably determined, and the Company is expected
to be reimbursed for the cost incurred, the revenue shall be
recognized according to the cost amount incurred until the
performance schedule can be reasonably determined.

Specific methods of revenue recognition

1) Revenue from sales of commodities such as biological products
(APIs and preparations), medical devices, etc.

Contracts for the sale of goods between the Company and its
customers usually contain only performance obligations for the
transfer of goods. The Company usually recognizes revenue at
the point when revenue is recognized at the point of receipt of
goods by the customer for domestic sales and at the point of
receipt of customs declaration for foreign sales after shipment
based on a combination of the following factors: acquisition of
the present right to receive the merchandise, transfer of the
principal risks and rewards of ownership of the merchandise,
transfer of legal title to the merchandise, transfer of the physical
assets of the merchandise, and acceptance of the merchandise
by the customer.

Some of the Company's contracts with customers have sales
rebate arrangements that result in variable consideration. The
Company determines the best estimate of variable consideration
based on the expected or most probable amount, provided that
the transaction price that includes variable consideration does
not exceed the amount, for which it is highly probable that there
will be no material reversal of cumulative recognized revenue,
when the related uncertainty is removed.

2) Revenue from franchise services

Contracts between the Company and its customers for the
provision of services generally contain certain performance
obligations. Since the Company's performance is simultaneous
with the customer's acquisition and consumption of the
economic benefits resulting from the Company's performance,
the Company recognizes revenue as a performance obligation
to be performed over a period of time in accordance with
the progress of performance, except where the progress of
performance cannot be reasonably determined. The Company
determines the progress of performance of services rendered
under the input method based on the proportion of costs
already incurred to the estimated total costs. When the progress
of performance cannot be reasonably determined, the Company
recognizes revenue in the amount of costs already incurred until
the progress of performance can be reasonably determined, if
the costs already incurred are expected to be reimbursed.
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Contract costs

Contract performance costs

The Company recognizes an asset as contract performance costs
if the costs incurred to perform the contract do not fall within
the scope of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
other than the Revenue Guidelines and the following conditions
are simultaneously met:

©) The cost is directly related to a current or expected contract,
including direct labor, direct materials, manufacturing expenses
(or similar expenses), clear costs borne by the customer, and
other costs incurred solely for the contract.

@ The cost increases the resources that the Company will use to
fulfill its performance obligations in the future.
® The cost is expected to be recovered.

The asset is presented in inventory or other non-current assets
based on whether the amortization period at the time of initial
recognition exceeds a normal business cycle.

Contract obtainment costs

If the incremental cost of the Company is expected to be
recovered, the contract obtainment cost is recognized as an
asset. Incremental cost refers to the cost that the Company
will not occur without obtaining a contract, such as sales
commission. For the amortisation period not exceeding one year,
itis included in the current profit and loss when it occurs.

Amortization of contract costs

The Company recognizes the above-mentioned asset related to
contract costs on the same basis as the commodity or service
income related to the asset, and amortizes it at the time when
the performance obligation is performed or in accordance with
the performance schedule of the performance obligation, and is
included in the current profit and loss.

Impairment of contract costs

For assets related to contract costs, the book value is higher
than the difference between the Company's expectation that the
goods related to the assets are expected to obtain the remaining
consideration and the estimated cost of transferring the relevant
goods, and the excess should be depreciated and confirmed as
asset impairment losses.
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After the impairment provision is accrued, if the factors of
impairment in the previous period change, so that the above
two differences are higher than the book value of the assets,
the asset impairment provision previously accrued is transferred
back to the current profit and loss, but the transferred book
value of the asset after the return does not exceed the book
value of the asset on the date of reversal under the assumption
that no impairment provision is made.

Government grants

Classification

Government grants refer to monetary and non-monetary assets
received from the government without compensation. According
to the subsidy object stipulated in the documents of relevant
government, government subsidies are divided into subsidies
related to assets and subsidies related to revenue.

Government grants related to assets is obtained by the Company
for the purposes of constructing or forming long-term assets.
Government grants related to revenue refer to the government
grants other than those related to assets.

Recognition of government grants

Government grants are recognized at the receivable amount if
there is evidence at the end of the period that the Company is
able to meet the relevant conditions stipulated in the financial
support policy and that the Company expects to receive the
financial support funds. Other than that, government grants are
recognized when they are actually received.

Government grants in the form of monetary assets are stated
at the amount received or receivable. Government grants in the
form of non-monetary assets are measured at fair value. If fair
value cannot be obtained, a nominal amount (RMB 1) is used.
Government grants that are measured at nominal amount shall
be recognized directly in current profit or loss.

Accounting treatment

The Company determines whether a particular type of
government grant operation should be accounted for using the
gross or net method based on the substance of the economic
operation. Under normal circumstances, the Company only
chooses one method for same type of or similar government-
subsidized businesses, and uses that method consistently for
that business.
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Government grants related to assets should be offset from the
book value of related assets or recognized as deferred income. If
government grants related to assets are recognized as deferred
income, they shall be included in profit and loss in installments in
accordance with a reasonable and systematic method during the
useful life of the constructed or purchased assets.

Government grants related to income that are used to
compensate the related expenses or losses of the enterprise in
the subsequent period are recognized as deferred income, and
are included in the current profit and loss during the period
when the related expenses or losses are recognized or used to
offset related costs. If they are used to compensate the related
incurred expenses or losses of the enterprise, they shall be
directly included in the current profit and loss or use to offset
the related costs.

Government grants related to the daily activities of the
enterprise are included in other income or to offset related
costs. Those not related to the daily activities of the enterprise
are included in the non-operating income and expenditure.

Government grants related to the subsidized interest received
from policy preferential loans offset the relevant borrowing
costs. If a loan is obtained from a lending bank with a policy
preferential interest rate, the actual amount of the loan received
is used as the recorded value of the loan, and the related
borrowing costs are calculated on the basis of the principal
amount of the loan and such policy preferential interest rate.

When a recognized government grant is to be returned, the
carrying amount of the asset is adjusted if the initial recognition
reduces the carrying amount of the related asset. If there is
a related deferred revenue balance, the carrying amount of
the deferred revenue balance is reduced, and the excess is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If there is no
related deferred revenue, it is recognized directly in profit or loss
for the current period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are recognized
for differences (temporary differences) between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. At the balance
sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the asset is recovered or the liability is settled.
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3)

Criteria for recognition of deferred tax assets

The Company recognizes deferred income tax assets arising
from deductible temporary difference to the extent it is probably
that future taxable amount will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilized. However, the
deferred tax assets arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities in transactions with the following features are not
recognized: (1) the transaction is not a business combination, (2)
transactions that do not affect accounting profit, taxable income,
or deductible losses at the time of occurrence.

For deductible temporary difference in relation to investment in
the associates, corresponding deferred tax assets are recognized
in the following conditions: the temporary difference is probably
reversed in a foreseeable future, and it is likely that taxable
income is obtained for deduction of the deductible temporary
difference in the future.

Criteria for recognition of deferred tax liabilities

The Company recognizes deferred income tax liabilities for
taxable temporary differences between current and prior
periods that are due and owing, excluding:

® Temporary difference arising from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

@ Temporary differences arising from transactions or events that
are not part of a business combination and that, at the time
they occur, affect neither accounting profit nor taxable income
(or deductible losses).

® For taxable temporary difference in relation to investment
in subsidiaries or associates, the time for reversal of the
difference can be controlled and the difference is probably not
to be reversed in a foreseeable future.

When the following conditions are satisfied, deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities shall be presented on a net basis

@® An enterprise has the statutory right to settle the current tax
assets and current income tax liabilities at their net amounts.
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@ 16 JE BT 15 B 2R P A IE E P AR @ Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
MAGESR —MKIEEE taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
IS B — 49 # = A AE B PR entity or on different taxable entities, but in each future period
BB XIE RN in which deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
FHMEX, BEXRRE—EF reversed in a material way, the taxable entities involved intend
EEEMNBIEFIREAF to either settle the current income tax assets and current
A 3% GE P S 7 A i Bl Y ,HH income tax liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and
B, BRBENTEEEE settle the liabilities simultaneously.

UESEB LA RAR
K L HAPR 1S B A 152 30 =2 B B

BERF. BRES.

29. MH 29. Leasing

@®  FAHARBEEIEHBEEMENEZ @O  Judgemental basis and accounting treatment of short-term
7= 7 55 #1715 fE 2 2B B9 F B o 18 7T leases and leases of low-value assets as a simplified treatment
S L E 7% for lessees
EHEERETEEWEEENE Short-term leases are leases that do not include a purchase
AEBHABIRANBNEE. KN option and that have a lease term of not more than 12 months.
BEAFHEREREIEERT NS Low-value asset leases refer to leases with a low value when a
WREFENNERENEAR, T25R single leased asset is a brand-new asset, mainly office equipment
hRgEHER, leases.
KRB TRRBHEENENER The Company does not recognize right-of-use assets and lease
F‘%ﬂ I RFINEANAE MR R liabilities for the following short-term leases and low-value asset
f, MXMEEMNRMARAEANS leases, and the relevant lease payments are included in the
TMHBIRBELZ ZHHMAR LS relevant asset costs or current profits and losses on a straight-
B AT NI K 2B AL A B R R line method or other systematic and reasonable basis during
o each period of the lease term.

m e Items KAEHKLEBENAERST LS Classes of leased assets for which simplified

treatment has been adopted
SRR Short-term rental ETHMBEE. BaEE Vehicle rental, dormitory rental
KiNEAE-HEE Leasing of low-value assets hRgEER Office equipment rental

@ (EHNHEBEAFHHEESEEEMSZIF @  Criteria for classification and accounting treatment of leases as

L EE 7 % lessors

1) HENDR 1) Classification of leases

ZIK \BEIEMHEAGEHREEES I The Company classifies leases into finance leases and operating
REENEEHER, MEERERE leases on the lease commencement date. A financial lease is a

IR EEBTEHERFMENE lease that substantially transfers almost all the risks and rewards

X LT 2 20X e AN 3k B A9 AR 5 associated with the ownership of the leased asset, and its

HMBENSAORES, UalETR ownership may or may not be transferred eventually. Operating

B, 2EHERERMEAEELN leases refer to leases other than finance leases.

SN EMAEE,
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If a lease has one or more of the following circumstances, the
Company usually classifies it as a finance lease:

a At the end of the lease term, ownership of the leased asset is
transferred to the lessee.

b The lessee has the option to purchase the leased asset, and the
purchase price entered into is sufficiently low compared with
the fair value of the leased asset when the option is expected
to be exercised, so it can be reasonably determined that the
lessee will exercise the option on the lease commencement
date.

C Although the ownership of the asset is not transferred, the
lease term accounts for most of the useful life of the leased
asset.

d On the lease commencement date, the present value of the
lease receipts is almost equal to the fair value of the leased
asset.

e The leased assets are of a special nature, and only the lessee
can use them if no major transformation is made.

If a lease has one or more of the following signs, the Company
may also classify it as a finance lease:

a If the lessee revokes the lease, the lessee shall bear the loss
caused by the revocation of the lease to the lessor.

b Gains or losses arising from fluctuations in the fair value of the
residual value of assets are attributed to the lessee.

C The lessee has the ability to continue the lease to the next
period at a rent far below the market level.

2) Accounting treatment of financial leases

On the commencement date of the lease period, the Company
recognizes the finance lease receivables for the finance lease and
derecognizes the finance lease assets.

When the finance lease receivables are initially measured,
the finance lease receivable is recorded at the sum of the
unguaranteed residual value and the present value of the
lease receipts not yet received on the start date of the lease
term, discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. Lease
receipts include:




a HERERAMEXE G
& T 17 7R 81 K2 5K B %€ Y 7K

;

b BURTFHEHEE R LA
FATRER

c GEMEARBARTEBLE

EENBRT, HEWRR
MR K EFENBTRN
=

d AR B AR ARITE
KIEPHEEEENBNBRT,
HREERRAEEABATE
KIFBAREFENTEZLTBHIR
5

e mAMBA. SEABEAEXH
—HAURBEFENETE
RXSHWRIE=FEHME
ARHEHBERARE

TRBZRIBEERNEETR S M KT
BEAFMINEARHAASNRENNE
BN, FTEVSERRANERRE S
Bt EMNREHEENRAMELRA
ERTANSE R

3) NEEHEENR I E

ARBAEEEHASMHEXABE
ZERNEMRRSENGE, BE
EERENAR WA INNEE W
N, REWNEZEEEREXNY0
EEREZRALRNK, EHERARR
S5z WA HIANER B EAFE TS
M, DEITASHERD; BRSNS
ZKEMERA XK NEE BT
BRI ZEENRE, ERMRREN
TTANHBARE

Semi-Annual Report 2024

a Fixed payments net of amounts related to lease incentives and
substantive fixed payments.

b Variable lease payments that depend on an index or ratio.

C When it is reasonably determined that the lessee will exercise
the purchase option, the lease receipts include the exercise
price of the purchase option.

d When the lease period reflects that the lessee will exercise
the option to terminate the lease, the lease receipts include
the amount payable by the lessee for exercising the option to
terminate the lease.

e The residual value of the guarantee provided to the lessor by
the lessee, a party related to the lessee, and an independent
third party that has the economic ability to perform the
guarantee obligation.

The Company calculates and recognizes interest income for each
period during the lease term based on a fixed lease implicit
rate, and variable lease payments acquired that are not included
in the measurement of the net investment in the lease are
recognized in profit or loss when they are actually incurred.

3) Accounting treatment of operating leases

The Company recognizes lease receipts under operating leases
as rental income using the straight-line method or other
systematic and reasonable methods in each period of the lease
term. Capitalized initial direct costs incurred in connection with
operating leases are amortized over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income recognition and are recognized in profit
or loss by installments. The variable lease payments relating to
operating leases that are not recognized as lease receipts are
recognized in profit or loss when they are actually incurred.
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H. B V. Taxation

1. XEBRMRBE 1. Main taxes and tax rates
TEHMERBEIELRL Information on main taxes and tax rates

i Tax types it Ak 1B Taxable basis

B ER Value-added tax (VAT) ##ZMETENIEE The output tax is calculated

on the basis of income from

B R R 2 45 N
’\%;\mrjﬁ”””&)\ﬁ the sale of goods and taxable
EM it EHEIMABLE , 7 services in accordance with

the provisions of the tax law,

1P 5 PR A0 F SR 00 and after deducting the input

WA, ZEMEDN  tax allowable for deduction
7 3 18 {8 R in the current period, the

difference will be the value-
added tax payable.

Yo 4 A IR A Urban construction and  S2 4557 % %t %t &7 Payment of the acual
maintenance tax turnover tax
A Frg R Income tax K7 4% %% PIT 1 & Taxable income
BB MM Education surcharge A R R Payment of the acual
turnover tax
75 B &K Local education SO B B A AR Payment of the acual

surcharges

turnover tax

T E kBT 13 8 % E B 1

H, #% %187 B

Details of income tax rates for different taxpayers are set
out below

PR E R B R

HEHUIRNBERAE
TTREERXBRLQE
IERBAUEEREZBRAT
HERWIFAEBRAE
HZEHLLWARERAE

Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals USA Corporation
ERRFRERKBRAF
HHETREZIAERAS
HEIERERAET

G&L HOLDINGS NEW JERSEY INC

G&L MANUFACTURING NEW JERSEY INC
HEEYR R (LB BRAT

Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals Europe GmbH

Name of taxpayer

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

Beijing Gangan Technology Co., Ltd.

Bejing Dingye Haoda Technology Co., Ltd.
Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Jiangsu Co., Ltd.
Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.
Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals USA Corporation
Beijing Yuanhe Genze Technology Co., Ltd.
Gan Gan Medical Technology Jiangsu Co., Ltd.
Gan&Lee Holdings Limited

G&L HOLDINGS NEW JERSEY INC

G&L MANUFACTURING NEW JERSEY INC

Gan & Lee Biotechnology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals Europe GmbH

it BH: Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals
Europe GmbHAY 1k Wl PR 1F # Bt =
15%, EPFRE M M EE M E 0k
550N BEALEM Mtz ERNEERME
7915.825% o
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Note: The corporate income tax rate of Gan&Lee
Pharmaceuticals Europe GmbH is 15%, and the statutory tax rate
after adding a solidarity surcharge of 5.5% to the income tax rate
is 15.825%.
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Tax benefits

Since January 1, 2008, according to the "Enterprise Income Tax Law of
the People's Republic of China", high-tech enterprises that need to be
supported by the state are subject to a reduced enterprise income
tax rate of 15%. The Company obtained the Certificate of the High and
New Technology Enterprise in 2011, and has reapplied and qualified
for the recognition of the High and New Technology Enterprise every
three years since 2011, therefore, it is entitled to the tax benefits
of high-tech enterprise from 2011 to October 2026. The certificate
number of the "Certificate of the High and New Technology Enterprise" of
the Company is GR202311000039, which was issued on October 16,
2023 and is valid for three years.

On January 19, 2009, the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation (SAT) issued the "Circular on the Policy of
Applying the Low VAT Rate and the Simplified Method of Collecting VAT on
Some Goods" (Cai Shui [2009] No. 9), and on June 13, 2014, the Ministry
of Finance and the SAT issued the "Circular on the Policy of Simplifying
the Collection Rate of Value-Added Tax" (Cai Shui [2014] No. 57), which
provides that the sales of self-produced biological products made
from microorganisms, microbial metabolites, animal toxins, human
or animal blood or tissues may choose to pay VAT calculated in
accordance with the simplified method pursuant to a 3% levy rate.
The Company applied for and received approval for the simplified
levy from December 1, 2015, and income from the sale of biological
products is subject to VAT at a levy rate of 3%, with no further
deduction of input tax.

On January 17, 2019, the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation (SAT) issued the "Circular on the
Implementation of Universal Tax Relief Policies for Small and Micro
Enterprises" (Cai Shui [2019] No. 13), which reduces the portion of
the annual taxable income of small and micro enterprises in excess
of RMB 1 million but not exceeding RMB 3 million by 50% of the
taxable income, and pays the enterprise income tax at a rate of
20%. And the portion of the annual taxable income of not exceeding
RMB 1 million is reduced by 25% of the taxable income and subject
to enterprise income tax at a rate of 20%. On March 26, 2023, the
State Administration of Taxation (SAT) issued the "Announcement
on Preferential Policies on Income Tax for Small and Micro Enterprises and
Individual Industrial and Commercial Households" (No. 6 of 2023 of the
SAT Announcement), under which small and micro enterprises are
required to pay enterprise income tax at a rate of 20% by reducing
the portion of the annual taxable income not exceeding RMB 1 million
by 25% of the taxable income. During the period under review, Gan
& Lee Biotechnology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and Bejing Dingye Haoda
Technology Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the group, were subject to the tax
exemption policy for small and micro enterprises.
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N, SHUWESKRRIME IR VI. Notes to items in consolidated financial statements
1. LBmEs 1. Monetary funds
BT MM ARM
Unit: RMB
mE Item B R &N
Opening balance
EENE Cash on hand
RITER Bank balance 2,414,406,994.87
HihBEm & Other monetary funds 9,763,268.15
KR EIHA U B Unexpired interest receivable 18,538,340.18
&1t Total 2,442,708,603.20

H: ZRAEBIIPRIMEBE  Of which: total proceeds
deposited abroad

72,639,977.07

H b 5% BF Other notes
HRZRENEDEERAMANT: The details of restricted monetary funds are as follows:

BT ™M ARM

Unit: RMB
H
me Item ) A3 ¥ R A
Opening balance
TEHI 17 A e U B Time deposits and interest 2,126,219,231.17
receivable
+ X8 H 1T 5% R U F] 2 Seven day notice deposit and 20,287,123.29
interest receivable
ERIERIES Letter of credit margin 5,247,470.48
BERASESIHRRIES Guarantees for wages of 4,388,989.80
construction labor
FHEAEAR Refundable deposited 126,807.87
investment fund
&t Total 2,156,269,622.61
g = NN R s i il BV 2l == 3= Note: Restricted monetary funds shall not be treated as cash
REFNEDRERERNRE R and cash equivalents when the Company prepares the cash flow
EENY o statement.
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2. XRBMEEMEFE 2. Financial assets held for trading

B MM ARM
Unit: RMB

ma Item R S

Opening balance

A RMEITE BET T Y Financial assets measured at fair value 2,410,429,796.82

A =T and and will have their changes accounted
MRENERAS for in the current profit and loss
Hrp: Of Which:
W@ TREER Investments in equity instruments 758,755,841.82
HAth Others 1,651,673,955.00
a1t Total 2,410,429,796.82
H i 88 Other notes:
Nam TEEARANEAANTEEN T Investments in equity instruments represent investments in
NEHEL R, listed stocks held by the Company.
HMARRBHFENEHEENR Others represent structured deposits held by the Company.
3. MK 3.  Accounts receivable
(1) RIKES 1% (1)  Disclosed by aging
Bt M ARD
Unit: RMB
T Aging HA ) K R A
Opening balance
1FR Within 1 year
Hep: 1F MR DM Of which: Sub-item within 1 year
6 NMB LA Within 6 months 381,855,671.69
7—1218 7 to 12 months 2,054,580.37
1ELLA/N T Subtotal within 1 year 383,910,252.06
1E25 1to 2 years 25,049,001.41
2E3F 2 to 3 years 19,326,011.00
=1 Total 428,285,264.47
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BASITHERKES: Provision for bad debts by portfolio:
HAEITIRIE: FFRTIHETHAER External Accounts receivable subject to expected credit losses
2K B9 9h BB B2 U K R provided on non-separate provision

Bt M ARM
Unit: RMB

& Item
6MBUA Within 6 months
—121 8 7 to 12 months
1FEE2F 1to 2 years
2EFE3F 2 to 3 years
&1t Total
(3) HFHEHHIER (3)  Provision for bad debts
Bt M ARD
Unit: RMB
KT HEM
19 4 % 5 Changes in the current period
el Categor Openin . " » _
& e e R WENBE SRS HtE
Accrual  Recovery or Write-off Others
reversal
N7 U KRR K & Provision for 44,549,993.57 961,325.19 51,999.00
bad debts
on accounts
receivable
&t Total 44,549,993.57 961,325.19 51,999.00
(4)  ZEL B % 55 B9 [ W T 7+ 18 27 (4)  Accounts receivable actually written off during the period
Bt MM ARD
Unit: RMB
py=| Item ZHEE M
Amount written-off
52 PR A% 5 BY I U TR =X Accounts receivable actually written-off 51,999.00
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(5) BRIFVAEIHERGEHESH (5)
Bz i i 7% #1 & [ 22 75 16 270

Top five accounts receivable and contract assets with closing
balance based on debtors

B M ARD
Unit: RMB

BRACHRRT MRKRMEBA™ SHNWRKRMNEBAETHAR FAREEHRRT
Rz Uy e 71 #A Sk R @7 Closing balance of HRRT REE T MG (%)  Closing balance of

Closing balance ~ contract assets  Closing balance of Percentage of combined ~ Provision for bad
debts

B2 Entity of accounts accounts receivable closing balance of accounts
receivable and contract assets receivable and contract
assets(%)
=1 Customer 1 20,992,950.74 20,992,950.74 5.06 20,992,950.74
ZP2 Customer 2 17,278,200.00 17,278,200.00 417 17,278,200.00
=3 Customer 3 10,674,508.71 10,674,508.71 2.58
24 Customer 4 8,239,918.80 8,239,918.80 1.99
=5 Customer 5 7,627,487.23 7,627,487.23 1.84
&t Total 64,813,065.48 64,813,065.48 15.63 38,271,150.74
4. DU FR IR 2R 4.  Financing receivables
(1). [ Yg 5 I7 i 25 57 K 5~ (1) Presentation of financing receivables classifications
Bt mi: ARM
Unit: RMB
mA Item HRRE HY R
Closing balance Opening balance
N W ZE R Notes receivable 6,312,425.46 1,634,782.89
ait Total 6,312,425.46 1,634,782.89
(2). Hfthiges: (2)  Other notes:

B E2024F6A30H, xR BRFAHE
W REHYNRTEAZLE, &
REVANNTEFEERNEANK,
FERBAMEEERREL, BX
HRMBERBR KX

As of June 30, 2024, all of the notes receivable held by the
Company were bankers' acceptances, and the Company has not
provided for expected credit losses because it believes that there
is no significant credit risk and that no significant losses will be
incurred as a result of default.
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5. WM 5. Prepayments
(1)  FS TR 16 5 (1)  Byaging
BT A ARD
Unit: RMB
H R
Opening balance
T e Aging
Bl £k 51l (%)
Amount Proportion (%)
1ELA Within 1 year 40,503,723.62 98.84
1E24 1to 2 years 468,030.92 1.14
2E3F 2 to 3 years 7,737.00 0.02
a1t Total 40,979,491.54 100.00
i 881 1F B+ MEZ M RN A description of the reasons why prepayments aged more than
AENERERANTEA: one year and of significant amounts have not been settled in a
timely manner:
B FE2024F6H30H , T MM REN As of June 30, 2024, there were no prepayments in the
FAEEKKREBEI—FESOEE prepayment balance that were more than one-year-old and
B9 F0 A TIN5 significant in amount.

(2) BAMWNKRITENHFRFEHESL (2) Topfive closing balances of prepayment, grouped by prepayment
BYFAS 5% 18 recipients

B MM ARS
Unit: RMB

& IS FRIEA R R A S T 2RI EE B (%)
Percentage of total closing balance of prepayments

51U & R Entity (%)
VA= Supplier 1 16.41
RV 752 Supplier 2 14.74
L7 73 Supplier 3 9.75
R A4 Supplier 4 9.00
VAR Supplier 5 416
=i Total 54.06
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6. HfttWKMR

Other receivables

ltem presentation

Dividends payable

Other receivables

Disclosed by aging

E=RIIPN
I E Item
K7 U A1) 2 Interest receivable
97 LT B F) Dividend receivable
H At [ WK Other receivables
&t Total
JR7 U A )
ME (W EEAL) Item (or Investee)
IiE 51 Securities 1
a1t Total
H th {7 IR
(1) RIKESI%E (1)
T 8 Age of accounts
1E R Within 1 year
He: 1 ARSI Of which: Sub-item within one year
1FE A Within 1 year
1 LA NI Subtotal: Less than 1 year
1E24 1to 2 years
2E3%F 2 to 3 years
3E4F 3 to 4 years
A 54 4 to 5years
SELE Over 5 years
a1t Total

202\ BHFHIRHERAT

Bt ™M AR®
Unit: RMB

R
Opening balance

3,491,907.62
3,491,907.62

BT ™M ARM
Unit: RMB

AR

Opening balance

Bt MM AR
Unit: RMB

HA 40 K T R B

Opening balance

1,391,323.82
1,391,323.82
207,549.96
1,657,416.00
11,500.00
224,117.84

3,491,907.62




(2) BHTIEESEER
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2) Details of classification by nature

RN B
WERIEE

RBER

HRAMEMR
RIMAEHER L AR

&it

Nature

Deposit guarantee

Advance of funds

Expense borrowing
Withholding and payment of

social security and provident
fund

Total

(3) BRUFVALBIHARBEHESH (3)

Bty 7k 187

BAIZM Entity

£—%F NO. 1
s NO. 2
£=% NO.3
#FME  NO. 4

R NO. 5

&t Total

BT ™M ARM
Unit: RMB

A4 K T R ER

Opening balance
2,425,634.21

333,161.26
39,024.50
694,087.65

3,491,907.62

Top five other receivables with closing balance based on debtors

BT M AR™

other receivables (%)

3526 #HERIES
Deposit guarantee

3.56 HERIEE
Deposit guarantee

351 HERIES
Deposit guarantee

3.02 KB
Advance of funds

297 KRB
Advance of funds

48.32 /

Unit: RMB

& EAth 7 I R EA R R R E
n& T BBl (%) . HERRID
Percentage of total R E 1 R mi‘.ﬁé’\ Closing
closing balance of Nature Aging balance of bad

debt provision

2-3F
2 to 3 years

LFELA
Within 1 year

2-3%F
2 to 3 years

LELA
Within 1 year

1FEUW
Within 1 year
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1. #X® 7.  Inventory
(1) HFESE (1)  Classification of inventories
B M ARM
Unit: RMB
R
Opening balance
KERG FRENES/ARE K & 7 &
Carrying WA REES Book value
e Item amount Provision for
decline in value
of inventories/
impairment
of contractual
performance costs
MR Raw materials 179,925,588.92 1,978,915.55 177,946,673.37
(k) Packing 135,997,629.24 330,800.88 135,666,828.36
materials
B il ¥ L & Self- 445,001,301.34 22,812,742.75 422,188,558.59
o manufactured
REFR  dnitfinished
products and
in-process
products
EFEs  Merchandise 113,509,127.70 4,288,612.40 109,220,515.30
in stock
B E Revolving 15,379,649.11 15,379,649.11
materials
& H@Em Goodsin 104,081.41 104,081.41
transit
& it Total 889,917,377.72 29,411,071.58 860,506,306.14
2) HFEENESKRSEELREZLREE (2) Provision for decline in value of inventories and impairment of
HE contractual performance costs
B g M ARD
Unit: RMB
R 75 HE 12 10 % 50 AN HAOR D & 8
Opening  Increase during the Decrease during the period
balance period
e Item . )
itie Hth ¥ o] Bf ¥ 5 Hth
Provision Others  Reversal or write- Others
off
R ARt Raw Materials 1,978,915.55 309,047.87
2y Packing 330,800.88 269,808.88
materials
EfI S NRESS Self-manufactured  22,812,742.75 1,681,796.94
semi-finished
products and
inprocess products
[ER A= Merchandise in 4,288,612.40 3,715,153.27
stock
=1 Total 29,411,071.58 5,975,806.96
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8. HMmm&E~ 8.  Other current assets
Bt M ARD
Unit: RMB
= ltem BRI R AN
Opening balance
14 18 % 2B 4 10 3 VAT credit 955,550.93
DUIEsEE 285 P8 8 Net of eliminations income tax 30,346,631.27
i 480 78 2 advances
FEE RIS #H I AN Input tax pending receipt of credit 961,369.23
vouchers
= Total 32,263,551.43
9. MmNEE 9. Debt investment
(1) GRRZERLR (1) Status of debt investments
B g M ARD
Unit: RMB
HA R
Opening balance
mH tem WERT  AEEE T & 41 18
Carrying Provision for Book value
amount impairment
LUPE 52 AR 25 3T 8 Financial assets 304,658,333.33 304,658,333.33
b4 T 2 large certificates
BE A of deposit
KEF R measured at
amortized cost
a1t Total 304,658,333.33 304,658,333.33
(2) HEEZHGENRE (2)  Significant debt investments at the end of the period

Bt ™M ARM

Unit: RMB
H R
Opening balance
I e
o EE BENE  REAE 58 8
Par value  Coupon Effective Maturity date
rate interest rate
—FHAEGEFER 300,000,000.00 3.25% 2026/7/13
3-year large
certificate of
deposit
—FEHKRGFR
3-year large
certificate of
deposit
&t 300,000,000.00 / / /
Total
iR BA: F2024F 68308, ERKE Note: At June 30, 2024, the cumulative outstanding interest
FRHENERBIT TR & B BN receivable balance accrued on the above large certificate of

Y F) B 5 81 99,663,888.897T o deposit debt investments was RMB 9,663,888.89.
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10. HtIERz R A~

10.

Other non-current financial assets

Bf:oc ™M ARM

Unit: RMB

mE Item EERI S

Opening balance

DEUR AN EITE B E L )it Classification of financial 30,000,000.00

HA 45 26 b & 5 > assets at fair value through

NBF R @B TR AT profits or losses

Hf: N&mTEBRR Of which: Investments in equity 30,000,000.00

instruments
= Total 30,000,000.00
Higeg: Other Notes:

B E2024%6H308, xRBFHH
MBEDBERNDBRAQE2,711,378
G, FREEHI0.7398% , K HEF
TTHMFERDERMET, AR
NnEITE,

11. BEE&R™

mE 7R

11.

As at June 30, 2024, the Company held 2,711,378 shares of
Suzhou Sepax Technologies, Inc., with a shareholding of 0.7398%,
which is listed as other non-current financial assets and
measured at fair value.

Fixed assets

Iltem presentation

Bt MM ARD
Unit: RMB

mE ltem

&8
it
\/\ \!
W

Fixed assets

op
o

Total

HAR) R AR
Opening balance

1,872,067,763.13
1,872,067,763.13

EERAHEERT R ENREER
FRERNBEER .

206\ BHFEHIRHERAH
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5
[l
%
S

Fixed assets

(1) BEEZ~ER (1) Status of fixed assets
BT MHARM
Unit: RMB
EERERAY Hegir& ZHIE Hithig & ait
mE Item Houses and Machinery and Carriers Other equipment Total
buildings equipmnt

—. KEERE:
LB R
2. HERIE N & B

O ME

QERTER

Qo mImEINE
EH

AR 2

(1) A EHRE

AR R

—. BitirA

LB R
2. PN & 5

(1) it1=

() ShmIRER
BED

AR L £

(1) A ERRE

AR R

=, REES

LB R

2. EAIE N & B

(1) it1=
AR 2

(1) A EHIRE

AHARRE
M. 0K E 0 E

LBAKRKENE

2. 837K E B

I. Original book value:
1. Opening balance

2. Increase during the
period
Acquisition
Transfer from

construction in progress
Translation

differences on foreign

currency statements
3. Decrease during the

period
Disposal or
scrapping
4. Closing balance

II. Accumulated
depreciation
1. Opening balance
2. Increase during the
period
Acquisition
Translation
differences on foreign

currency statements
3. Decrease during the

period
Disposal or

scrapping
4. Closing balance

IIl. Provision for
impairment
1. Opening balance
2. Increase during the
period
Acquisition
3. Decrease during the

period
Disposal or

scrapping
4. Closing balance

IV. Book value
1. Closing book value

2. Opening book value

1,366,594,359.25

495,697,837.33

495,697,837.33

1,862,292,196.58

277,085,680.82

37,191,130.57

37,191,130.57

314,276,811.39

22,957,462.73

22,957,462.73

1,525,057,922.46

1,066,551,215.70

1,276,109,412.16

83,090,893.05

83,090,893.05

5,084,788.24

5,084,788.24

1,354,115,516.97

526,398,098.20

62,991,371.13

62,991,371.13

2,215,810.32

2,215,810.32

587,173,659.01

18,357,365.56

18,357,365.56

748,584,492.40

731,353,948.40

12,853,228.96

203,339.60

203,339.60

13,056,568.56

6,265,174.94

1,024,020.43

1,024,020.43

193,453.29

193,453.29

7,095,742.08

5,960,826.48

6,588,054.02

184,909,157.72

8,127,505.14

705,827.85

7,415,738.02

5,939.27

756,636.00

756,636.00

192,280,026.86

105,231,853.18

12,228,635.79

12,224,367.02

4,268.77

500,829.04

500,829.04

116,959,659.93

12,102,759.53

12,102,759.53

63,217,607.40

67,574,545.01

2,840,466,158.09

587,119,575.12

909,167.45

586,204,468.40

5,939.27

5,841,424.24

5,841,424.24

3,421,744,308.97

914,980,807.14

113,435,157.92

113,430,889.15

4,268.77

2,910,092.65

2,910,092.65

1,025,505,872.41

53,417,587.82

53,417,587.82

2,342,820,848.74

1,872,067,763.13
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2) FhE=NIEFBEEEZFIER (2)  Fixed assets of which certificates of title have not been obtained

BT M ARM

Unit: RMB

e Item RADEFEROEBNRE

Reasons for non-obtainment of certificates of title

% BT Fermentation facilities P & 4 3t J9 2 FE B9 = R £ 3

Land occupied is leased collective land

Bab A= Boiler room [ERREY S NP2

Incomplete construction procedures

VIVl Office building BERFEFTE

Incomplete construction procedures

I B 22 Temporary storage BRFEFATE

Incomplete construction procedures

It 8] Kitchen P 5 £ ) 79 7 FE B9 S R £ i

Land occupied is leased collective land

&it Total /

W RN ZFRGEBNEE & ™~ Note: Fixed assets for which title certificates have not been

BEREIEH . WIPFE . DRBAE . issued include fermentation facilities, boiler rooms, office

I BY 2 Rz dt 18], HTE20226F B2 & buildings, temporary storage and kitchen, which have a zero

WIREE R REES, WHHRK carrying value at the end of the period as full provision for
HNEANZ, impairment of fixed assets has been made in 2022.

12. FEEIE

e 7R

12. Construction in progress

ltem presentation

B MM ARM
Unit: RMB

TE

TRIRE
IEYA

it

ltem

BRI

Opening balance
Construction in progress 2,004,660,050.28

Project materials 2,301,097.99

Total 2,006,961,148.27

FRIRE

(1) #HEEIEER

208\ HFEHIRHERAT

Construction in progress

(1)  Status of construction in progress
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13. FRANEF
(1) RERE~IELR

13. Right-of-use assets

(1) Status of right-of-use assets

Semi-Annual Report 2024

B mMARM
Unit: RMB

mHE

—. KEFRE:
1.HA%) R A
2.7 HR 8 I0 <& &N
(D#IgFE &
Q) mIRRITEER
3R D&M
(IR ESIRE
4EAR RN
—. Z2itA
LB R
2.7 HA 3% 10 < 3R
(1)it42
(2)5r IR TR ITHE E M
RN R
ez
) miIRRITEEM
4HR R
=, BEESE
1.HA%] R &
2.7 HR 1 0 <& &N
IAREB L
4 HR &
M. WENE
LEAR K E M &
2K ENE

ltem

I. Original book value:
1. Opening balance
2. Increase for the period
New leases

Translation differences on foreign currency
statements

3. Decrease for the period
Disposal or scrap
4. Closing balance
II. Accumulated depreciation
1. Opening balance
2. Increase for 